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EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number Page

I.1 2004 Annual Report

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The 2004 Annual Report of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) contains
certain forward-looking statements. that are, by their nature, subject to significant risks and uncertainties.
These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements relating to competition in the
China aviation industry, the Company’s planned measures to improve efficiency and enhance
competitiveness, the impact of these measures on the Company’s results of operations, the impact of
international activities and the impact of the policies and related measures of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China (the “CAAC”), and the Chinese government on market demand, the Company’s
future strategic and business plans for 2005 and the international and domestic economies and aviation
industries. The Company does not intend to update these forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements reflect the current view of the Company with respect to future
events and are not a guarantee of future performance. Actual events or results may differ materially from
information contained in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, without
limitation, any changes in regulatory policies of the CAAC (including any policy changes in price
systems), the effects of competition on the demand and price of the Company’s services, changes in the
global economic conditions (including economic development and conditions of the countries served by
the flights of the Company), the political and economic conditions of China, the cost and availability of
aviation fuel, any significant changes in the exchange rates between Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar and
U.S. dollar or Japanese yen and the Company’s ability to obtain adequate financing on commercially
acceptable terms. N
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Expressed in RMB millions

Year Ended 31 December

Turnover

Other operating income

Operating expenses
Operating profit

Interest expenses, net

(Loss)/profit before taxation

{Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders

(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB)

At 31 December

Cash and cash eguivalents

Working capital deficiency

Non-current assets

Financial Highlights

China Eastemn Airtines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

2000

Long-term loans, including current portion

Finance lease obligations, including

current portion

Total capital and reserves

11,220
223

(10,444)

999

(815)

304
176
0.04

1,423

(858)

24,726
4,804

11,308
6,870

12,158
127

(11,283)

997
814)
314
542

0.11

1,331
(3,163)

25,201

5,301

9,871
7,320

2002

2003

13,079

226
(12,242)

1,063
(731)

263

86

0.02

1,945
(7,437)

28,151

6,495

8,184
7,379

1,583
(9,941)

33,175
11,223

7,101
6,382

2004

21,039
154

(19,714)
1,479

(763)
845
514
0.11

2,114
(12,502)
37,219
10,736

8,662
6,882

(1) The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share is based on the consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders and 4,866,950,000 shares in issue.

Turnover

RMB millions
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Summary of Accounting and Business Data

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

Operating Resulis (Year Ended 31 December 2004)

RMB millions
Total profit . 915
Income from Main Operation 3,248
Income from Cther Operation 665
Income from Investments (29)
Net Income cutside Business 285
Major Accounting Data & Financial Indicators (Exoressed in RMB Million)
2002 2002
(before (after
2004 2003 adjustment} adjustment)
1, Revenue from Main Operations 19,893.14 13,899.06 13,390.65 13,390.65
2. Net (Loss)/Profit 536.34 (825.97) 124.26 124.26
3. Total Assets 41,395.60 36,687.48 31,428.20 3161013
4. Shareholders Equity 5,798.17 5,226.91 6,284.07 6,381.41
5. {Loss)/Earning per Share (RMB) 0.1102 (0.1697) 0.0255 0.0255
6. (Loss)Earning per Share after deduction
of extraordinary profit and loss (RMB) 0.0481 {0.2069) 0.0138 0.0155
7. Net Assets per Share (RMB) 1.191 1.074 1.291 1.311
8. Return on Net Assets (%) 9.25 (15.80) 1.98 1.95
9. Net Assets per Share after adjustments (RMB}) 1.1209 1.0001 1.2303 1.2503
10. Net Amount of Cash Flow per Share Created
by Business Operation (RMB} 0.87 0.83 0.73 0.73
* Non-frequented gains and losses

items Year 2004 Year 2003

18,872,894.67

Gain on short-term investment

Subsidy income ‘ 60,536,787.13 75,135,348.95
Gains on disposal of fixed assets 46,093,303.51 1,113,033.44
Revenue of Sales in Advance of Carriage excesses settlement period 215,141,670.66 08,966,740.57
Other Operating Revenue 25,871,932.03 4,424,966.51
Less: Losses on disposal of fixed assets 31,140,310.64 = 8,832,544.21

Other Non-operating Expense 14,155,066.94 8,495,601.45
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited 3

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

2000

Year Ended 31 December

Turnover

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Interest expenses, net

(Loss)/profit before taxation

{Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders

(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB)™

At 31 December
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital deficiency

Non-current assets

Long-term loans, including current portion

Finance lease obligations, including
current portion

Total capital and reserves

11,220
223
(10,444)
999
(815)
304
176
0.04

1,423

(858)
24726
4,804

11,308
6,870

12,153
127

(11,283)
097

(814)
314
542
0.11

1,331
(3,163)

25,201

5,301

9,871
7,320

2001

2002

13,079

226
(12,242)

1,063
(731)

263

86

0.02

1,945
(7,437)

28,151
6,495

8,184
7,379

2003

14,277
61
(14,117)
221

(783)
(590
(950
0.02

—_— = 2

1,583
(9,941)

33,175

11,223

7,101
6,382

2004

21,039
154
(19,714)
1,479
(763)
845
514
0.11

2,114
{(12,502)
37,219
10,736

8,662
6,882

(1) The calculation of (loss)/eamings per share is based on the consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders and 4,866,950,000 shares in issue.
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— Summary of Accounting and Business LUala

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

Operoting Results (Year Ended 31 December 2004)

RMB millions
Total profit a5
Income from Main Operation 3,248
Income from Other Operation 665
Income from Investments (29)
Net Income outside Business 285
Major Accounting Data & Financial Indicalors (Expressed in RMB Millicn)
2002 2002
(before (after
2004 2003 adjustment) adjustment)
1. Revenue from Main Operations 19,893.14 13,999.06 13,390.65 13,390.65
2. Net (Loss)/Profit 536.34 {825.97) 124.26 124.26
3. Total Assets 41,395.60 36,687.48 31,428.20 31,610.13
4. Shareholders Equity 5,798.17 5,226.91 6,284.07 6,381.41
5. (Loss)/Earning per Share (RMB) 0.1102 (0.1897) 0.0255 0.0255
6. (Loss)/Earning per Share after deduction
of extraordinary profit and loss (RMB) 0.0481 (0.2069) 0.0138 0.0155
7. Net Assets per Share (RMB) 119 1.074 1.291 1.311
8. Return on Net Assets (%) 9.25 (15.80) 1.98 1.95
9. Net Assets per Share after adjustments (RMB}) 1.1209 1.0001 1.23083 1,2508
10. Net Amount of Cash Flow per Share Created
by Business Operation (RMB) 0.87 0.83 0.78 0.73
* Non-frequented gains and losses
ltems Year 2004 Year 2003
Gain on short-term investment - 18,872,894.67
Subsidy income ‘ 60,536,787.13 75,135,348.95
Gains on disposal of fixed assets 46,093,303.51 1,1138,033.44
Revenue of Sales in Advance of Carriage excesses settlement period 215,141,670.66 98,966,740.57
Other Operating Revenue 25,871,932.03 4,424,966.51
Less: Losses on disposal of fixed assets 31,140,310.64 8,832,544.21
Other Non-operating Expense 14,155,066.94 8,495,601.45
Totad |  302,348,315.75  181,184,838.48




Summary of Accounting and Business Data S —

China Eastern Airlines Corporatfon Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

Notes:
1. The major accounting data and financial indicators in 2002 are adjusted pursuant to the same accounting policies in 2003.
2. Caleutation of Major Financlal Indicators:

Earning/(L.oss) per Share = Net Profit/{_oss) + Total Number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year

Net Assets per Share = Shareholders’ Equity at the end of year + Total number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year

Net Assets per Share after Adjustments = [Shareholders’ Equity at the end of year — Accounts Receivable aged more than 3 years - Deferred &
Prepaid Expenses - Net Loss on Assets {current and fixed) to be disposed of - Pre-operating expenses ~ Long-term Deferred & Prepaid Expenses
- Negative Balance of housing fund] + Total Number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year

Net Amount of Cash Flow per Share Created by Business Operation = Net Amount of cash flow created by Business Operation + Total Number of
Ordinary Shares at the end of year

Return on Net Assets = Net Profit/(Loss) + Shareholders’ Equity at the end of year 100%

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (Expressed in RMB million, except share capital)

Statutory Shareholders’

Share Capital Capital  Surplus Common Unallocated Cash Equity

(unit 10,000) Reserve Reserve Welfare Fund Profit Dividend Total

Beginning Balance 486,695.00 1,147.09 118,81 58.90 » (905.93) 0 5,226.91
Increase, Current - 76.14 67.13 31.84 536.34 97.34 776.95
Decrease, Current - 40.54 - - 165.15 0 205.69
Ending Balance 486,695.00 1,182.68 185.84 90.74 (634.74) 97.34 5,798.17

increase in the capital reserve is mainly due to increase in the provision for investment in shareholdings and special

appropriation.

Increase In the surplus reserve is due to increase in the profit after taxation of subsidiaries.

Even though these are provisions in surplus reserve, welfare and incentive fund of staff and cash bonus, the profit

increase still results in an increase in the unallocated profit for the period.

. Increase in shareholders’ equity is mainly due to the profit for the period and increase in the capital reserve.
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6 China Eastern Airiines Corporation Limited

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 Change
Capacity

ATK (available tonne-kilometers) (millions) 7,071.21 4,774.50 48.10%
— Domestic routes 2,466.76 1,826.49 28.04%

— international routes 3,920.75 2,380.96 63.98%

- Hong Kong routes 683.70 457.04 49.59%
ASK (available seat-kilometers) (millions) 41,599.11 29,779.98 39.69%
-~ Domestic routes 20,634.98 15,800.17 29.70%

— Interngational routes 16,106.66 10,178.43 58.24%

- Hong Kong routes 4,857.47 3,692.38 31.55%
AFTK (available freight tonne-kilometers) (millions) 3,327.29 2,094.30 58.87%
— Domestic routes 609.61 494.67 23.24%

- International routes 2,471.15 1,474.90 67.55%

- Hong Kong routes 246.53 124.73 97.65%
Hours flown (thousands) 360.35 259.41 38.91%

Traffic

RTK (revenue tonne-kilometers) (millions) 4,340.70 2,907.70 49.28%
- Domestic routes 1,625.24 1,180.14 37.72%

- International routes 2,319.78 1,473.93 57.39%

- Hong Kong routes 395.68 253.63 56.01%
RPK (revenue passenger-kilometers) (millions) 27,580.81 18,002.71 53.20%
— Domestic routes 14,499.64 10,301.78 40.75%

— International routes 10,043.05 5,767.26 74.14%

- Hong Kong routes 3,038.12 1,833.67 57.12%
RFTK (revenue freight tonne-kilometers) (millions) 1,874.70 1,286.61 44.58%
- Domestic routes 327.64 258.09 25.95%

- International routes 1,423.01 957.92 48.55%

— Hong Kong routes 124.05 80.60 53.91%
Number of passengers carried (thousands) 17,710.97 12,040.19 47.10%
— Domestic routes 12,736.64 8,876.82 43.48%

- International routes 2,814.06 1,732.63 62.42%

- Hong Kong routes 2,160.27 1,430.74 50.99%
Weight of cargo and mail carried (millions of kg) 663.55 459.81 44.31%
- Domestic routes 261.68 205.34 27.44%

- International routes 316.85 197.83 60.16%

- Hong Koeng routes 85.02 56.64 50.10%

11




Load Factor
Qverall load factor (%)
— Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Passenger load factor (%)
- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Freight load factor (%)
— Domestic routes
- International routes
— Hong Kong routes

Break-even load factor (%)

Yield and Cost Statistics

Revenue tonne-kilometers yield (RMB})

— Domestic routes
— International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Passenger-kilometers yield (RMB)

- Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Freight tonne-kilometers yield (RMB)

— Domestic routes
- International routes
- Hong Kong routes

Available tonne-kilometers unit cost (RMB)

Selected Airline Operating Data —

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

61.39
65.89
59.17
57.87

66.30
70.27
62.35
62.55

56.34
53.75
57.58
50.32

61.62

4.56
5.28
3.63
7.02

0.56
0.57
0.49
0.72

2.36
0.91
2.49
4.77

2.81

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

For the year enced
December 31, 2003

Change

60.90  +0.49pt
6126  +4.63pt
61.65 -2.48pt
55.49  +2.38pt

60.45 +5.85pt
64.75 +5.52pt
56.66 +5.69pt
52.37  +10.18pt

61.91 -5.57pt
52.17 +1.58pt
64.95 -7.37pt

64.62  -14.30pt

£63.64 -2.02pt
4.62 -1.30%
4.97 +8.24%
3.79 -4.22%

7.95 -11.70%

0.57 -1.75%
0.54 +5.56%
0.53 -7.55%

0.84 -14.29%

2.46 -4.07%
1.08 -15.74%
2.63 -5.32%
4.84 -1.45%
2.94 -4.42%

*Note: China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Limited (“CEA Wuhan") is a joint venture not majority-owned by the Company. The operating data of CEA Wuhan

therefore are not consolidated herein.
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Egstorn Aidines Corporation Limitea I

Li Fenghua, Chairman

e-report on the operating

results of China Eastern Aidines Corporation Limited (the

“Company”) and its subsidiaries {collectively, the

“Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2004. On

behalf of all the staff of the Group, | would like to extend
my sincere thanks to the shareholders for their support

of the Group.
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10 China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

In 2004, a vigorous and synchronized economic In terms of passenger traffic, the Company successively
recovery was underway in many regions and countries launched passenger routes including Shanghai-Kuala
around the world; overall, the economic performance Lumpur, Shanghai-London, and Shanghai-Vancouver
was better than the previous year. After experiencing a during the year, to further improve its route network,
sectoral overheating, and a macro-economic distinctly enhance the coverage of the Group's routes
adijustment made by the State, the national economy from the airports in Shanghai, and build up a preliminary
of the PRC got well on a gradual track to stability and system of flights to connect to the Shanghai hub.
coordinated development, while maintaining an overall Meanwhile, the Group streamlined the transfer and
momentum for energetic and speedy growth. connection flight procedures, rationally allocated flights,

and also introduced different fares for connection flights

Amid the beneficial macro-economic environment of the to meet the needs of different travelers. All this improved
PRC, to meet the growing air transport demand and to our transit service quality and, as a result, the number
fight off the intensifying market competition, the Group of passengers who used our transit services exceeded
took a series of measures, including, among others a 300,000 persons/time. New products have been
redeployment of its capacity, to expand its operating introduced through our detailed market research.
scale in the Shanghai as the hub in prompt and orderly Working with partner hotels, the Group launched Eastern
manner. As of December 31, 2004, the Group Holiday ((EZ 1T A B 5F ) product series. By updating
accounted for 41.1% and 31.1% of all the flight traffic its sales model and building up its marketing application
at Honggiao and Pudong airports, respectively. The system, the Group effectively increased its income and
average daily aircraft utilization rate reached 9.7 hours, improved its service guality.

an increase of 1.7 hours
compared to 2003. On April 1,
2004, the new Proéedures for
Collecting Funds for Civil
Aviation Infrastructure
Construction (RMEIEERE
MU HHE), promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance of the ‘ ) : '
PRC, came into effect. The ‘ 1 e ? ! ﬁ ‘: .
, .
Group opined that the new b2 ?ﬂ'.!#ﬂ ﬁﬁm_t ]§ -
collection procedures can , . ‘
effectively reduce the amount of :

its payable contribution.
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In terms of freight traffic, the Group currently owns a
total of six MD11 freighters and has a wet-leased
freighter A300F, thus further enhancing its capacity on
the more profitable cargo routes operating between the
PRC and Europe, the United States, Japan, South Korea
and Hong Kong. A new cargo flight on the route
Shanghai-Dallas was launched, signifying a significant
expansion of the freight service. In the meantime, the
Group laid the foundation for the growth of its freight
business by setting up its freight management
department, establishing a cargo carriage service
marketing system to enhance its freight management,
incorporating Shanghai Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd, ( £
EEFENRDAEEBR AT, proactively founding a
logistic platform for the operation of the Company, and
building up China Eastern Airlines as a brand for the

flyers’ recognition and awareness.

In terms of service, the year 2004 saw the continual
provision by the Group of its consistent high
quality services under its
famous brands of "China
Shuttle”, “BTBT” (EEE %)
and “Shanghai Beljing Express”
(RERE). Under the Group’s
continual effort to carry out the
scheme of “Eastern Miles” for
frequent flyers, the number of
frequent flyers surpassed 4.46
million, with a flight-taking rate
of nearly 50%, bringing the
influence of the Group's
products into full play. The
special service hotline "95108”

call-centre was established and
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China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

came into operation. Further, China Eastern Customer
Service Scheme was launched in June 2004 to raise
the Group’'s service standard. The direct sales
management was strengthened, and the publicity and
promotion work for electronic air tickets were enhanced.
Currently, the Group's electronic tickets are available
for sale in 22 cities nationwide. Our business is under

smooth development.

Compared to 2003, the Group’s total traffic volume
increased by 49.28% to 4,341 million tonne-kilometers
in 2004. Traffic revenues increased by RMB6,338 million
to RMB19,786 million, a 47.13% increase compared
to 2003.

Compared to 2003, our passenger revenues increased
by 49.67% to RMB15,358 million in 2004, accounting
for 77.62% of our total revenues in 2004. The volume

of passenger traffic was 27,581 million passenger-

kilometers, a 53.20% increase compared to 2003,

i1
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

The passenger traffic volume on our Hong Kong routes
was 3,038 million passenger-kilometers in 2004, 2 57.12%
increase compared to 2003. Compared to 2003, the
revenues increased by 34.39% to RMB2,187 million in
2004, accounting for 14.24% of our passenger revenues
in 2004. The passenger traffic capacity on our Heng Kong

routes increased by 31.55% compared to 2003.

Our international passenger traffic volume was 10,043
million passenger-kilometers in 2004, a 74.14% increase
compared to 2003. Compared to 2003, the revenues
increased by 60.65% to RMB4,887 million in 2004,
accounting for 31.82% of our total passenger revenues
in 2004, The passenger capacity on international routes
increased by 58.24% compared to 2003. It was mainly
due to the market recovery after SARS and the increase
in market demand contributed from the recovering

global economy in 2004.

Qur cargo and mail traffic volume was 1,875 million

tonne-kilometers in 2004, a 44.58% increase compared

L7 482557, 222 Z777
LYYy LTy 77r7 24 Koy
77

to 2003. Compared to 2003, the freight revenues
increased by 38.94% to RMB4,428 million in 2004,

accounting for 21.05% of our total revenues in 2004.

Compared to 2003, our total operating costs increased

by 39.65% to RMB19,714 million in 2004.

Expenditure on aviation fuel reached RMB5,430 million,
a 78.33% increase compared to 2003. In 2004 the Group
consumed a total of 1,454,500 tonnes of aviation fuel,
an increase of 42.08% compared to 2003. The main
reason was that in 2004 the Group expanded its business
and increased its number of flights while international
aviation fuel prices went up in 2004. The average
domestic and international aviation fuel prices increased

by 24.36% and 30.60%, respectively, compared to 2003.

The salaries were RMB1,866 million in 2004, a 28.78%
increase compared to 2003, principally a result of
expansion of the company and its main operations. These

led to an increase in workforce and their average salaries.

The takeoff and landing
charges were RMB3,020

- million, a 33.95% increase

compared to 2003, due largely
to the expansion of the
Group's business and the

increased number of flights.

In summary, the profits
attributable to shareholders
were RMB514 million for the
year ended December 31,

2004.




As of December 31, 2004, the Group had a total of
20,817 employees, most of whom work in the PRC. The
employees’ compensation is primarily composed of the
basic salary and performance-based bonus. There were
no labor disputes between the Group and its employees.
The Group did not experience a material loss of employees

or encounter any difficulties in recruiting new employees.

In January 2001, we joined the employee medical
insurance scheme introduced by the Shanghai
government. The Group and the employees pay
premiums at the approximate rates of 12% and 2%
respectively, of the basic salary. We are not liable for
any medical costs cther than our contributions to the
scheme. We believe that the implementation of the
scheme will have no serious impact on our operations

and finances.

We finance our working capital requirements by the
funds generated from operations and short-term bank
loans. As of December 31, 2003 and December 31,
2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,583 million and RMB2,114 million respectively.
In 2003 and 2004, our net cash inflows generated from
operating activities were RMB3,163 million and
RMBS3,266 million respectively, while our net cash
outflows used in investment activities were RMB7,305
million and RMB2,433 million respectively. In the past

two years, our primary cash requirements were the

wnainmnan S oGy
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funds for the acquisitions and upgrades of aircraft and
flight equipment and debt repayments. Our net cash
inflow in financing activities in 2003 was RMB3,764
million, largely for the purpose of repayments of long-
term loans, finance lease obligations and short-term
loans. Our net cash outflow generated from financing
activities was RMB312 million in 2004, primarily from

bank loans.

We generally operate with a working capital deficit. As
of December 31, 2004, our current liabilities exceeded
our current assets by RMB 12,502 million. For years we
have arranged, and we believe that we will be able to
continue to arrange, short-term loans through domestic
banks in the PRC and foreign-funded banks to meet
our working capital requirements. As of December 31,
2003 and December 31, 2004, the total amounts of
our short-term loans were RMB4,632 million and
RMB6,189 million respectively, and our long-term ioans
were RMB11,223 million and RMB10,736 million

respectively.

We generally finance our purchase of aircraft t_hrough
operating leases and bank loans secured by our assets.
As of December 31, 2004, the total value of our
mortgaged assets increased by 33.88%, from
RMBQ9,735 million as of the end of 2003 to
RMB13,033 million.
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We would like tc caution readers of this report that
operation of the Group, an air transport enterprise which
performs public service functions, is linked closely to
political and economic situations, both internationally
and locally. As such, the operation of the Group and of
the whole sector is, to a substantial extent, subject to
the risks associated with geopolitics and the outbreaks
of unexpected events. This 2004 annual report of the
Group contains (but not limited to) certain forward-
looking statements, such as those on the economies
of Asia including the PRC, and the aviation market. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to many

uncertainties and risks.

having a vigorous recovery, and the overall eccnomic
situation was positive. The United States, Euro Region
and Japan saw a synchronized economic recovery. The
developing economies in Asia were under speedy
development. Amid macro-econemic adjustments and
sectoral de-heating, the PRC economy maintained its
stable development trend, and will obtaining increasing
preminence and importance both in status and functions

in the global economic context.

In a global perspective, the regional economic
integration is accelerating and forging ahead in giobal
areng; the trade volume is escalating, while bilateral and
multi-lateral trade remains a strong driving force behind
economic growth. After its accession to the WTO, the

PRC sees its aggregate foreign

import and export trade volume

The Company opines that in 2004, despite the impact
of the volatite price fluctuations of crude oil, the majority

of the regions and countries around the world were
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increase briskly and surpasses
its GDP growth, and the PRC is
now an actual trading power
and no longer a potential one.
The sound economy of the PRC
and the significant increase of
its import has brought forth
business opportunities to many
countries. With the furtherance
of the processes associated
with PRC's entry to the WTO,
the PRC will, to an even greater
extent and depth, participate in
economic technological
co-opetition in international field
and will at the same time contribute to the demand and

speedy growth of the domestic aviation market.




Currently, the PRC is at a stage of increasing

consumption. With its large territory, the PRC possesses
rich resources for tourism development, thus bringing
forth a significant increase in air travelers’ demand for
consumption goods, which in turn means a huge
potential for air transport development. By timely
adjusting and allocating its transport capacity, and by
increasing its transport turnover in all aspects, the Group
is going to grasp the business opportunities created by
the increasing demand and by holidays and travel

seasons, so as to boost its operating revenues.

Shanghai, where the Group's headquarters is located,
is now firmly established with increasing importance as
the centre of the PRC economy, finance and aviation.
Cities in the Yangtze River Delta, with Shanghai as their
leading core, have recorded the fastest economic
development rate in the PRC. Preliminary results have

been produced from the cooperation plan between Civil

CHITGTT o OtuiTinicr .
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Aviation Administration
of China ("Aviation
Administration”} and Shanghai
Municipal Government for
developing Shanghai into an
international first-class aviation
hub. The plan has a gradually
increasing effect on both
convergence and generation
of the passenger and logistics
volumes in the region. To
utilize the favorable
opportunities from strong
market demand, the Group is
going to further acquire aircraft
in 2005, including five Airbus A320, two Airbus A321,
three Boeing B737-800 and three ERJ145. The Group
believes that it will continue to benefit from the increasing
regional transport market demand. In addition, the pace
for implementing the Open Skies Agreement is
accelerating. The PRC Government plans to gradually
open the aviation market in Shanghai in phases. This
will bring about an even denser passenger and logistics
volumes, and the local air transport market will see keen
competition. While keeping a close eye on the opening
of aviation right, the Group is dedicated to increasing
its market share in the Shanghai region by adjusting
and optimizing our route network, providing products
and services to customers’ satisfaction, increasing
further our investment in our operating base, taking the
initiative to adopt various effective measures, and
capturing opportunities and facing up to challenges

proactively.
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In light of the market environment and our current z.

operations, we plan to implement the following strategies

in order to enhance our competitiveness in 2005: Chirz Zester- Alrines
"o strenglinen egfely mensgemenl eng enrance In 2005, the Company will first invigorate the
Tlgntsefey functions of service quality control department,

continue to strengthen its existing products, and

In 2005, the Company will accomplish a solid job of promaote the brand image of its services. The Group
security management. To comply with the Airline will bolster and refine its 10 service projects such
Operational Control System ("*AOC"), the Company as “China Shuttle” and “Dedicated Services”. It will
will raise the punctuality rate of flights and strengthen also further promote its “BTBT” (JBARR) and
its flight services of irregularity. To meet the continue to carry out “Shanghai Beijing Express” (3%
requirements of the IATA Operational Safety Audit, JBIRER) so as to gain a brand advantage for and
the Group will unremittingly improve its security heighten the competitiveness of its routes. Great
management system, step up its surveillance importance will be attached to dealing with any
system, and improve an examination of self- frregularity in flight services, and prompt data
monitoring, examination and verification. communication with passengers.
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Efforts will be made to facilitate the building up of
Shanghai as an aviation hub, and to reinforce the
strategic planning of the Company’s route network.
The transport capacity deployed to East China
especially to Shanghai will be added so as to ensure
the Company’s advantageous position in the
strategic competition in building up Shanghai as the
aviation hub. By approaching various airport air traffic
control departments for cooperation, the Company
will make joint efforts with them to increase the flight
regularity rate. The Group will make use of the pivotal
advantages of the Shanghai airports, and hence
optimize its transit network and continue its transit
and connection flight services. This can achieve a
rational matching of the Company's route network

and its resources.

‘mnovalive marketing; stable improvement of

ot T T 2y
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The Company will step up its income management
and enhance the revenue quality of its passenger
trangport business. In income management, new
scientific management concepts will be introduced.
The Company will adopt an automatic system
clearing any unreliable ticket-booking and enhance
the management of ticket-booking. Marketing ideas
will be updated with emphasis on the revenue of a
route per seat/kilometer, so as to ensure the

maximization of overall revenue.

The Company also aims: to fully reverage our sales

information platform; to continue developing value-

China Eastern Airfines Corperation Limited

added sales business; to use the call centre as a
platform for developing its strategic cooperation with
non-aviation partners with a view to launching
personalized and characteristic products; to
enhance the quality of services to frequent flyers with
a view to scooping out high-end customers; to
develop the business of Eastern Holidays, {o
promptly promote our individual travel products to
the major tourist cities in the PRC; to do our best to
promote the e-commerce system; to gradually
Improve our electronic ticketing system; and to
extend the electronic ticketing system covering all
domestic routes in the PRC and, at the same time,
to actively extend the system covering international
routes. And the Company wilt enhance its strategic
cooperation, heighten the overall revenue of its
routes and continue to consolidate as well as
developing its code-sharing arrangement and joint
operation. It will further extend our route network,
increase the frequency of its flights, and lay the
foundation for maximization of the connection and

transit flights.

poe oy gt m e e B L I P
. Vo strengthen manage neal znu expand rsight

Jusiness

In 2005, the Group will continue its strategy for
developing cargo transport business and promoting
the development of aviation logistics. The Group will
fully utilize the cargo transport resources in Yangtze
River Delta, use the cargo holds of passenger jets
and cargo planes in combination, to increase its

investment and involvement in cargo onward flights.
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This can build up a highly effective logistic chain for
cargo carriage. The Group will also increase the sales
of cargo space in its outer stations and to expand
its SPA business cooperation. Based on Shanghai
(L BRAEMDRE

FR 25 ), a newly-established subsidiary, the Group

Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd.

will build up a cargo transshipment network in
Shanghai, with a view to establishing a logistic

network for Yangtze River Delta.

o v T
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2005 will see relatively uncertain aircraft fuel prices

while relatively tighter credit crunch, both

-

domestically and overseas, will add to the financing
costs and difficulties. The Group plans to take the
following measures to control its costs to the largest

extent:

To fully controt its budget management; to continue
a departmental responsibility system for all costs
and expenses; to tighten up the monitoring of
various controllable expenses, and to carry out

monitoring and management of cash flow budget;

To step up the project consulting and assessment
work relating to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; to
strengthen internal audit; to perfect internal financial
control; and to enhance protection against financial

risks; and to ensure the security of funds;




&

To reinforce the management of risks associated
with funds; to promptly track any changes in
exchange rates and any fluctuations of aircraft fuel;
and to reduce the risks with the application of

financial derivatives;

To beef up the management of flight equipment in a
com'prehensively manner; to dispose of idle flight
equipment rationally to lower the amount of tied-up

funds; and to lower the cost for repair;

To regulate its own investments; to place emphasis
on the control and management of investments; to
define the property ownership cleerly; and to ensure

better return on the Company’s investment.

To oromote Inftegration and smoesthly complele

regiructure

In order to smoothly fuilfill the strategic deployment
of the State Council for the joint restructuring of the
aviation industry, and the integration of the industry
as disctosed in the announcement dated October
11, 2002 issued by the Company, the Company is
working on the acquisition of the airline operating
assets of CEA Northwest and China Eastern Air
Yunnan Company (“CEA Yunnan"), companies
under China Eastern Air Holding Company ("CEA
Holding”), one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company. This move aims to increase the Group's
core competitiveness. The Group will devise an
optimum acquisition plan pursuant to legal
procedures, and also speed up the proper

centralization and integration of its security

Chairman’s Siciermen®

China Eastern Airfines Corperation Limited

management, fleet expansion, marketing, services
standards, and aviation egquipment deployment. We
believe that after the reorganization, the Group of
an enfarged scale will have an integration and
optimization of market shares, routes netwaorks, flest
scales and human resources. These are conducive
to the Company when building up an even more
perfect both the domestic and international route
network, and will contribute to the expansion of its

domestic market share.

If the relevant transaction(s) takes place, the
Company will ensure that the applicable regulatory

requirements will be complied with.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to

express my gratitude to all of the shareholders.

Li Fenghua

Chailrman

Shanghai, China
April 12, 2005
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‘ 8 routes, of which

i : g 15 routes to Hong

| Kong) and 59 are international routes (including 13
international cargo routes). We operated approximately
3,057 scheduled flights per week, serving a total of 88
foreign and domestic cities. In 2004, we added a total
of 10 new aircraft, including the purchase of two Airbus

A340-600 aircraft, five Airbus A320 aircraft and two

Airbus A321 aircraft as well as one Airbus A300F
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The following table sets forth getails of our fleet as of December 31, 2004:

As of December 31, 2004

Planned Additions™

Number of Aircraft Number of Aircraft
Owned or under under Operating Total Number of
Capital Leases- Leases Alrcraft 2005 2006
A340-600 5
A340-300 5
A330-300
A330-200
A300-600 7 3 10
A321 2
A320 25 10 35
A319 10 10 3
MD-90 ] 9
MD-82 3 3
B737-800 3
B737-700 . 4 7 11 6
B737-300 3 3 6
ERJ145 3 2
A300F 1 1
MD-11F 6 &
Total 66 37 103 13 21

Except for three Boeing B737-800 to be acquired under aperating leases, the other aircraft will be purchased by our group.

Review of Operating Results

The following discussion and analysis should be read
together with our audited financial statements and the
accompanying notes prepared in accordance with IFRS
that are included elsewhere in this annual report. The
financial data presented in this section are derived from
our audited financial staterments prepared in accordance
with IFRS.

Turnover. QOur turnover increased 47.4% from

RMB14,277 million in 2003 to RMB21,033 million in

2004. This increase was primarily due to an increase of
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our passenger and cargo revenues, which were net of

the applicable PRC sales tax.

Traffic revenues from our passenger as well as cargo
and mail transportation business increased 47.1% from
RMB13,448 million in 2003 to RMB13,786 miillion in
2004. Compared to 2003, the average aircraft daily

utilization increased by 1.7 hours to 9.7 hours in 2004.

Passenger revenues, which accounted for 77.6% of our
total traffic revenues in 2004, increased 49.7% from
RMB10,261 million in 2003 to RMB15,358 million in

2004, This increase was primarily due to the market
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recovery following the end of severe acute respiratory
syndrome (SARS) and the increase of our transportation

capacity.

Our domestic passenger revenues, which accounted
for 63.9% of our total passenger revenues, increased
48.1% from RMB5,592 million in 2003 to RMB8,284
million in 2004, This increase was principally a result of
the growing market demand following the end of SARS
and the expansion of our transportation capacity,
including the launch of new routes and increase in the
number of flights. Compared to 2003, our domestic
passenger traffic increased by 40.8% in 2004, and our

domestic passenger load factor increased from 64.8%

. in 2008 t0 70.3% in 2004. As a result of the favorable

conditicn in the domestic passenger market since the
end of 20083, we increased capacity on our domestic
routes by 29.7% in 2004. Our domestic passenger yield
increased from RMBO0.54 in 20083 to RMBO0.57 in 2004
per passenger-kilometer. This increase was principally
a result of the increased pricing level due to strong

demand in the domaestic transportation.

Hong Kong passenger revenues, which accounted for
14.2% of our total passenger revenues, increased
34.4% from RMB1,627 million in 2003 to RMB2,187
million in 2004. This increase was primarily due to the
market recovery following the end of SARS and the
increase in the number of business and leisure travelers.
Hong Kong passenger traffic increased by 57.1% in
2004 over that of 2003. In order to meet market
demand, we increased the passenger capacity on our
Hong Kong routes by 31.6% in 2004. Our Hong Kong
passenger load factor increased from 52.4% in 2003 to
82.6% in 2004, and our Hong Kong passenger vield
decreased from RMBO0.84 in 2003 to RMBO0.72 in 2004

per passenger-kilometer. The decrease in passenger

China Eastern Airtines Corporation Limited

yield on Hong Kong routes was primarily due to (1) an

increase in the number of leisure travelers, (2) various
promotions offered by us and (3) competition from other

airlines.

international passenger revenues, which accounted for
31.8% of our total passenger revenues, increased
60.7% from RMB3,042 million in 2003 tc RMB4,887
million in 2004. This increase was mainly due to the
market recovery following the end of SARS and the
increasing demand as a result of the recovering global
economy in 2004. As a result, international passenger
traffic increased by 74.1% in 2004 compared to 2003.
Our International passenger capacity increased by
58.2% in 2004 compared to 2003. Our international
passenger load factor increased from 56.7% in 2003 to
62.4% in 2004. Qur international passenger yield
decreased from RMBO0.53 in 2003 to RMBO0.49 in 2004
per passenger-kilometer. This decrease was primarily
due to the increase in the number of leisure travelers

and competition.

We generate cargo and mail revenues from the
transportation of cargo and mail on our designated
cargo aircraft as well as from the carriage of cargo and

mail on passenger aircraft. Revenues from cargo and

28
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mail operations, which accounted for 21.1% of our total

transportation revenues in 2004, increased 32.0% from
RMB3,187 million in 2003 to RMB4,428 million in 2004,
This increase was primarily due to the increasing
demand for cargo transportation driven by the
continuing rapid growth of China’s economy following
its accession to the World Trade Organization, the
increase of our transportation capacity as well as the
increase of our market share. Our cargo and mail traffic
(as measured in revenue freight tonne-kilometers, or
RFTKSs) increased 44.6% from 1,297 million RFTKs in
2003 to 1,875 million RFTKs in 2004. This increase
was primarily due to a significant increase in the capacity
of our cargo transportation which resulted from the
completion of the remodeling of MD-11 passenger aircraft
into freighters, launch of new routes as well as an increase
in the number of passenger flights which also carry cargo.
Cargo vyield decreased from RMB2.46 in 2003 to
RMB2.36 in 2004 per cargo tonne-kilometer. This

decrease was primarily due to intensified competition.
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Other operating revenues are primarily generated
from airport ground services and ticket handling
services. Airport ground services include loading and
unloading, aircraft cleaning, fueling and ground
transportation of cargo and passenger luggage for
airlines operating to or from Hong Qiao International
Airport and Pudong International Airport. We are
currently the principal provider of airport ground
services at both Hong Qiao international Airport and
Pudong International Airport. Other operating
revenues increased 51.1% from RMB829 million in
2003 to RMB1,253 million in 2004, which is higher
than the 39.0% growth rate achieved in 2003. This
increase was mainly due to the increase in the number
of flights following the end of SARS and the
enhancement of our capability in carriage, storage

and handling of cargo with the establishment of

Shanghai Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd..
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Other net operating income included rental income from
operating sublease of aircraft and government subsidy
net of loss on disposal of aircraft and engines. QOur other
operating income increased to RMB154 million in 2004
from RMB61 million in 2003. This increase was primarily
due to a significant increase in rental income from

operating sublease of aircraft.

Operating Expenses. Our total operating expenses
increased 39.7% from RMB14,117 million in 2003 to
RMB19,714 milion in 2004. This increase was primarily
due to increases in aviation fuel expenses, aircraft
depreciation and operating lease expenses, take-off and
landing charges, food and beverage expenses, salary
costs, commission expenses and other expenses. Our
total operating expenses as a percentage of our turnover
decreased from 88.9% in 20083 to 93.7% in 2004.

Aviation fuel expenses increased 78.3% from
RMB3,045 million in 2008 to RMBS5,430 million in 2004.
This increase was principally a result of our business
expansion in 2004 and the increased international
aviation fuel prices in 2004. In 2004, we consumed a
total of 1,454,500 tonnes of aviation fuel, representing
an increase of 42.1% compared to 2003. In 2004, the
weighted average domastic and international fuel prices
paid by our company compared to 2003 increased by

approximately 24.4% and 30.6%, respectively.

Aircraft depreciation and operating lease expenses
increased 28.8% from RMB2,851 million in 2003 to
RMB3,672 million in 2004. This increase was primarily
due to our fleet expansion. Other depreciation,
amortization and operating lease expenses increased
from RMB495 million in 2003 to RMB498 million in
2004.

The wages, salaries and benefits increased 28.8% from

RMB1,448 million in 2003 to RMB1,866 milion in 2004,

This increase was primarily due to an increase in the
number of staff resulting from the expansion of the Group
and our main operations as well as an increase in staff's
average salaries with the introduction of an incentive
compensation plan that is linked to profit. The increase
was also partially attributable to the introduction of an
incentive plan for our pilots that links allowances to flying

hours.

Take-off and landing charges increased 34.0% from
RMB2,254 million in 2003 to RMB3,020 million in 2004,
which accounted for 15.3% of our total operating

expenses in 2004. This increase was primarily due to
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the expansion of our business and the increased number

of flights.

Alircraft maintenance expenses were RMB 1,396 million
in 2004, compared to RMB1,329 million in 2003, an
increase of 5.0%. This increase was mainly due to the
increased aircraft maintenance performed as a result of

the increase in the number of our flights in 2004.

Commission expenses increased 66.0% from RMB465
million in 2003 to RMB772 million in 2004. This increase
was primarily due to the increase in an revenues of our

domestic and international businesses.

Food and beverage expenses increased 39.9% from
RMBS542 million in 2003 to RMB758 million in 2004.
This increase was primarily due to an increase in the
number of travelers which was partially offset by a
decrease of the average cost of food and beverage as

a result of our cost-control initiatives.
Office and administration expenses increased by 26.5%

from RMB1,058 million in 2003 to RMB1,338 million in

2004. This increase was primarily due to an increase in
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pilot and aircrew training expenses, overseas expenses

as well as travel expenses.

Other operating expenses increased 53.8% from
RMB828 million in 2003 to RMB966 million in 2004,
Other operating expenses mainly included SITA ticket
reservation system charges, SITA departure control
system charges, civil aviation infrastructure levy,
provision for cbsolescence of flight equipment spare
parts, maintenance expenses and loss on disposal of
other fixed assets, insurance costs, investment income
and expenses relating to the newly-established
Shanghai Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd.. This increase was
mainly attrioutable to increases in SITA ticket reservation
system charges, SITA departure control system charges,
civil aviation infrastructure levy as well as expenses
relating to the newly-established Shanghai Eastern

Logistics Co., Ltd..

MNon-operating Income. Non-operating income was
RMB133 million in 2004, which was due to the rescission
of certain related party lease arrangements between
China Eastern Northwest Company and us. For more
details, please see note 38(c)(ii) to the financial

statements.

Net Profits. As a result of the foregoing, net profit
attributable to shareholders was RMB514 million in 2004
compared to a loss of RMBS50 million in 2003.

Fixed Assets. QOur company had approximately
RMB30,220 million of fixed assets as of December 31,
2004, including aircraft and flight equipment with a value
of approximately RMB27,169 million. Fixed assets are
initially recognized at cost and are subsequently stated
at revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation.
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Valuation of fixed assets is based on market conditions
and global economic factors that we may not control.
The determination of fair value requires significant
judgment, including judgment on valuations by our
management and/or by independent professional
appraisers. Qur directors have reviewed the carrying
value of our fixed assets as of December 31, 2004 and
are of the opinion that the carrying amount is not

materially different from the fair value of our fixed assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We finance our working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and
short-term bank loans. As a result, our liguidity would
be adversely affected 1o the extent there is a significant
decrease in demand for our services, or any delay in
obtaining bank loans. As of December 31, 2003 and
2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,583
million and RMB2,114 million, respectively. In 2003 and
2004, our net cash inflows generated from operating
activities were RMB3,163 million and RMB3,266 million,

respectively, while our net cash outflows used in

investment activities were RMB7,305 million and
RMB2,433 million, respectively. in the past two years,
our primary cash requirements were the funds for the
acquisitions and upgrades of aircraft and flight

equipment and debt repayments.

In 2003 and 2004, payment of advances on aircraft and
flight equipment were RMB1,296 million and RMB2,410
million, respectively, while additicns of aircraft and flight
equipment were RMB5,560 million and RMB1,207
million, respectively. We financed the additions to our
aircraft and flight eguipment primarily through lease
arrangements, bank loans, and funds generated from
operations. Funds generated from disposal of old
aircraft and flight equipment and other fixed assets and
eqguipment (including by way of exchange) totaled
RMBS2 million and RMBB68 million in 2003 and 2004,
respectively. Our net cash outflow generated from
financing activities was RMB312 million in 2004, primarily

from bank loans.

Pursuant to certain of our finance or operating leases,
we are required to indemnify the lessors against any
withholding or similar taxes that may be
imposed on the lessors by taxing authorities
in China with regard to payments made
under these leases. Pursuant to a regulation
issued in 2000 by the State Tax Bureau of
China, lease payments made by Chinese
airlines to foreign enterprises in respect of
lease arrangements entered into prior to
September 1, 1999 are exempt from the
payment of any withholding tax. Withholding
tax payable in respect of the lease
arrangements entered into on or after
September 1, 1999 are charged to our

income statement as incurred.
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We generally cperate with a working capital deficit. As
of December 31, 2004, our current liabilities exceeded
our current assets by RMB12,502 million, while our
current liabilities exceeded our current assets by
RMB9,941 million as of December ‘81, 2003. The
increase in our current liabilities in 2004 was due to
increase in short-term bank loans and the portion of
long-term bank loans payable within one year. Short-
term loans outstanding totaled RMB4,632 million and
RMB6G,189 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2004,
respectively. Long-term loans outstanding totaled
RMB11,223 million and RMB10,738 million as of
December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. Long-term
loans payable within two years, from three to five years
and beyond five years were 5,580 miliion, RMB3,216
million and EMB1,940 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2004, as compared to RMB4,682 million,
RMB4,164 million and RMB2,370 million, respectively,
as of December 31, 2003. The total lease obligations
outstanding under our finance leases as of December
31, 2008 and 2004 were RMB7,101 million and
RMB8,662 million, respectively. Our lease obligations
payable within two years, from three to five years and
beyond five years were RMB2,889 million, RMB3,756
million and RMB2,017 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2004, as compared to RMB2,679
million, RMB4,039 million and RMB383 million,

respectively, as of December 31, 2003.

We have, and in the future may continue to have,
substantial debts. As of December 31, 2003 and 2004,
our long-term debt to equity ratio was 2.6 and 2.5,
respectively. The interest expenses associated with
these debts might impair our future profitability. We
expect that cash from operations and bank borrowings
Will be sufficient to meet our operating cash flow
requirements, although events that materially affect our

operating results can also have a negative impact on
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liquidity. We have entered into credit facility agreements
with Chinese banks to meet our future working capital
needs. We have arranged, and we believe that we will
continue to be able to arrange, short-term bank loans
with domestic and foreign-funded banks in China as
necessary to meet our working capital requirements.
However, our ability to obtain financing may be affected
by our financial position and leverage, as well as by
prevailing economic conditions and the cost of financing
generally. If we are unable to obtain financing for a
significant portion of cur capital requirements, our ability
to acquire new aircraft or to expand our operations could

be impaired.

Capital Expenditures

Our aircraft orders as of December 31, 2004 included
commitments to acquire 31 aircraft to be delivered in
2005 and 2006. Wé expect our capital expenditures for
aircraft and related equipment, including deposits,
throcugh 2006 to be in aggregate approximately
RMB8,731 million, including RMB6,945 million in 2005
and RMB1,350 million in 2006, in each case subject to
contractually stipulated increases or any increase relating
to inflation. We generally finance our purchase of aircraft
through operating leases and bank loans secured by our
assets. As of December 31, 2004, the total value of our

mortgaged assets increased by 33.9%, from RMB2,735
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million as of December 31, 2003 to RMB13,033 million
as of December 31, 2004. Construction of our facilities
at the Pudong International Airport and the purchase of
maintenance eguipment and other property and
equipment will continue to require additional capital
expenditures in 2005. We plan to finance our other capital
commitments through a combination of funds generated
from operations, existing credit facilities, bank loans,
leasing arrangements and other external financing

arrangements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

We have debts denominated in U.S. dollars, Japanese
yen or Euro in addition to our debts denominated in
Renminbi. We generate a significant amount of foreign
currency revenues, including U.S. dollar, Japanese ven,
Euro, Korean won, Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar,
Australian dollar, and Thailand baht revenues, from ticket
sales made in overseas offices. Pursuant to current
foreign exchange regulations in China, we may retain
our foreign currency earnings subject to the approval of
SAFE, which are generally sufficient to satisfy our foreign
currency liabilities payable within one year. We have
also designated certain personnel to manage
the foreign currency risks through derivative
financial products such as for.vvard foreign
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps.
We use interest rate swaps to reduce risks
related to changes in market interest rates.
As of December 31, 2004, the notional
amount of the outstanding interest rate swap
agreements was approximately US$437
million, compared to US$164 million as of
December 31, 2003. These interest rate
swap agreements will expire between 2006
and 2013. In addition, we use currency

forward contracts to reduce risks related 1o

changes in currency exchange rates in respect of ticket
sales and expenses denominated in foreign currencies.
As of December 31, 2004, the notional amount of the
outstanding currency forward contracts was
approximately US$226 million, compared to US$237
miflion as of December 31, 2003. These currency

forward contracts will expire between 2006 and 2010.

Pursuant to IFRS, our monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are required to be
translated into Renminbi at the year end at exchange
rates announced by the People's Bank of China. The
net exchange gains or losses are recognized and
reflected in the income statement for the relevant year.
Any fluctuation of the exchange rates between Renminbi
and foreign currencies may materially adversely affect
our financial condition and resuits of operations. The
exchange rate between Renminbi and Japanese yen or
Eurc had experienced a significant level of fluctuation

over the past two years. We had a net exchange gain

of RMB40 milliont in 2004, compared to a net exchange

loss of RMB70 miliion in 2003.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the audited financial report of the
Company and its subsidiaries {the “Group”) for the year

ended December 31, 2004,

Group Activities and Resulis

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in
the People's Republic of China {the "PRC”) based on
tonne-kilometres and number of passengers carried in

2004 and is the primary air carrier serving Shanghai,

NCPUNE UL DTSV O
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the largest economic, trading and financial centre of
the PRC. The results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2004 and the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at that date, prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and PRC Accounting Regulations,

are set out in the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFRS.,

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from principal business is as follows:

PRC Accounting

Regulations IFRS

(RMB'000) (RMB’000)

Domestic 8,582,109 8,582,547
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) 2,812,781 2,778,818
International 8,408,254 8,424,609
Total 19,893,144 19,785,974

Dividends such dividend distribution (converted into their

As of December 31, 2004, based on the financial
statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting
Standards, the Company’s accumulative profit
distributable to shareholders was RMB443,488,200.
Having considered the Company's cash flow position
in 2005, the Board of Directors recommended
distribution of the Company's accumulative
undistributed profits to all shareholders in the form of
cash dividends of RMB0.02 per share (including tax)
based on an aggregate of 4,866,950,000 shares of the
Company as at December 31, 2004. Holders of H

shares and ADSs will receive an equivalent amount of

respective currencies) based on the average foreign
exchange rate within the five business days subsequent
1o the 2004 Annual General Meeting as published by
the Pecple’s Bank of China, representing a total of cash
dividend payment of RMB97,339,000 (excluding the
expenses for the distribution of the above dividend). The
balance of retained profits will be carried forward to next
year. The Company will not convert funds from the
common reserve to increase its share capital during this
period. The Board of Directors also decided that the
above distribution proposal will be submitted to the 2004

Annual General Meeting for approval by its shareholders.

36

31




32

REDOCIT O1 LIreciors

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Share Capital Structure

As at December 31, 2004, the share capital structure of the Company in 2004 remained unchanged as follows;

Approximate Increase/ Approximate
At the percentage (Decrease) At the percentage
beginning in total  in shareholding end of the in total issued
of the year  issued share  during the year year share capital
(10,000 shares) capital (%) (10,000 shares) (10,000 shares) (%)
1. Unlisted shares
(a) A shares (unlisted
State-owned legal
person shares) 300,000 61.64 0 300,000 61.64
2. Listed shares
(a) H shares 156,695 32.20 0 156,695 32.20
{b) A shares 30,000 6.16 0 30,000 6.16
0 486,695 100

3. Total number of shares 486,695

Number of Shareholders

As at December 31, 2004, the total number of registered
shareholders of the Company was 100,815, of which
98,699 are holders of A shares (including unlisted
State-owned legal person shares and listed A shares),

and 2,216 are holders of H shares.

Substantial Shareholders

So far as the Directors are aware, each of the following
persons, not being a Director, chief executive,
Supervisor or membper of the Company’s senior

management, had, as at December 31, 2004, an interest
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and / or short position in the Company's shares or
underlying shares (as the case may be) which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”)
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or
was otherwise, as at December 31, 2004, interested in
5% or more of any class of the then issued share capital
of the Company, or was otherwise, as at December
31, 2004, a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)) of the

Company:
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As at December 31, 2004

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Name of Nature of Number of total issued total issued total issued Short
shareholder shares held shares heid share capital A shares H shares position
China Eastern A shares (unlisted  3,000,000,000 61.64% 90.91% - -
Air Holding State-owned legal
Company person shares)
HKSCC Nominees
Limited (Note) H shares 1,483,815,163  30.49% - 94.69% -
Note:

Based on the information available to the Directors as at December
31, 2004 (including such information as was available on the website
of the Stock Exchange) and so far as the Directors are aware, as at
December 31, 2004:

Among the 1,483,815,163 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. had an interest in an aggregate of
92,424,700 H shares of the Company {representing approximately
5.90% of its then total issued H shares). Out of the 82,424,700
. H shares, J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. had an interest in a lending pool
comprising 2,098,000 H shares of the Company (representing
approximately 0.13% of its then total issued H shares). According to
the information as disclosed in the website of the Stock Exchange and
so far as the Directors are aware, J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. held its
interest in the Company in the manner as follows:

(@) 2,098,000 H shares in a lending poal, representing approximately
10.13% of the Company's then total issued H shares, were held
by JPMaorgan Chase Bank, which was 100% held by J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co.;

(b) 792,700 H shares, representing approximately 0.05% of the
Company's then total issued H shares, were held in the capacity
as beneficial owner by J.P. Morgan Whitefriars inc., which was
ultimately 100% held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.; and

(c) 89,534,000 H shares, representing approximately 5.71% of the
Company's then total issued H sharss, were held in the capacity
as investment manager by JF Asset Management Limited. JF
Asset Management Limited was approximately 99.99% held by
J.P. Morgan Fleming Asset Management {Asia) Inc., which, in
turn, was ultimately 100% held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co..

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors
are aware, as at December 31, 2004, no other person
(other than the Directors, chief executives, Supervisors
or members of senior management of the Company)
had an interest or short position in the Company’s
shares or underlying shares (as the case may bej which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
was otherwise a substantial shareholder (as defined in

the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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According to the relevant disclosure reguirements laid down by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, as at

the end of the reporting period, the 10 largest registered shareholders and the 10 largest registered listed stock

shareholders on the register of members and their respective shareholdings are as follows:

The 10 largest registered shareholders of the Company and their respective shareholdings

Increase/ |
(Decrease)in  Shareholding Charged or '
Name of §hareholding at the end of Percentage Type of locked-up  Nature of i
shareholders in the year year (%) shares shares shares held 1
1. CHINA EASTERN 0 3,000,000,000 61.6402 unlisted 0© A shares
AIR HOLDING {Unlisted
COMPANY State-owned
legal person
shares)
2. HKSCC NOMINEES 14,981,800 1,483,815,163  30.4875 listed Unknown H shares
LIMITED
3. DE-SHENG 11,282,290 11,282,290 0.2318 listed Unknown A shares
SMALL CAP
(f2mk/ha2)
4. TONG QIAN FUND 6,757,766 6,757,766 0.1388 listed Unknown A shares
(BEES)
5. PUFENG FUND 6,334,069 8,334,069 0.1301 listed Unknown A shares
(BEE%)
6. ANXIN FUND 4,099,949 4,099,949 0.0842 listed Unknown A shares
(REE%)
7. HSBC NOMINEES 756,000 3,756,000 0.0768 listed Unknown H shares
(HONGKONG)
LIMITED {A/C BR-9}
8. JINTAIFUND 3,179,824 3,179,824 0.0653 listed Unknown A shares
(8F2%)
9. CHINA 3,077,232 3,077,232 0.0632 listed Unknown A shares
INTERNATIONAL
FUND (L#HER)
10.  SUZHOU SECURITIES 2,739,620 2,739,620 0.0563 listed Unknown A shares

(FMEH)

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10 largest shareholders:

The Company is not aware of any related party or concert party relationship among the above shareholders.
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The 10 largest registered listed stock shareholders of the Company and their respective

shareholdings

Shareholding of listed Nature of
Name of shareholders stocks at the end of year shares held
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 1,483,815,163 H shares
DE-SHENG SMALL CAP ({Z8%/&) 11,282,290 A shares
TONG QAN FUND (BE%ES) 6,757,766 A shares
PUFENG FUND (E2E%) 6,334,069 A shares
AN XIN FUND (Z{z5%) 4,099,949 A shares
HSBC NOMINEES (HONGKONG) LIMITED {A/C BR-9} 3,756,000 H shares
JINTAIFUND (2% &) 3,179,824 A shares
CHINA INTERNATIONAL FUND ( E3REER) 3,077,232 A shares
SUZHOU SECURITIES (BRINEEFH) 2,739,620 A shares
HANXING FUND ((ZEES) 2,409,800 A shares

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10 largest listed stock shareholders:

The Company is not aware of any related party or concert party relationship among the above listed stock

shareholders.

Controlling Shareholder

There is no change in the Company's controlling

shareholder in the year.

China Eastern Air Holding Company (“CEA Holding} is
the parent company of the Company and its registered
capital amounts to RMB2,558,441,000. Mr. Li Fenghua
is the legal representative of CEA Holding. CEA Holding
manages all State-owned assets and State-owned
equity of its group and its investment enterprises, all of
which assets and equity are formed by State investment.
As at December 31, 2004, the shares of the Company
held by CEA Holding were not pledged.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2004, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of its securities.

Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has throughout the year ended December
31, 2004 complied with the then applicable and effective
requirements contained in “Code of Best Practice” as

set out in Appendix 14 to the pre-existing Listing Rules.
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Summary of Significant Differences
between the Corporate Governance
Practices of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited and the Corporate
Governance Practices Required fo be
Followed by U.S. Companies under the
New York Stock Exchange’s Listing
Standards

As a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "HKSE") and the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE”), China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
{the “Company”) is subject to applicable PRC laws and
regulations, including the PRC Company Law, the PRC
Securities Law, Corporate Governance Standards for
Listed Companies and Guidance Opinions regarding the
Establishment of Independent Director System in Listed
Companies (the “Independent Director Guidance”),
Hong Kong laws and regulations, including the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Listing
Rules”), the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance, as well
as applicable U.S. Federal securities laws, including the
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Company is
also subject to the listing standards of the NYSE to the

extent they apply to non-U.S. issuers. The Company is
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not required to comply with all of the corporate

governance listing standards of the NYSE.

In accordance with the requirements of Section
303A.11 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual, the
following is a summary of the significant differences
between the Company’s corporate governance
practices and those required to be followed by U.S.

companies under the NYSE's listing standards.

Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
provides that listed companies must have a majority of
independent directors. As a company listed in the PRC,
the Company is subject to the requirement under the
Independent Director Guidance that at least one-third .
of its board of directors be independent as determined
thereunder. As a company listed in Hong Kong, the
Company is also subject to the requirement under the
Hong Keng Listing Rules that at least three members
of its board of directors be independent as determined
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and at least one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company currently has five independent directors
out of a total cf eleven directors. The standards for
establishing independence set forth under either the
Independent Director Guidance or the Hong Kong
Listing Rules differ from those set forth in the NYSE

Listed Company Manual.




Section 303A.03 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
provides that listed companies must schedule regular
executive sessions in which non-management directors
meet without management participation. The Company
is not required, under either the applicable PRC law or
the applicable Hong Kong law, to hold such executive

sessions.

Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
provides that listed companies must have a nominating/
corporate governance committee composed entirely of
independent directors. Currently, the Company does
not have a nominating/corporate governance
committee. The Company can choose to have but is
not required to have such a committee under either
applicable PRC law or Hong Kong law. Section
303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual also
provides that the nominating/corporate governance
committee of a listed company must have a written
charter that address the committee’s purpose and
responsibilities, which include, among others, the
development and recommendation of corporate
governance guidelines to the listed company’s board
of directors. The board of directors of the Company is
directly in charge of developing the Company’s

corporate governance guidelines.

Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual

provides that listed companies must have a

REPOrt or Directors

China Eastem Airlines Corporation Limited

compensation commitiee composed entirely of
independent directors. The compensation committee
of the Company is composed of three independent

directors and one member of the supervisory committes,

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual
provides that listed companies szt adopt and disclose
a code of business conduct and ethics for directors,
officers and employees. As required under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company has adopted
a code of ethics that is applicable to the Company’s
directors, supervisors, president, chief financial officer

and other senicr managers.

Pre-emptive Rights

Under the articles of association of the Company and
the PRC laws, no pre-emptive rights exist which require
the Company to offer new shares to existing

shareholders on a pro rata basis.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Directors believe that the Company
has at all times during the year ended December 31,
2004 maintained the relevant applicable minimum
percentage of listed securities as prescribed by

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the Directors, the Supervisors and members of senior management

of the Company during 2004 and as at the date of this report are as foliows:

Number of

listed A shares Capacity in Effective date
of the Company which the and expiry
held - personal A shares date of

Name Position Age interest were held appointment |
Li Fenghua Chairman of the 55 0 - June 2004-
Board of Directors June 2007
Ye Yigan Director 62 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Caa Jianxiong Director 46 2,800 (Note 1) Beneficial June 2004-
Owner June 2007
Wan Mingwu Director, 58 0 - June 2004-
Vice President “June 2007
Zhong Xiong Director 59 2,800 {Note 1) Beneficial June 2004-
Owner June 2007
Luo Zhuping Director, Secretary 52 2,800 (Note 1) Beneficial June 2004-
of the Board Owner June 2007
Hu Honggao Independent 51 0 - June 2004-
Non-executive Director June 2007
Peter Lok Independent 68 0] - June 2004-
Non-executive Director June 2007
Wu Baiwang Independent 62 0 - June 2004-
Non-executive Director June 2007
Zhou Ruifin Independent 66 0 - June 2004-
Non-executive Director June 2007
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Number of
listed A shares Capacity in Effective date
Company of the which the and expiry
held - personal A shares date of
Name Position Age interest were held appointment
Xie Rong Independent 53 0 - June 2004-
Non-executive Director June 2007
LI Wenxin Chairman of the 56 0 - June 2004-
Supervisory Committee June 2007
Ba Shengii Supervisor 46 2,800 {Note 1) Beneficial June 2004-
Owner June 2007
Yang Xingen Supervisor 52 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Yang Jie Supervisor 35 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Liu Jiashun Supervisor 48 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Luo Chaogeng President 55 0 —  September 2004-
June 2007
Wu Yulin Vice President 56 2,800 (Note 1) Beneficial June 2004-
Owner April 2005
Wu Jiuhong Vice President 53 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Yang Xu Vice President 44 1,000 (Note 2) Beneficial June 2004-
Owner June 2007
Zhou Liguo Vice President 56 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Zhang Jianzhong Vice President 50 0 - June 2004-
June 2007
Tong Guozhao Vice President 45 0 - April 2005-
June 2007
Luo Weide Chief Financial Officer 49 0 - June 2004-
June 2007

Note 1: representing approximately 0.000933% of the Company’s total issued listed A shares as at December 31, 2004

Note 2: representing approximately 0.000333% of the Company’s total issued listed A shares as at December 31, 2004
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As at the date of this report, brief biographical details in
respect of each of the Directors, Supervisors and senior

management officers of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Li Fenghua is the incumbent chairman of the Board
of Directors, president and deputy party secretary of
CEA Holding. Mr. Li joined the civil aviation industry in
1968 and was deputy head, and subsequently became
head, of the 26th Fleet of the Civil Aviation Administration
of China from 1987 to 1992. From 1982 to 1996, Mr. Li
served as vice-president, and then became president,
of the Hubei branch of China Southern Airlines (Group).
Since 1996, he became vice-president of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited and vice-president
of China Southern Airlines (Group). In 2000, Mr. Li
became party secretary and vice-president of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited. From October 2002
to September 2004, he served as the President of the
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited and vice-
president of China Eastern Air Holding Company. In
September 2004, he became president and deputy
party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr, Li graduated from
the China Civil Aviation Senior Aviation School and holds

the title of First Class Pilot.

Mr. Ye Yigan is currently a Director. Mr. Ye joined the
civil aviation industry in 1965. From 1983, he served as
deputy chief engineer of the aircraft repair factory of the
CAAC Shanghai Bureau. From 1985, he served as head
of the aircraft repair factory of the CAAC Shanghai
Bureau. In December 1987 he became deputy head of
the CAAC East China Bureau. From 1992, he served
as president and deputy party secretary of China
Aviation Supplies Corp. From June 1996, he served as
head and party secretary of the CAAC East China
Bureau. From April 2001 to September 2002, he served

as president and party secretary of EA Group. From
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June 2001 he became chairman of the Board of
Directors. From October 2002 to September 2004, he
was president and deputy party secretary of CEA
Holding. Mr. Ye graduated from the China Civil Aviation
Institute in Tianjin, with a major in aircraft instrument

maintenance. He holds the title of Senicr Engineer.

Mr. Cao Jianxiong is currently a Director. Mr. Cao joined
the civil aviation industry in 1982, From 1992, he served
as president of Shanghai Eastern Airlines Development
Company and in 1994 he became president of Eastern
Alrlines Futures Brokerage Company. In early 1896 he
served as assistant president of the Company. From
1897, he served as vice president and chief financial
officer of the Company. Since December 1999, he has
served as vice president of EA Group. Since October
2002, he served as vice president of CEA Holding, and
he alsc was the party secretary of China Eastern Air
Northwest Company from December 2002 to
September 2004. Mr. Cac graduated from the Civil
Aviation Management Institute with a major in labour
economics. Mr. Cao also received a Master’s degree
in global economics from Eastern China Normal
University's Department of International Finance. Mr.

Cao holds the title of Economist.

Mr. Wan Mingwu is currently a Director as well as the
Company’s party secretary and vice president. Mr. Wan
joined the civil aviation industry in 1968. From 1983 to
1990 he was deputy section chief and section chief of
the cadre section of the political department of the CAAC
Shenyang Bureau. From 19390 to 1992 he was section
chief of the personnel section of China Northern Airlines.
From 1992 to 1995 he was deputy party secretary of
China Northern Alrlines and from 1995 to 2000 he was
party secretary of China Necrthern Airlines. Since

December 2000 he has been party secretary and vice




president of the Company. Mr. Wan graduated from
Civil Aviation Mechanics Vocational School. Mr, Wan is
a college graduate and holds the title of Senior Political

Work Instructor.

Mr. Zhong Xiong is currently a Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhong joined the civil aviation industry in 1970. From

1986 to 1988, he was vice president of Transportation

Services Company of the CAAC Shanghai Bureau and”

was president of the sales and transportation
department of China Eastern Airlines from 1988 to 1992.
From 1992 to April 1995, he was vice president of China
Eastern Airlines. From May 1895 to April 2002, Mr.
Zhong has been vice president of the Company, and
has become the Chairman of the workers' union of CEA
Holding since April 2002. He graduated in 1970 from
the English Department of Liaoning Teacher’s College

and holds the title of Economist,

Mr. Luo Zhuping is a Director of the Company, the
secretary of the Board of Directors and the head of the
secretariat of the Board of Directors. Mr. Luo joined
CEA in 1988. He was deputy chief and then chief of
the enterprise management department of China
Eastern Airlines from 1992 to 1997. He was deputy
head of the share system office from 1993 t0 1996. In
1997, he became the secretary of the Board of Directors
and the head of the secretariat of the Board of Directors.
He became a Director of the Company in June 2004,
Mr. Luo graduated from the Faculty of Philosophy and
the Faculty of Law of Anhui University in 1979 and 1985,
respectively. In 1994, Mr. Luo received a Master’s
degree from the Economics Department of Eastern
China Normal University, majering in global economics.
In 1998, he participated in the training programme for
senior managers of large state-owned enterprises
organised in the U.S.A. by the State Eccnomic and

Trade Commission and Morgan Stanley.
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Mr. Hu Honggao is currently an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He is the vice-dean
and professor of law at Fu Dan University School of
Law as well as the head of the Civil and Commercial
Law Research Centre of Fu Dan University, supervising
doctoral students majoring in civil and commercial law
at Fu Dan University, He is also a senior lawyer at the
Shanghai Shen Yang Law Office. Mr. Hu is a managing
director of China Commercial Law Research Society, a
managing director of China Economic Law Research
(PESEBEEHREETEBIEE), a member of

the Legislative Consultation Committee of the Shanghai

Soclety

Municipal Government, a member of the Legislative
Profession Consultation Committee of the Shanghai
Standing Committee of the People’s Congress (L8
MAREEZEGUEERBEEEES), vice-chairman of
the Shanghai Economic Law Research Society and an

arbitrator of the Shanghai Arbitration Committee.

Mr. Peter Lok is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lok went to the College of
Air Traffic Control in England for further studies after joining
the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department in December
1956. He studied air transport, air accident investigation
and administration and management of civil aviation in
England from 1968 to 1973. In 1982, he became
assistant director of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation
Department. From 1985, during his time in office at the
air services division of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation
Department, he participated in negotiations with various
countries regarding air traffic rights. He became deputy
director in 1988, and subsequently became director in
1990 of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation Department. Mr,
Lok retired in 1996 and has served as a consultant at the
Flights Standards Department of the CAAC. Mr. Lok is
the first Chinese director of the Hong Kong Civil Aviation
Department and was at one time an instructor of the

College of Air Traffic Control of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wu Baiwang is currently an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the
civit aviation industry in 1959 and was deputy fleet leader
and subseguently became fleet leader of the 12th Fleet
of the CAAC from 1976 to 1984. From 1984 10 1992,
Mr. Wu was deputy head and subsequently became
head of the CAAC Jilin Bureau. From 1992 to 1985,
Mr. Wu was head and party secretary of the CAAC
Northeastern Bureau. From September 1985 to 1998,

he became president of China General Aviation

. Corporation. He was the party secretary and vice-

president of Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport
Group Company and the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport
Company Limited from 1998 to September 2003. Mr.
Wu graduated from Chinese Civil Aviation School in

1965 and holds the title of First Class Pilot.

Mr. Zhou Ruijin is currently an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Zhou was
deputy editor-in-chief and the East China regional
director of the People’s Daily. From 1988 to 1993 Mr.
Zhou was party secretary and deputy editor-in-chief of
the Liberation Daily. - From April 1993 to 1986 he was
deputy editor-in-chief of the People’s Daily and from
1996 to 2000 he was deputy editor-in-chief and the
East China regional director of the People’s Daily. After
retired, he became Vice-chairman of the China
Productivity Council and Chairman of the Shanghai
Productivity Council. Mr. Zhou graduated from the

journalism department of Fudan University in 1962,

Mr. Xie Rong is currently an independent director of the
Company and a certified accountant in the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Xie is the deputy head of
Shanghal National Accounting Institute. He taught at

the faculty of accounting of Shanghal University of
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Finance and Economics from December, 1985 to
March, 1997, and had been an assistant professor, a
professor, a doctorate-tutor and the deputy dean of the
faculty. Mr. Xie was a partner of KPMG Huazhen from
December, 1997 to October, 2002, and has, since
October, 2002, been the deputy head of Shanghai
National Accounting Institute. Mr. Xie graduated from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and has

a doctorate degree in Economics.

Mr. LI Wenxin is currently chairman of the Company’s
supervisary committee. Mr. Li joined the civil aviation
industry in 1970. From 1992 to 1995 he was secretary
of the disciplinary committee of China General Aviation
Company. From 1885 to 1996 he was deputy party
secretary of China General Aviation Corporation. From
1996 to 1998 he was deputy president of China General
Aviation Corporation and from February 1998 to June
2002, he assumed the post of party secretary and
executive deputy president of the Shanxi branch of the
Company. From June 2000 to September 2002, he
served as deputy party secretary and secretary of the
disciplinary committee of EA Group. Since October
2002, he served as party secretary and vice president
of CEA Holding. He has been the Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited since June 2000. Mr. Li received
university education and is a qualified Senior Political

Work Instructor.

Mr. Ba Shengji is currently a Supervisor. Mr. Ba joined
the civil aviation industry in 1978. From 1980, Mr. Ba
was an accountant at the Department of Finance of the
CAAC Shanghai Bureau. From 1988, he served as the
section head of the Department of Finance of China
Eastern Airlines. In 1993, Mr. Ba became the deputy

head of the Department of Finance of China Eastern




Airlines. In March 1997, Mr. Ba became the chief officer
of the auditing office of the Company. From December
1997 to September 2002, he served as the head of EA
Group’s auditing department. Since October 2002, he
became the head of CEA Holding’s auditing department.
Since January 2003, he concurrently served as chief of
CEA Holding’s disciplinary commitiee’s administrative
office. Mr. Ba received university education and is a

qualified auditor.

Mr. Yang Xingen is currently a Supervisor. Mr. Yang
was the deputy political committee member of the 1st
flying battalion and political committee member of the
2nd battalion of 105th Regiment, 35th Division from July
1980 to July 1986. From July 1986 to October 1897,
he was the party branch secretary and manager of China
Eastern Airlines Advertisement Service Company
respectively. From October 1997 to April 2000, he was
the party deputy secretary, secretary for the disciplinary
committee and political director of the Shanghai flying
squadron of China Eastern Airlines. From April 2000 to
August 2002, he was the deputy secretary for the
disciplinary committee cum director of the office for
discipline committee and director of the supervision
office. From August 2002 to now, he has been the
deputy secretary for the disciplinary committee of China
Eastern Airlines. Mr. Yang has been educated to the
tertiary level. He was graduated from the faculty of
mechanics of the Second Aviation Mechanics School

of the air force.

Ms. Yang Jie is currently a Supervisor. Ms. Yang joined
the civil aviation industry in 1992. From 1996 to 1998
she was electronic technology supervisor of the
technology office and Communist Youth League
secretary of the overhaul department at the aircraft

maintenance base of the Company. From 1998 to
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September 2000 she was Communist Youth League
deputy secretary of the aircraft maintenance base of
the Company. She was the deputy secretary of the
Company’s Communist Youth League from September
2000 to July 2002, and the secretary of the Company's
Communist Youth League from August 2002 to January
2003G. Since January 20083, she has been the secretary
of the Communist Youth League of China Eastern Air
Halding Company, as well as the secretary of the
Communist Youth League of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited. Ms. Yang graduated with a major
in aviation electronics from the China Civil Aviation
Academy and a major in Business Administration from
Sunny Management Academy (JBEEERERETIHE
) at Donghua University and she received a master
degree in Business Administration. She is also a

gualified engineer.

Mr. Liu Jiashun is currently a Supervisor. From 1993 to
1999 Mr. Liu was party secretary, deputy president and
secretary of the disciplinary committee secretary of
China Aviation Fuel Hainan Company, as well as
chairman of the board and president of Hainan Nanyang
Air Transport Co., Ltd. From 1937 to 1999 he was also
in charge of fuel supply engineering at Haikou’s Meilan
Airport and served as director of Meilan Airport Co.,
Lid. and vice chairman of the board and president of
Meilan Industrial Co., Ltd. From 1999 to 2000 he was
deputy party secretary of China Aviation Fuel East China
Company and he is currently deputy party secretary and
secretary of the disciplinary committee of the East China
branch of China Aviation Fuel Company. Mr. Liuis a
former graduate student and has gualifications as a

political work instructor.

Mr. Luo Chaogeng is current the President and deputy

party secretary of the Company. Mr. Luo joined the civil
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aviation industry in 1970. Mr. Luo was a flight mechanic
of the instructing team of the Lanzhou Civil Aviation
Administration Bureau from August 1970 to August
1972. From August 1972 to March 1989, he was the
flight mechanic of the 8th Civil Aviation Flight Team.
From March 1989 to August 1994, he was the deputy
commissar, commissar and party secretary of the Xian
Flight Team of China Northwest Airlines. From August
1994 to October 1997, he was the party secretary of
the aircraft maintenance plant of China Northwest
Airlines. From October 1997 to March 1997, he was
the party secretary and deputy general manager of the
aircraft maintenance base of China Northwest Airlines.
From March 1997 to December 2000, he was the
deputy director of the Civil Aviation Administration
Bureau of China Northwest Airlines. From December
2000 to November 2001, Mr. Luo was the general
manager of Yunnan Airlines and the director and deputy
party secretary of Civil Aviation Administration Bureau
of Yunan. From November 2001 to September 2001,
he was the general manager and deputy party secretary
of Yunnan Airlines. From September 2002 to September
2004, he has also been serving concurrently as the
general manager of Yunan Airlines. From September
2004 to the present, he has been the party constitution
member and vice president of China Airlines Group
Compeny, President and deputy party secretary of
China Airlines Corporation Limited. From 1998 to June
2001, Mr. Luo has been studying the postgraduate
course for incumbent leading cadres in professional
economics and management at the Central Party School
of Shaanxi. Mr. Luo has obtained first class competency

in flight mechanics.
Mr. Wu Yulin is a vice president of the Company. Mr.

Wu joined the civil aviation industry in 1966. From 1975
to 1985, he was the deputy head, and from 1985 to
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1988, the head, of the 5th Fleet of the CAAC. In 1998,
Mr. Wu became the head of China Eastern Airlines’
Shanghai Fleet. From 1889 to 19394, Mr. Wu was the
deputy chief, and from 1934 to 1995, the chief, of the
Aviation Skills and Management Department of China
Eastern Airlines. He was the director of China Eastern
Airlines’ Safety Supervision Department from 1995 1o
1987, deputy chief pilot and head of the Safety
Supervision Department of the Company from 1997 to
1998 and president and party secretary of the Hebei
Branch office of the Company from 1998 to 1999. Mr.
Wu was a vice president of the Company from
December 1999 to April 2005. Mr. Wu graduated from
Chinese Civil Aviation School and holds the title of First

Class Pilot,

Mr. Wu Jiuhong is a vice president of the Company.
Mr. Wu joined the civil aviation industry in 1971. From
1968 to 1971 he served with the 60th division under
the 20th army. From 1971 to 1973 he studied aviation
machinery at the Civil Aviation College. From 1973 to
1981 he was with the 18th Fleet of the CAAC's 2nd
General Fleet. From 1985 to 1988 he served as
Communist Youth League secretary and deputy head
of the political department of the CAAC’s Jiangxi Bureau.
From 1988 to 1995 he concurrently served as deputy
party secretary and disciplinary committee secretary of
the Cabin Service Department of China Eastern Airlines.
From 1995 to 1997 he served as head of the Company’s
publicity department. From 1997 to 2002, he served
as party secretary and executive vice president of the
Company’s Jiangxi branch. Since April 2002 he has
been vice president of the Company. He also became
the party secretary of China Eastern Air Northwest
Company since September 2004. Mr. Wu has
completed postgraduate studies and is a qualified senior

political work instructor.




Mr. Yang Xu is a vice president of the Company. Mr.
Yang joined the civil aviation industry in 1982. Mr. Yang
was president and party secretary of the overhaul
department at the aircraft maintenance base of China
Eastern Airlines from 1993 to 1997, the vice president
of the aircraft maintenance base of the Company from
1097 to 1998, and president and deputy party secretary
of the aircraft maintenance base of the Company from
1998 to 1999. Mr. Yang has been the chief enginesr of
the Company since December 1999, Since Aprit 2002,
he served as vice president of the Company and general
manager of the Company’s aircraft engineering
department. Mr. Yang graduated from the Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics with a major
in aircraft manufacture and holds the title of Senior

Engineer.

Mr. Zhou Liguo is currently a vice president of the
Company. He joined the civil aviation industry in 1981,
and attended the Air Force Changchun First Reserve
Flight School from 1986 to 1967 and the Harbin First
Navigation School from 1967 to 1969. Mr. Zhou
performed his military service with the 34th Division of
the Air Force from 1969 to 1981, and served as
squadron leader in the 5th Fleet of the Civil Aviation
from 1984 to 1988. Mr. Zhou was deputy fleet leader of
China Eastern Airlines’ Shanghai Fleet from 1988 to
1992, and leader of the said fleet from 1992 to 1997.
From 1997 to 2000, he served as general manager and
deputy party secretary of the Company’s General Flight
Department. In 2000 he became assistant president of
the Company, and from 2000 to 2003 he served as
president and deputy party secretary of China Cargo
Airlines Limited. Mr. Zhou was the Company's chief
economic official from December 2003 to April 2004.
He became a vice president of the Company since April
2004. Mr. Zhou received university education and holds
the title of First Class Pilot.
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Mr. Zhang Jianzhong is a vice president of the Company.
Mr. Zhang joined the civil aviation industry in 1982. From
April 1982 to December 1987, he was an assistant of
the Shanghai Civil Aviation Planning Bureau. From
December 1987 to April 1987, he was the deputy
director of the planning department of Shanghai
Hongaiao International Airport. From April 1990 to
January 1996, he was the director of the planning
department of China Eastern Airlines. From January
1996 to April 1988, he was the manager of the sales
and marketing department of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited. From April 1999 to April 2003, he
was the Assistant to the President of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited. From September 2000 to
December 2001, he served concurrently as the director
of the office of strategic study of the Company. From
December 2001 to May 2003, he served concurrently
as the general manager of the computer information
centre of the Company. From April 2003 to June 2004,
he was the chief economic official of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited. From May 2003 to June
2004, he served concurrently as the general manager
of the sales and marketing department of the Company.
From June 2004 to the present, he has been a vice
president of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited.
Mr. Zhang graduated from the Faculty of Mechanical
Engineering of Zhejiang University and Professional
Study in Economics and Management at Fudan

University, from which he obtained a master’s degree.

Mr. Tong Guozhao is a vice president of the Company.
Mr. Tong joined the civil aviation industry in 1980. From
January 1980 to May 1892, Mr. Tong had been the
deputy pilot, chief pilot and captain respectively of the
flight team of Urumai Civil Aviation Bureau. From May
1992 to April 1997, he had been the captain, sub-team
leader, deputy squadron leader and squadron leader

of the Shanghai Flight Team of China Eastern Airlines
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Corporation. From April 1997 to May 1998, he was a
vice president of the Shanghai Flight Team of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited. From May 1998
to March 2001, he was the president of the Safety
Monitoring Department of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited. From March 2001 to January 2004,
he was the president of the Anhui branch company of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited. From
January 2004 to September 2004, he was the president
of the China Cargo Airlines Corporation Limited and
deputy party secretary. From September 2004 to April
2005, he was the president of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited cum president of the Operation
Control Centre. Since April 2005, he has been a vice
president of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited.
Mr. Tong graduated from the Civil Aviation School and
holds the title of Second Class Pilot.

Mr. Luo Weide is the Company's chief financial officer.
In 1978 Mr. Luo began his military service at the Air
Force in Liuan Airport. From 1979 to 1991 he
successively served as department head and deputy
head of the Putuo branch of the Shanghai Municipal
Tax Bureau. From 1991 to 19383 he concurrently served
as head of the finance bureau and the state asset bureau
of Putuo District, Shanghai. From 1993 to 1998 he
successively served as deputy chief accountant, chief
accountant and executive deputy president of Shanghai
Jingiao (Group) Co., Ltd. From 1998 to 2000, he was
vice president of Shanghai Pudong Development
(Group) Co., Ltd. and chairman of the board and
president of Pudong Finance Company. Since 2000
he has been chief financial officer of the Company. Mr.
Luo graduated from the Sino-European International
Business School in 1998 with a Master’s degree in
business administration. He holds the titles of Senior

Accountant and Senior Economist,
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
issued a confirmation in respect of the factors set out in
Rute 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.15 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.

Changes in the Members of the Board of

Directors and Management Personnel

Mr. Chen Quanxin would no longer serve as a Director

of the Company.

The Company held a Board meeting on October 28,
2004 to elect Mr. Li Fenghua as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company and Mr. Ye Yigan
would no longer serve as the Chairman of the Board of

Directors.

On the third meeting of the third Board mesting of the
Company, nomination took place which was passed
by the Company's 2003 Annual General Mesting for
the appointment of Mr. Luo Zhuping as the Director of
the Company, and the appointment of Mr. Wu Baiwang

as an Independent Director of the Company.

On September 3, 2004, a Board mesting was held and
it was resolved that Mr. Luo Chaogeng be appointed
as the President of the Company. On April 5, 2004 a
Board meeting of the Company was held and it was
resolved that Mr. Zhou Liguo be appointed as Vice
President of the Company. On June 2, 2004 a Board
meeting of the Company was held and it was resolved
that Mr. Zhang Jianzhong be appcinted as Vice
President of the Company. On April 1, 2005 a Board
meeting of the Company was held and it was resolved
that Mr. Tong Guozhao be appointed as Vice President
of the Company.




Shareholdings of Directors, Chief
Executive, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2004,
none of the Directors, chief executives, Supervisors or
members of the Company’s senior management and
their respective associates had any other interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or
debentures (as the case may be) of the Company and/
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including any interest and short position which
any of such Directors, chief executives, Supervisors or
members of the Company's senior management and
their respective associates were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFQ) and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which was
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the then Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules then in force (which shall be deemed to apply to
the Supervisors to the same extent as it applied to the

Directors).

In 2004 and as at December 31, 2004, none of the
Directors, chief executives, Supervisors, senior
management of the Company and/or any of their
spouses or chi\drén under the age of eighteen were
granted any right, and the Company had not made any
arrangement enabling any of them, to subscribe for

share capital or debt securities of the Company.
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Service Contracts of Directors and
Supervisors

No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Interests of Directors and Supervisors in
Contracts

None of the Directors or Supervisors had a material
interest directly or indirectly in any contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year (the term
‘contract of significance’ having the meaning ascribed
thereto in paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to the Listing

Rules then in force and applicable at that time).

Remuneration of Directors and

Supervisors

Details of remuneration of Directors and Supervisors
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements prepared

in accordance with IFRS.

Employees

As at December 31, 2004, the Group had 20,817

employees, a majority of them worked in the PRC.

Medical Insurance

In January 2001, the Group joined the medical insurance
scheme promulgated by the Shanghai Municipal
Government. The Group and its employees contribute
approximately 12% and 2% respectively of the
employees’ basic salaries to the scheme. The Group

has no other obligation for the payment of medical
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expenses other than the above-mentioned
contributions. The Group believes that its contributions
to such scheme will not have significant impact on the

operation and the financial aspects of the Group.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at December 31, 2004 are
set out in notes 26 to 27 to the financial statements

prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Interest Capitalized

Interest capitalized for the Group as calculated in
accordance with IFRS for the year ended December

31, 2004 was RMB57.12 million.

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets of the Company and the
Group during the year are summarized in note 12 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with

IFRS.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2004 are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements prepared

in accordance with IFRS.

Statutory Common Welfare Fund

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund,
such as the nature and application of and movements
in the fund, and the basis of its calculation, including
the percentage used for calculating the amounts, are
set out in note 29(c) to the financial statements prepared

in accordance with IFRS.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made donations for

charitable purposes amounting to RMB480 thousand.

Employees’ Retirement Scheme

Details of the Company’s employee retirement scheme
and post retirement benefits are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with

IFRS.

Major Suppliers and Customers

As at December 31, 2004, the cost of aircraft and related
materials from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 16.34% and
48.57%, respectively, of the total purchases of the
Group. The aggregate percentage of sales attributable
to the Group's five largest customers combined

accounted for 7.81% of the Group's total sales in 2004.

China Eastern Airlines Group Corporation is interested
in 55% of Shanghai Dongmei Air Travel Company
Limited, one of the top five customers, since May 2003,
whereas the Company is interested in 45%. In 2004,
the alir ticket sales which the Group delegated Dongmei
Air Travel Company Limited as its agent accounted for

approximately 1.96% of the total sales of the Group.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or any of their respective associates nor
any shareholder to the knowledge of the Directors
holding 5% or more of the Company’s share capital
had any interest in any of the above mentioned suppliers

and customers.




Material Coniracts

(1)

On Aprii 28, 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement for the sales of 24 commercial aircraft
spare engines and 17 agreements for the leasing
of 17 commercial aircraft spare engines with an
independent third party. The transaction under the
sales contract amounted to approximately
RMB745 million. After the sales, the Company
leased back 17 of the commercial aircraft spare
engines in the form of operating leases for, in
respect of one of the engines, a term of 4 years,
and in respect of the other 18, terms of 7 years.
For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated May 4, 2004.

On October 8, 2004, the Company entered into
an aircraft purchase agreement with Airbus SAS
(= EE QT to purchase 20 A330-300
aircraft. The market price in the contract ranged
from US$162.9 million to US$170.1 million per
aircraft. The delivery is scheduled to take place
from 20086 to 2008. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated

October 13, 2004,

On December 23, 2004, the Company entered
into an aircraft purchase agreement with the
Boeing Company to purchase six 737-700 aircraft.
The contract price amounted to approximately
RMB2,000 million. The delivery is schedule to
commence in January 2006 and be completed
by August 2006. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated December
23, 2004.
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(4) Details of material contracts entered into
subsequent to the balance sheet date are set out
in note 42 to the financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFRS.

AGM and Board Meetings

AGM

The 2003 Annual General Meseting of the Company was
held on June 18, 2004 at Function Room 2, Grand
Ballroom, Shanghai Marriott Hotel Hongagiao, 2270
Honggiao Road, Shanghai, the PRC to consider the
resolutions proposed by the Board of Directors, and
approved by way of ordinary resolutions: the working
report of the Board of Directors for 2003; the working
report of the Supervisory Committee for 2003; the
audited financial report and final accounts for 2003; the
profit appropriation proposal for 2003, the appointment
of both domestic and overseas accountants for the
Company; the proposal for the election of the 4th Board
of Directors of the Company; the proposal for the
election of the 4th Supervisory Committee. Certain
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company

were amended by way of special resolution.

Board Meetings
During 2004 the Company’s Board of Directors held
five regular meetings and passed, among other

resolutions, the following resolutions:

Reviewing and approving the Company’s financial
budget and investment proposal for 2004; reviewing
and approving the Company’s working report of the
President for 2003, the audited financial report for 2003,
profit appropriation proposal (considering the cash flow

and the continuing operation of the Company for 2003,
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it has been resolved that no profit shall be distributed
for the year 2003 and no increase in capital reserve
shall be made for the period) and the announcement of
its results; reviewing and approving the sale of its 65%
of shareholding in Luqgi (Jinan) Eastern Airlines Food
Company Limited to Eastern Air Catering Company
Limited; reviewing and approving the resolution that the
undistributed profit of Civil Aviation Huadong Kaiye
System Integration Company Limited be transferred as
an increase in capital; reviewing and approving a motion
to propose to the shareholders’ meeting the re-
appointments of Shanghai Zhonghua Certified Public
Accounts and PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong as the Company’s domestic
and overseas auditors for 2004; reviewing and
approving the resolution to appoint Mr. Zhou Liguo as
the Vice President of the Company; reviewing and
approving the report and financial report for the first
quarter of 2004, and the resolution to amend certain
provisions of the Articles of Association for submission
to the shareholders’ general meeting for 2003, for its
reviewing and approving; the nomination of Messrs Ye
Yegan, Li Fenghua, Cao Jianxiong, Wan Mingwu, Zhong
Xiong and Luo Zhuping as the candidates for the 4th
Board of Directors of the Company, nomination of
Messrs Xie Rong, Hu Honggao, Zhou Ruijin, Peter Lok
and Wu Baiwang as candidates of the Supervisory
Committee, and submission to the shareholders’ general
meeting for the year 2003 for reviewing; reviewing the
resolution to convene shareholders’ general meeting for
the year 2003; reviewing and approving the interim
financial report and the draft of the announcement of
the interim result for the year 2004; reviewing the
resoluticn to accept the resignation of Mr. Ye Yigan as
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
and election of Mr. Li Fenghua as the Chairman of the

Board of Directors of the Company.
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Connected Transactions

On February 18, 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “CEA Real Estate Agreement”) with CEA
Holding, its holding company, in relation to the
establishment of M EMEREEGR 2 A (China
Eastern Real Estate Investment Co. Ltd.) (“CEA Real
Estate”), a limited liability company established under
the laws of PRC for an initial term of 15 years. The
registered capital of CEA Real Estate is
RMB100,000,000, which is interested as to 85% by CEA
Holding and 5% by the Company. Under the CEA Real
Estate Agreement, the Company has made its capital
contribution in the amount of RMB5,000,000
(representing 5% of CEA Real Estate’s registered capital)
towards CEA Real Estate by way of cash. CEA Real
Estate is engage in the principal business of real estate
(including the development and selling of commercial
premises and property leasing) in Shanghai, the PRC.
The Company's investment in CEA Real Estate has been
accounted for in the Company’s accounts as an
investment item. As the property market in Shanghai
has been developing steadily, the Board believes that
the Company’s investment in CEA Real Estate will
enhance the Company’s returns on its investments and,
hence, will be beneficial to the Company and its
shareholders. As CEA Holding is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, CEA Holding is a
connected person of the Company and, hence, the
establishment of CEA Real Estate by CEA Holding and
the Company pursuant to the CEA Real Estate
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Rule 14,23(1)(a) of the then applicable
Listing Rules. As such connected transaction falls within
the de-minimis provision under Rule 14.25(1) of the then

applicable Listing Rules, it is not subject to shareholders’




approval. For details, please refer to the announcement

of the Company dated February 18, 2004.

As CEA Holding holds approximately 61.64% of the
issued share capital of the Company, certain
transactions entered into between the Group and CEA
Holding and its associates constitute connected

transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Group's continuing connected
transactions with the Company's connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year ended
December 31, 2004 are set out in note 38 to the financial

statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The Company's independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed such continuing connected transactions

during the year 2004 and confirmed that:-

{a) the transactions have been entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of its

business;

(o) the transactions have been entered into either
(i) on normal commercial terms (by reference to
transactions of a similar nature made by similar
entities within China) or (ii) (where there is no
available comparison) on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the

Company are concerned; and

() the transactions have been entered into either
(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing each such connected transaction or
(i} {(where there is no such agreement) on terms
no less favourable than terms available to third

parties.
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In respect of each continuing connected transaction
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements prepared
in accordance with IFRS, the Company confirms that it
has complied with the relevant requirements then
applicable under the Listing Rules then in force or a
waiver from such regquirements has been obtained from

the Stock Exchange.

Details of the other related party transactions entered
by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2004
are set out in note 38 1o the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS. These transactions
do not constitute connected transactions under the

Listing Rules.

Waiver from Compliance with the Listing
Rules

Pursuant to Rule 14.04(8) of the Listing Rules which
took effect immediately before March 31, 2004, the
Stock Exchange has granted to the Company a waiver
from strict compliance with the provisions of Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules then in force and applicable,
which related to notifiable transactions, in relation to
the acquisition or disposal of aircraft. The major terms

of the waiver are summarized as follows:

(@) instead of the normal tests under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules then in force and applicable, the
tests for the Company are made by reference to
the Available Tonne Kilometers ("ATKs") for aircraft
being acquired or disposed of as compared to

the Company’s aggregate fleet ATKSs;

{b)  the proposed test replaces the relevant net asset
test and the consideration test only, while the net

profit and equity capital tests under Chapter 14
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of the Listing Rules then in force and applicable

still apply;
the calculation of ATKs is as follows:

i) fleet ATKs are the aggregate actual ATKs
for all aircraft in the Company's fleet for the
last financial year as disclosed in the

Company's annual report;

(i)  ATKs for aircraft being disposed of are
based on actual ATKs of the aircraft for the

previous two financial years; and

(i  ATKs for aircraft being acquired are based
on the historical operating data for the type
of aircraft. Where the aircraft to be acquired
is of a new type, the ATKs are estimated
based on other aircraft of similar size
operated by the Company or the average

for the Chinese civil aviation industry;

the Company’s ATKSs figure would be disclosed
in the Company’s annual report and reviewed by
auditors who would confirm on an annual basis
that the Company’s ATKs are calculated correctly

and consistently;

for the purposes of making the test stated in
(a) above, all acquisitions and disposals for the
last 12 months are aggregated, unless the
acquisiti'on or disposal has previously been
reported as a notifiable transaction pursuant to

the rules set out herein;

the thresholds for classifying a transaction as a

discloseable, major or very substantial acquisition
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are 33'/,%, 50% and 100% (assuming that there
are no circumstances which would make it a

connected transaction or a share transaction);

where the transaction is a discloseable
transaction, disclosure takes the form of a press
announcement complying with Rule 14.14 of the
Listing Rules then in force and applicable and
details of the transaction are to be set out in the
Company’s annual report and accounts. Where
the transaction is a major transaction or a very
substantial acquisition, the applicable provisions

of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules then in force
apply;

an option to acquire aircraft is not treated as
acquisition while the exercise of such an option is

treated as acquisition of an aircraft;

the Company shall disclose in its annual reports

and interim reports the following information:

(i regarding future deliveries of aircraft, details
of aircraft on order including the number and
type, and the years in which such aircraft

are scheduled to be delivered;

(i)  the number and type of aircraft which are
subject to options exercisable during a
period of not less than 12 months from the
end of the financial year or period to which

the report relates; and

should there be any change in control of the
Company, the Stock Exchange will need to
reconsider whether the waiver continues to be

appropriate.




In relation to future deliveries of aircraft, as at December
31, 2004, the following are details of aircraft on order

which are scheduled to be delivered:

Type of Number of Year to be
aircraft aircraft delivered
A320 5 2005
A321 2 2005
B737-800 3 2005
ERJ-145 3 2005
A330-300 7 2006
A330-200 3 2006
A319 3 2006
B737-700 8 2006
ERJ-145 2 2006

= Except for three Boeing B737-800 aircraft to be acquired under
operating leases, the other aircraft will be purchased by the
Company.

As at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware
of any aircraft which are subject to options exercisable
during a period of not less than 12 months from
December 31, 2004.

Staff Quarters

Details of the Group’s staff quarters are set out in note
34 to the financial statements prepared in accordance

with IFRS.

Material Litigation

The Group was not involved in any material litigation or

arbitration in the year ended December 31, 2004.

Report of Lireciors

China Eastemn Airlines Corporation Limited

Special Auditing Opinion and Independent
Directors’ Opinion

Shanghai Zhonghua Certified Public Accountants have
performed a special auditing work and issued special
auditing opinion on the fund transfer between the
Company, its controlling shareholder and other related
parties, as required by the relevant requirements of the

China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Independent directors of the Company have performed
an auditing work and issued independent opinion on
the guarantees the Company has provided, as required
by the relevant requirements of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission. The Company has strictly
observed relevant laws and regulations as well as its
article of association while it has also imposed strict
control on the guarantees provided. As of December
31, 2004, none of the Company and its subsidiaries
has provided any guarantee to the Company’'s
controliing shareholder and other related parties, cther

non-legal person entity units and individuals.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong and Shanghai Zhonghua Certified Public
Accountants (registered accountants in the PRC) were
the Company’s international and domestic auditors in

2004, respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Li Fenghua

Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, China
April 12, 2005
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2004, the members of the Supervisory Committee of
the Company (“Supervisory Committee”), basing
themselves on the powers bestowed upon them by the
Company Law and the Company’s articles of
association and their sense of responsibility toward all
the shareholders, actively carried out their tasks, faithfully
performed their supervisory duties and protected the
legitimate rights and interests of the Company and of
all the shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on April 5,
2004 during which it examined the Company’s 2003
financial statement and connected transactions,
adopted the Supervisory Committee's 2003 Work
Report, and resolved that it will be put forwarded to the
2003 Annual General Meeting of the Company for
deliberation. The Supervisory Committee is of the view
that the financial report of the Company for the year
2003 has truly reflected the financial position and
operating result of the Company, and that the audit
opinions submitted by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong and Shanghai
Zhonghua Certified Public Accountants are objective
and fair. All the members of the Supervisory Committee
attended every meeting of the Board of Directors held
during the year, monitored whether the strategic
decisions of the Board were made in accordance with
relevant laws, regulations and the Company’s articles
of association, the long-term development of the
Company and the overall interest of all the shareholders,
and supervised the Company's financial affairs and the
performance by the Company’s directors and senior

executives of their duties.

During the year, the Company's policy making process
was in compliance with the laws and its operations
compliant. The directors and senior executives faithiully
performed their duties and diligently and dutifully carried
out their work in the greater interests of the Company

China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

and ensured that the Company's results continued to
increase.

The Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed
financial information such as the financial report and
the profit distributicn scheme to be submitted to the
2004 Annual General Meeting for deliberation, and found
no problems with these submissions. After examination,
the Supervisory Committee did not discover any acts
of insider trading in the Company's purchase or sale of
assets, or any actions of the directors, presidents or
other senior executives in carrying out their duties that
in any way violated laws, regulations, or the articles of
association of the Company or were prejudicial to the
interests of the Company.

In the new year, the Supervisory Committee will, as in
the past, conscientiously exercise and perform the
powers bestowed upan it by the Company’s articles of
association, further strengthen its supervision of the
Company's financial affairs and ensure compliant
business practices. While stressing efficiency, it will
continue to explore monitoring and control mechanisms
which are of benefit in protecting and promoting the
Company's development.

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the
continuous strong support for its work offered by all the
shareholders, directors, staff and workers.

On behalf of
the Supervisory Committes

Li Wenxin

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, China
April 12, 2005
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56 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

PRICEAVATERHOUSE( QOPERS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at 31 December 2004, and the related consolidated income statement,
consolidated cashflow statement and consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then
ended, and the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2004, These financial statements set out on pages
57 to 120 are the responsibility of the Company’s management. It is our responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards reguire that we
clan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant eétimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2004, and of the results of the Group’s operaticns and cashflows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and have been properly prepared in accordance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 April 2005
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China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited 57

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Traffic revenues
Passenger 15,357,614 10,261,027
Cargo and mail 4,428,360 3,186,984
Other operating revenues 1,252,802 829,147
Turnover 3 21,038,776 14,277,158
Other operating income, net 4 154,422 60,890
Operating expenses
Wages, salaries and benefits 5 (1,865,879) (1,449,054)
Take-off and landing charges (3,019,742) (2,254,456)
Aircraft fuel (5,429,658) (3,044,956)
Food and beverages (758,046) {541,669)
Aircraft depreciation and operating leases (3,672,133) (2,851 ,047)
Other depreciation, amortisation and operating leases (495,916) (495,079)
Aircraft maintenance (1,396,283) (1,329,304)
Commissions (772,219) (485,147}
Office and administration (1,337,850) {1,057,500)
Others (966,295} ‘ (628,373)
Total operating expenses (19,714,021} (14,116,585)
Operating profit 1,479,177 221,463
Non-operating income 38(c)i) | 133,029 -
Finance costs, net 6 (762,687) (782,783)
Share of results before tax of associates 16 4,112) (28,511)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 7 845,407 (589,831)
Income tax expenses 9(a) (181,224) (247,554)
Profit/(loss) after taxation 664,183 (837,385)
Minority interests 32 (150,108) (112,431)
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 514,075 (848,816)
Earnings/(loss) per share B
- basic and diluted 10 RMBO.11 (RMBU0.20)
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58 China Eastem Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
As at 31 December 2004

2004 20083
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 12 30,220,319 26,838,903
Construction in progress 13 188,654 219,788
L ease prepayments 14 828,808 847,313
Investments in associates 16 656,190 626,084
Goodwill and negative goodwill 17 36,303 38,505
Advances on aircraft and flight equipment 18 2,678,603 2,238,893
Other long-term receivables and investments 19 2,202,606 1,962,362
Deferred tax assets 30 395,465 399,771
Derivative assets 40 | 11,571 2,814
37,218,519 33,175,439
Current assets
Flight equipment spare parts less allowance

for obsolescence (2004: RMB471,750,000 ;

2003: RMB400,534,000) 523,186 552,172
Trade receivables less allowance for doubtful

accounts (2004: RMB94,147,000 ;

2003: RMB83,663,000) 20 1,462,672 1,325,877
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 1,108,964 1,371,043
Cash and cash equivalents 2,114,447 1,582,780

5,209,269 4,831,672

Current liabilities
Trade payables 22 64,718 109,242
Notes payables 22 838,337 756,490
Sales in advance of carriage ©719,957 926,453
Other payables and accrued expenses 23 5,353,649 4,299,889
Current portion of obligations under finance leases 25 1,189,648 1,682,084
Current portion of long-term bank loans 26 3,193,432 2,250,734
Tax payable ‘ 162,608 106,113
Short-term bank loans 27 6,188,919 4,631,918
17,711,266 14,773,023
Net current liabilities (12,501,997) (9,941,351}
Total assets less current liabilities 24,716,522 23,234,088
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China Eastem Airlines Corporation Limited 59

(Prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards)
As at 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Share capital 28 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 29 2,015,294 1,515,201
Total capital and reserves 6,882,244 6,382,151
Minority interests 32 831,208 522,713
. Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 25 7,472,638 5,408,802
Long-term bank loans 26 7,542,828 8,972,189
Deferred tax liabilities 30 752,917 740,112
Accrued aircraft overhaul expenses 24 175,960 191,384
Long-term portion of other payable 31 100,204 121,860
Post-retirement benefit obligations 33(0} 562,632 545,771
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances 34(p) 276,248 254,669
Derivative liabilities 40 119,643 94,437
17,003,070 16,329,224
24,716,522 23,234,088

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2005.

Li Fenghua Wan Mingwu

Director Director
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China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

As at 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 12 25,625,117 22,383,760
Construction in progress 13 77,534 92,520
Lease prepayments 14 396,481 405,204
investments in subsidiaries 15 2,761,508 3,808,615
Investments in associates 16 625,964 590,601
Goodwill and negative goodwill 17 36,303 . 38,505
Advances on aircraft and flight equipment 18 2,678,603 2,239,893
Other long-term receivables and investments 19 2,181,581 1,925,548
Deferred tax assets 30 344,711 349,318
Derivative assets 40 11,571 2,814
34,739,373 31,836,778
Current assets
Flight equipment spare parts less allowance

for obsolescence (2004: RMB456,091,000;

2003: RMB393,105,000) 492,977 517,802
Trade receivables less allowance for

doubtful accounts (2004 RMB87,994,000;

2003: RMB 77,967,000) 20 927,093 845,504
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 819,994 1,122,511
Cash and cash equivalents 921,252 645,985

3,161,316 3,131,802

Current liabilities

Trade payables 22 61,627 65,420
Notes payables 22 838,337 658,901
Sales in advance of carriage 711,441 773,309
Other payables and accrued expenses 23 4,685,598 3,605,820
Current portion of obligations under finance leases 25 1,189,648 1,682,084
Current portion of long-term bank loans 26 3,185,156 2,250,734
Short-term bank loans 27 4,255,919 3,971,918
14,927,726 13,018,286
Net current liabilities (11,766,410) (9,886,484)
Total assets less current liabilities 22,972,963 21,950,204
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(Prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards,
As at 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Note RiMB’'000 RMB'000
Share capital 28 | 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 29 1,350,272 870,963
Tota! capital and reserves 6,217,222 5,837,913
Non-current liabilities
Obiligations under finance leases 25 7,472,638 5,408,802
Long-term bank loans 26 7,520,481 8,972,189
Deferred tax liabilities 30 685,114 663,954
Accrued aircraft overhaul expenses 24 133,011 138,310
Long-term portion of other payable 31 100,204 121,860
Post-retirement benefit obligations 33(b) 472,174 470,429
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances 34(b) 252,476 242,400
Derivative liabilities 40 119,643 04,437
16,755,741 16,112,381
22,972,963 21,950,294

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2005.

Li Fenghua Wan Mingwu

Director Director
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62 China Eastern Airiines Corporation Limited

{Prepared in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 20083
RMB’000 RMB'000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) after taxation before minority interests 664,183 (837,385)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,282,195 1,874,462
Losses on disposal of aircraft and flight equipment 40,564 28,767
{(Gains)/tosses on disposals of other fixed assets {13,001) 4,811
Fair value gains on short-term investments (5,235) (21,920)
Amortisation of lease prepayments 18,414 20,049
Provision for post-retirement benefits 24,611 20,844
Amortisation of goodwill and negative goodwilt 2,202 2,202
Interest income (including amortisation of bond discount) (129,020) (147,846)
Interest expenses 870,988 860,304
Provision for income tax 160,502 124,530
Share of results after tax of associates 5,256 32,738
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (40,168) 77,850
Movements in:
Flight equipment spare parts 28,986 4,204
Trade receivables (136,995) (360,451)
Prepayments and other receivables (361,345) 197,008
Trade payables (44,524) 44,719
Sales in advance of carriage (206,496) 225,739
Other payables and accrued expenses 1,069,237 1,759,628
Interest accrued on a long-term payable 8,344 9,610
Deferred taxation 19,578 118,797
Long-term portion of accrued aircraft overhaul expenses (15,424) {52,300)
3,578,669 4,923,743
Cash generated from operations 4,242,852 4,086,358
Interest paid (872,738) (860,304)
Income tax paid (104,009) (62,977)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,266,105 3,163,077
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standlards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions of aircraft and flight equipment (1,206,508) (5,560,408}
Instalment payment for acquisition of an airlines business {30,000) (30,000)
Proceeds on disposals of aircraft, flight equipment,
other fixed assets and equipment 667,824 91,940
Purchase of buildings, other fixed assets and eguipment (319,337) (216,211)
Additions of construction in progress (178,065) (249,737}
Investments in associates (12,673) (327,252)
Advances on aircraft and flight equipment (2,076,990) (1,295,656)
Repayments of advances on aircraft and flight equipment 80,000 -
Proceeds from maturity of US Treasury zero coupon bonds 585,736 -
Increase in long-term bank deposits (51,108) (64,255)
Purchase of short-term investments (270,350) -
Proceeds from disposals of short-term investments 275,585 311,920
Interest received ‘ 71,900 104,243
Net decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits with original
maturities over three months 31,424 (69,246)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (2,432,562) (7,304,660)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term bank loans 8,988,970 10,920,917
Repayments of short-term bank loans (7,431,931) (10,815,508)
Proceeds from long-term bank loans 2,155,310 5,606,107
Repayments of long-term bank loans (2,647,930) (898,022)
Principal repayments of finance lease obligations (1,617,001) (1,400,749)
Proceeds from notes payables 1,347,786 1,254,030
Repayments of notes payables (1,265,939) (908,790)
Capital injection from minority shareholders 218,387 5,765
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (60,000) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (312,348) 3,763,750
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 521,195 (377,833)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,582,780 1,044,525
Exchange adjustment 10,472 16,088
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,114,447 1,582,780
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

Year ended 31 December 2004

Share Other Retained
capital reserves profits
(note 28) (note 29) {note 29) Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Balance at 1 January 2003 4,866,950 1,004,655 1,507,498 7,379,108
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in
the income statement
Unrealised losses on cashflow hedges - (62,810) - (62,810)
Realised losses on cashflow hedges - 13,156 - 13,158
Release of reserves upon disposals
of aircraft - (14,269) 16,787 2,618
- (63,923) 16,787 (47,138)
Loss attributable to shareholders - - (949,818) (949,816)
Transfer from retained profits to other reserves - 72,510 (72,510) -
Balance at 31 December 2003 and
1 January 2004 4,866,950 1,013,242 501,959 6,382,151
Net losses not recognised in the
income statement
Unrealised losses on cashflow hedges - {5,143) - (6,143)
Realised gains on cashflow hedges - (8,839) - (8,839)
- {13,982) - {(13,982)
Profit attributable to shareholders - - 514,075 514,075
Transfer from retained profits to other reserves - 67,136 (67,136) -
Balance at 31 December 2004 4,866,950 1,066,396 948,898 6,882,244
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China Eastemn Airlines Corporation Limited 65

(Frepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

Corporate Information

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC”} as a joint stock company limited by shares on 14 April 1995. The Company is majority owned by China
Eastern Air Holding Company ("CEA Holding”), a state-owned enterprise. The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation, air cargo, postal delivery and other extended

transportation services.

Principal Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This basis of
accounting differs in certain material respects from that used in the preparation of the Group's statutory accounts
in the PRC. The statutory accounts of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
and the relevant regulations applicable to PRC joint stock limited companies ("PRC Accounting Regulations”). In
preparing these financial statements, appropriate restatements have been made to the Group's statutory accounts

to conform with IFRS.

The consoclidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention as modified by the

revaluation of fixed assets, short-term investments and derivative financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the
use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting pericd. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of

current event and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
(b) Group accounting

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(b)
U]

71

Group accounting (Cont’d)
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries, which are those entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one half of the

voting rights or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies, are consolidated.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill. See note 2{m) for the accounting policy cn goodwill.
[ntercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside members in the operating results and net assets of

subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for

impairment losses.

Associates

Investments in associates'are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Under this method the
Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised in the income
statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. Associates are entities over
which the Group generally has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or cver which the Group has

significant influence, but which it does not control.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless the

Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(b} Group accounting (Cont’d)

{ii) Associates (Cont'd)
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

(c) Foreign currency translation

The Group maintains its books and records in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the measurement currency of the
Group. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions, quoted by the People’s Bank of China. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into RMB at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date as quoted by the People’s
Bank of China. Exchange differences are included in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as

qualifying cashflow hedges.

(9) Revenue recognition and sales in advance of carriage
Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are recognised as traffic revenues when the transportation services are

provided. The value of sold but unused tickets is included in the current liabilities as sales in advance of carriage.

Revenues from other operating businesses, including income derived from the provision of ground services and
commission income are recognised when services are rendered. Commission income includes amounts earned
from other carriers in respect of sales made by the Group’s agents. The related commission payable to agents are
included as commission expenses in the income statement in the period that revenue is recognised. Rental
income from leasing office premises and cargo warehouses is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Revenues are presented net of business tax.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis.

Rental income from.sub|eases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.
(e) Segmental reporting

in accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined that business segments be

presented as the primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary reporting format.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 371 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(e) Segmental reporting (Cont’d)
In respect of the geographical segment, the analysis of turnover and operating profit by geographical segment is

pased on the following criteria:-

(i) Traffic revenue from domestic services within the PRC (excluding Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong")) is attributed to the domestic operation. Traffic revenue from inbound and outbound
services between the PRC and Hong Kong or overseas markets is attributed to the geographical area in

which the relevant overseas origin or destination lies.

(i) Other operating revenues from ticket handling services, airport ground services and other miscellaneous

services are attributed on the basis of where the services are performed.

(f) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes regarding pension and medical benefit for
employees organised by the municipal governments of respective provinces. The contributions to the schemes

are charged to the income statement as and when incurred.

In addition, the Group provides retirees with post-retirement benefits including retirement subsidies, transportation
subsidies, social function activity subsidies as well as other welfare. The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present‘ value of the defined benefit abligation at the balance
sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the

related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess
of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation are charged or credited

to income over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional

on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-

service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decemnber 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies {Cont’d)

(9) Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases, the Group has the responsibility to fulfill certain return
conditions under relevant leases. In order to fulfill these return conditions, major overhauls are required to be
conducted on a regular basis. Accordingly, the present value of estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft
and engines under operating leases are accrued and charged to the income statement over the estimated period
between overhauls using the ratios of actual flying hours/cycles and estimated flying hours/cycles between
overhauls. The costs of major overhaul comprise mainly labour and materials. Differences between the estimated

cost and the actual cost of the overhaul are included in the income statement in the period of overhaul.

All other routine repairs and maintenance costs incurred in restoring such fixed assets to their normal working

condition are charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.

(h) Government grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the

grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary

to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the fixed assets are included in non-current liabilities as other liabilities and are

credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(i) Taxation
The Group provides for taxation on the basis of the results for the year as adjusted for items which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. Taxation of the Group is determined in accordance with the

relevant tax rules and regulations applicable in the jurisgictions where the Group operates.
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is measured

using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted at the balance shest date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Fixed assets
Fixed assets are recognised initially at cost which comprises purchase price, costs transferred from
construction in progress and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to the condition for

their intended use.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, fixed assets are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Independent valuations are performed at least every
five years or sooner if considered necessary by the directors. In the intervening years, the directors
review the carrying values of the fixed assets and adjustment is made where these are materially different
from fair value. Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation
reserve. Decreases in valuation of fixed assets are first offset against increases from earlier valuations of
the same asset and are thereafter charged to the income statement. All other decreases in valuation are
charged to the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income statement up to

the amount previously charged.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost or revalued
amount of each asset to their residual value over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives

used for the calculation of annual depreciation charges are as follows:—~

Aircraft - 20 vyears
Flight equipment

- Engines - 20 vyears

— Other flight equipment - 20 vyears
Buildings - 15to 35 years
Other fixed assets and equipment - 51020 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in operating profit. When revaiued assets are sold, the amounts included in revaluation reserves

are transferred to retained earnings.
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(k) Construction in progress
Construction in progress represents office buildings, various infrastructure projects under construction and plant
and equipment pending installation. This includes the costs of construction and acquisition and interest capitalised.

No depreciation is provided on construction in progress until the asset is completed and put into use.

() Lease prepayments
Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs of land use rights less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is

provided over the lease period of land use rights on a straight-line basis.

(m) Goodwill and negative goodwill
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the

net assets of the acquired subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is presented as cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is made using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life. Management determines the estimated useful life of goodwill based on its evaluation of the
respective companies at the time of the acquisition, considering factors such as existing market share,
potential growth and other factors inherent in the acguired companies. At each balance sheet date, the
Group assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, an analysis is
performed to assess whether the carrying amount of goodwill is fully recoverable. A write down is made

if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

(ii) Negative goodwill
Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets acquired
subsidiary or associate over the cost of acquisition. Negative goodwill is presented in the same balance

sheet classifications as goodwill.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expected future losses and expenses that are identified in
the Group’s plan for the acguisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised as income when the future losses and expenses
are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair vaiues of the non-monetary
assets acquired, is recognised in the income statement over the remaining weighted average useful life
of those assets. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of those assets is recognised in the income

statement immediately.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(m) Goodwill and negative goodwill (Cont’d)

(ii) Negative goodwill (Cont’d)

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications
exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of goodwill is fully recoverable. A write

down is made if the carrying amounts exceeds the recoverable amount.
The gain or loss on disposals of an entity includes the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

(n) Advances on aircraft and flight equipment
Advance contract payments to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries of aircraft and flight equipment in future

years are capitalised along with attributable interests, and transferred to fixed assets upon delivery of the aircraft.

(o) Borrowing costs

Interest attributable to funds used to finance the acquisition of new aircraft and construction of major ground
facilities is capitalised as an additional cost of the related asset. Interest is capitalised at the Group’s weighted
average interest rate on borrowings or, where applicable, the interest rate related to specific borrowings during

the pericd of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

(p) Long-term bank deposits
Long-term bank deposits placed to secure future lease obligations are classified as held-to-maturity financial

assets and measured at amortised cost.

(q) Impairment

Fixed assets and other non-current assets, including goodwill are reviewed for impairment losses whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount
which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,

assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cashflows.

{r) Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are carried at weighted average cost less allowance for obsolescence.

(s) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less provision made for impairment of these receivables.
A provision for impafrment of trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount cf the provision is
the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of expected cashflows, discounted at the

effective interest rate.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(t) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities

of three months or less at the date of acquisition, are classified as cash and cash equivalents.

(u) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is

virtually certain.

(v) Leases

(i) A Group company is the lessee
Leases of fixed assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability for each period.

Leased assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their expected useful lives to residual

values.

Leases of assets under which a significant portion of the lease risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments made under operating leases

are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the pericd of the lease.

(i) A Group company is the lessor
When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised
as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using

the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in fixed assets in the balance sheet. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar fixed assets. Rental income

is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(w) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and subsequently are remeasured
at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss is dependent on the nature of the item
being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either (1) a hedge of the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability (i.e. fair value hedge), or (2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of a firm commitment (i.e.

cashflow hedge).

Derivative financial instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting is accounted for as trading instrument
and any unrealised gain or loss, being changes in fair value of the derivative, is recognised in the income statement

immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly
effective, are recorded in the income statement, along with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or

liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instrument that gualifies for hedge accounting and is designated as a specific hedge of the

variability in cashflows of a highly probable forecast transaction, is accounted for as follows:—

(i) the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity.
Where the forecasted transaction or firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset or a liability,
the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are included in the initial measurement of the cost of
the asset or liability. Otherwise, the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period during which the hedged forecast

transaction affects net profit or loss.
{ii} the ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised in the income statement immediately.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meéts the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised in the income
statement when the committed or forecasted transaction ultimately occurs. When a committed or forecasted
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recorded in equity is immediately

transferred to the income statement.
{x) Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recongised as a liability in the Group's financial statements

in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(v) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the

current year.

3. Revenues and Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of domestic, Hong Kong and international passenger, cargo
and mail airline services. Turnover comprises revenues from airline and related services net of business tax and

civil aviation infrastructure levies.

Group

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Gross turnover 21,566,944 14,575,443
Less: Business tax (note (a) (528,168) (168,639)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies (note (b)) - (129,646)
21,038,776 14,277,158

(@) Pursuant to various PRC business tax rules and regulations, the Group is required to pay PRC business

tax. Except for traffic revenues derived from inbound international and regional flights which are not
subject to PRC business tax, the Group's traffic revenues, commission income and ground service income

are subject to PRC business tax levied at rates ranging from 3% to 5%.

(b) Prior to 1 May 2003, the civil aviation infrastructure levies were paid to Civil Aviation Administration of
China (“CAAC"), at rates of 5% and 2% respsactively for domestic and international or regional traffic

revenues.

From 1 May 2003 to 31 March 2004, civil aviation infrastructure levies for all traffic revenues of the Group
are waived by CAAC, in compensating for the airlines’ losses on revenue due to the outbreak of Severe

Acute Respiratory Syndrome {(“SARS”).

Effective from 1 April 2004, in accordance with the related new policy promulgated by the PRC Government,
civil aviation infrastructure levies are payable based on the route, aircraft model and tonne-kilometers,
and the levies of RMB251,185,000 incurred for the year ended 31 December 2004 are recorded in the

operating expenses.
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4. Other Operating Income, net

Group

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’0C0

Rental income from operating subleases of aircraft (note 38(c){)) 121,480 31,209
Government subsidy (note (a)) 73,506 58,448
Losses on disposals of aircraft and engines (note (b)) (40,564) (28,767)
154,422 60,890

(a) In 2004, government subsidy was granted by the local government to the Company in consideration of

the relocation of the Company’s international flights and related facilities from Honggiao Airport to Pudong
International Airport. In 2003, the government subsidy was granted for compensation of SARS impact

on airlines business.

(b) During the year, the Group disposed 17 engines (2003: three B737-200 aircraft) to a third party.

5. Wages, Salaries and Benefits

Group

2004 2003
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Wages, salaries and allowances 1,590,722 1,027,092
Contribution under defined contribution retirement schemes (note 33(a)) 194,200 121,200
Post-retirement benefits (note 33(b)ii)) 51,704 40,299
Staff housing allowances (note 34(b)) 29,253 260,463
1,865,879 1,448,054

Average number of employees for the year ended 19,666 16,485ﬁ
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6. Finance Costs, Net

Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Interest charged on obligations under finance leases 339,276 490,456
Interest on bank loans
- wholly repayable within five years 431,517 265,955
- not wholly repayable within five years 144,693 180,291
576,210 446,248
Net foreign exchange losses 32,207 62,179
Interest accrued on a long-term payable (note 31) 8,344 3,610
Interest on loans from an associate 1,629 6,396
Less: amounts capitalised into advances on aircraft and
flight equipment {note 18) (57,120) (97,414)
900,546 917,473
Interest income (129,020) (147 ,846)
771,526 769,627
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial instrument
— interests rate swap 2,659 5,010
- forward foreign exchange contract (11,498) 8,146
762,687 782,783

The capitalisation rates used for the year ended 31 December 2004 ranged between 3 months LIBOR+0.25%
and 5.76% per annum (2003: 3 months LIBOR+0.25% and 5.76% per annum).
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7. Profit/(loss) before Taxation

Group
2004 2003
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Profit/(loss) before taxation is stated after charging.—
Depreciation of fixed assets
- owned assets 1,698,260 1,396,739
- assets held under finance leases and for own use 583,935 577,723
Operating lease rentals
— aircraft 1,720,736 1,238,012
- land and buildings 146,704 116,279
Amortisation of lease prepayments 18,414 20,049
Loss on disposals of other fixed assets - 4,811
Amortisation of goodwill and negative goodwill 2,202 2,202
Consumption of consumables 139,711 86,009
Allowances for obsolescence of flight equipment spare paﬁs 73,406 53,336
Allowances for doubtful accounts 24,250 19,229
Auditors’ remuneration 7,380 7,380
and after crediting:—-
Gain on disposals of other fixed assets 13,001 -
Fair value gain on dispcsals of short-term investments 5,235 21,820
8. Emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments comprise the following:—
Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Emoluments for executive directors
- salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 202 425
- bonuses 269 124
Emoluments for supervisors
— salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 127 46
— bonuses 113 18
711 613

During the year ended 31 December 2004, no directors and supervisors waived their emoluments (2003: nil).
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Emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management {Cont’d)

(b) The five highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:~
Number of individuals
2004 2003
Directors 1 2
Non-directors and non-supervisors 4 3
5 5
(c) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:-

One (2003: two) of the Group’s five highest paid individuals in 2004 are executive directors whose remunerations
are included in the directors’ emoluments above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2003: threg)

highest paid individuals are as follows:-

Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 981 705
Bonuses 431 138
1,412 843

During the year ended 31 December 2004, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, supervisors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation for

loss of office (2003: nil).

Taxation
(a) Taxation is charged to the consolidated income statement as follows:—-
Group

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Provision for PRC income tax - current year 160,502 124,530
Deferred taxation (note 30) 19,578 118,797
180,080 243,327
Share of tax attributable to associates (note 16) 1,144 4,227
181,224 247,554
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9. Taxation (Cont’d)
i) Pursuant to the Circular Hu Shui Er Cai (2001) No. 104 dated 22 October 2001 issued by local tax
bureau, with retrospective effect from 1 July 2001, the Company is entitled to a reduced income tax rate

of 15%.

(i The Company has two major subsidiaries, namely China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (“China Cargo”) and
China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd. ("CEA Jiangsu”}. Pursuant to the Circular (2000) No. 52 jointly
issued by the Shanghai Municipal Financial Bureau and Shanghai Municipal State Tax Bureau, China
Cargo is subject to a reduced income tax rate of 15%. CEA Jiangsu is subject to the standard PRC

income tax rate of 33%.

(i) The difference between the actual taxation charge in the consolidated income statement and the amounts

which would result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit/{loss) before taxation can be reconciled as

follows:—
Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit/(loss) before taxation 845,407 (589,831)
Tax calculated at enacted tax rate of 15% (126,811) 88,475

Effect attributable to subsidiaries and associates charged at
tax rate of 33% (24,902) (4,117)

Adjustments:—

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (35,428) (62,421)
Utllisation of previously unrecognised tax losses of the Company 6,395 -
Unrecognised tax losses of the Company - (258,515)
Unrecognised tax losses of associates (20,993) (14,821)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses of associates 19,998 -
Others 517 3,845
Tax charge (181,224) (247,554)
(b) The Group operates international flights to certain overseas destinations. There was no material overseas

taxation for the year as there exists double tax relief between PRC and the corresponding jurisdictions

{including Hong Kong).
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10. Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share is based on the profit attributable to shareholders of RMB514,075,000
(2003: loss of RMB949,816,000) and 4,866,350,000 (2003: 4,866,950,000) shares in issue during the year. The
Company has no potential dilutive ordinary shares.

11. Dividend

On 12 Aprit 2005, the Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of RMBO.02 per share totalling RMB97,339,000
for the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: nil). These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable,
which will be accounted for in the shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ending
31 Decemnber 2005,

12. Fixed Assets

Group
Aircraft and
flight equipment
Held under Other fixed
finance assets and
Owned leases Buildings  equipment Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Valuation
At 1 January 2004 22,163,218 10,956,426 2,224,520 2,038,181 37,382,345
Reclassification upon purchase
of aircraft under a finance lease 356,328 (356,328) - - -

Lease rebate upon purchase of
aircraft under a finance lease

(note a) (88,921) - - - (98,921)
Transfers from construction
in progress (note 13) - - 84,847 124,352 209,199
Transfers from advances (note 18) 535,548 1,079,852 - - 1,615,400
Additions 1,674,829 2,808,904 22,159 227,428 4,633,320
Disposals (812,312) - (77,511) (68,604) (1,058,427
At 31 December 2004 23,618,600 14,488,854 2,254,015 2,321,357 42,682,916
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2004 5,657,593 3,613,309 334,951 937,589 10,543,442
Reclassification upon purchase of
aircraft under a finance lease 40,746 (40,748) - - -
Charge for the year 1,367,462 583,935 85,761 245,037 2,282,195
Disposals (283,444) - (28,503} (51,093)  {363,040)
At 31 December 2004 6,782,357 4,156,498 392,209 1,131,533 12,462,597
Net book value
at 31 December 2004 16,836,333 10,332,356 1,861,806 1,189,824 30,220,319
Net bock value
at 31 December 2003 16,505,625 7,343,117 1,889,668 1,100,592 286,838,903
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12. Fixed Assets (Cont’d)

Company
Aircraft and
flight equipment
Held under Other fixed
finance assets and
Owned leases Buildings  equipment Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

Valuation
At 1 January 2004 17,922,994 10,956,426 1,347,425 1,392,428 31,619,273
Reclassification upon purchase
of aircraft under a finance lease 356,328 (356,328) - - -
Lease rebate upon purchase of

aircraft under a finance lease

(note a) (98,921) - - - {98,921)
Transfer to a subsidiary (257,407) - - - (257,407)
Transfers from construction in

progress (note 13) - - 75,659 13,218 88,877
Transfer from advance (note 18) 535,548 1,079,852 - - 1,615,400
Additions 1,356,662 2,808,904 20,812 188,199 4,374,577
Disposals (912,312) - (72,901) (57,072) (1,042,285)
At 31 December 2004 18,002,892 14,488,854 1,370,995 1,536,773 36,299,514

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2004 4,687,965 3,613,309 235517 698,722 9,235,513
Reclassification upon purchase of

aircraft under a finance lease 40,746 {(40,746) - - -
Transfer to a subsidiary (40,746) - - - (40,746)
Charge for the year 1,012,161 583,935 56,878 179,772 1,832,746
Disposals (283,444) - (28,021) (41,651) (353,116)
At 31 December 2004 5416,682 4,156,498 264,374 836.843 10,674,397

Net book value
at 31 December 2004 13,486,210 10,332,356 1,106,621 699,930 25,625,117
B Net book value
at 31 December 2003 13,235,029 7,343,117 1,111,908 693,706 22,383,760
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12. Fixed Assets (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(c)

In January 2004, the Company exercised its right upon settlement and termination of a finance lease
arrangement to purchase an aircraft at a consideration equal to the present value of the remaining minimum
lease payments on the date of the purchase. As part of the finance lease arrangement, the Company is
entitled to receive a rebate in the amount of RMBS8,921,000 if it meets certain conditions as defined in

the lease arrangement.

All the conditions 1o receive such rebate had been satisfied and the amount was received in February
2004 and was recognised as an adjustment to the carrying value of the aircraft to which the rebate

relates.

On 30 June 2001, the fixed assets were revalued by an independent valuer registered in PRC on a
market value basis. The revalued amount were not materially different from the carrying vaiues of these
fixed assets. On 31 December 2002, the Group’s fixed assets were revalued by the directors of the
Company on a market value basis. The difference between the valuation and the carrying amount of the
fixed assets as at 31 December 2002 was recognised. On 31 December 2004, the directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying value of the Group’s fixed assets as at 31 December 2004 and are of the

opinion that the carrying amount is not materially different from the fair vaiue.

Had the Group’s fixed assets been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
as at 31 December 2004, the carrying amounts of fixed assets would have been RMB30,067,348,000
(2008: RMB26,618,747,000).

Certain aircraft of the Group and the Company with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
RMB13,032,759,000 were pledged as collateral under certain loan agreements as at 31 December
2004 (2003: RMB9,735,106,000) (see note 26).

13. Construction in Progress

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 219,788 413,812 92,520 109,785
Additions 178,065 249,737 73,891 52,439
Transfer to fixed assets (note 12) (209,199) {(443,761) (88,877) (69,704)
At 31 December 188,654 219,788 77,634 92,520
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14. Lease Prepayments

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments for land use rights.

The Group'’s land use rights are located in the PRC and majority of these land use rights have terms of 50 years
from the date of grant. As at 31 December 2004, majority of these land use rights had remaining terms ranging

from 42 1o 48 years (2003: from 43 to 49 years).

Certificates of certain land use rights with nil carrying value {(2003: nil) of the Group are currently registered under
the name of CEA Holding. The procedures to change the registration of the land use rights certificates with the
relevant municipal land bureaus are currently being addressed by CEA Haolding. Until the completion of these
transfer procedures, the Group is unable to assign or pledge these land use rights. However, the Group currently
has no need to assign and no intention to pledge these land use rights. In addition, the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use these lands for its daily operations in spite of the fact that the procedures of changing
the registration of these land use rights have not been fully completed. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
do not believe the lack of certificates of certain land use rights has any material impact on the financial position of

the Group.

15. investments in Subsidiaries

Company
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 2,146,856 1,600,156
Amounts due from subsidiaries 614,652 2,208,459
2,761,508 3,808,615
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15. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which are limited companies established and operating in the PRC,

are as follows:—

Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity Principal
Company establishment capital interest activities
2004 2003 2004 2003
RVIB’000 RMB'000
China Cargo Alrlines PRC 500,000 500,000 70%  70%  Provision of
Co., Ltd. 22 July 1998 cargo carriage
services
China Eastern Airlines PRC 803,666 236,579 63% 55%  Provision of
Jiangsu Co., Ltd.(?) 3 May 18883 airline services
Eastern Airlines PRC 70,000 70,000 86% 86%  Provision of
Hotel Co., Ltd. 18 March 1998 hotel services
to crew
members
Shanghai Eastern Flight PRC 473,000 473,000 95%  95%  Provision of
Training Co., Ltd. 18 December 1995 flight training
services
Shanghai Eastern Airlines PRC 412,500 412,500 99% 99%  Investment
Investment Co., Ltd. 8 May 2002 holding
Shanghai Eastern PRC 200,000 - 70% - Provision of

Logistics Co., Ltd. (**)

23 August 2004

cargo logistics

services

N in 2004, the Company and one of a minority shareholder contributed additional capital of RMB408,100,000 and RMB1 58,987 000 respectively

o the subsidiary. The Company’s interest in the subsidiary increased from 55% to 83% because the Company contributed proportionally

more than its original ownership interest.

** In 2004, the Company, China Cargo and a minority sharehalder contributed capital of RMB 138,600,000, RMB2,000,000 and RMBES9,400,000
respectively to set up the subsidiary. 69% shareholding are héld directly and 1% shareholding are held indirectly by the Company.
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16. Investments in Associates

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Unlisted investment, at cost - - 625,964 590,601
Share of net assets 609,130 572,818 - -
Goodwill 47,060 53,266 - -
656,190 626,084 625,964 590,601
Group

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000

Movement of investments in associates Is as follows:—
At 1 January 626,084 331,570
Cost of investments 35,362 327,252
Share of results before taxation (4,112) (28,511)
Share of taxation (note 9(a)) (1,144) (4,227)
At 31 December 656,190 - 626,084

The share of results before taxation includes an amortisation of RMB6,206,000 (2003: RMB8,206,000) for the
goodwill in respect of acquisition of associates and a provision of RMB51,200,000 (2003: RMB28,000,000) for a

receivable from a shareholder of an-associate.
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16. Investments in Associates (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal associates, all of which are limited companies established and operating in the PRC,

are as follows;—

Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity Principal
Company establishment capital interest activities
RMB’'000 2004 2003
China Eastern Alrlines PRC 600,000  40% 40%  Provision of air
Wuhan Co., Ltd. 16 August 2002 transportation services
Eastern Air Group PRC 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
Finance Co., Ltd. 6 December 1995 services to companies
comprising CEA
Holding
Eastern Aviation PRC 10,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Advertising Services 4 March 1986 advertising agency
Co., Ltd. services
China Eastern Air PRC 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air
Catering Investment 17 November 2003 catering services
Co., Ltd.
Eastern Aviation Import & PRC 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Export Co., Ltd. 9 June 1993 equipment, spare
parts and tools trading
Shanghai Dongmei PRC 31,000 45% 45%  Provision of travelling
Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. 17 October 2003 and accommodation
agency services
Qingdao Liuting PRC 450,000 25% 25%  Provision of airport

International

Airport Co., Ltd

1 December 2000

operation services
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17. Goodwill and Negative Goodwill

Group and Company

Negative
Goodwill goodwill Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
At 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004 113,105 (565,245) 57,860
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2004 28,275 (8,920) 18,355
Charge for the year 5,654 (3,452) 2,202
At 31 December 2004 33,929 (12,372) 21,557
Net book value
At 31 December 2004 79,176 (42,873) 36,3083
At 31 December 2003 84,830 (46,325) 38,505

18. Advances on Aircraft and Flight Equipment

Group and Company

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2,239,893 3,227,720
Additions 1,996,990 1,198,242
Interest capitalised during the year (note 6} 57,120 97,414
Transfers to fixed assets (note 12) (1,615,400) (2,283,483)
At 31 December 2,678,603 2,239,893

Included in the balance as at 31 December 2004 is interest capitalised of RMB160,016,000 (2003:
RMB130,965,000).
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19. Other Long-term Receivables and Investments

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Long-term bank depasits (note 25) 1,908,398 1,743,924 1,908,398 1,743,924
Deposits for aircraft under
operating leases 133,159 110,812 133,159 80,339
Prepaid custom duty and value
added tax 21,083 37,410 21,083 37,410
Prepayments and other long-term
receivables 139,966 70,216 118,941 53,875
2,202,606 1,962,362 2,181,581 1,825,548

20. Trade Receivables Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The credit terms given to trade customers are determined on an individual basis, with the credit period ranging

from half a month to three months.

As at 31 December 2004, the aging analysis of the trade receivables are as follows:—

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'0C0 RMB'000 RMB'000
Less than 31 days 1,077,804 853,303 738,246 564,870
31 to 60 days 216,236 348,159 95,537 221,498
61 to 90 days 68,845 28,094 43,910 968
Over 90 days 99,787 96,121 49,400 58,168
1,462,672 1,325,677 927,093 845,504

94

89



S Nofes to the Financial Statements
80 China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Amounts due from related
companies {note 38(a)(i) 122,253 45,389 116,001 35,785
Receivables from provision of
ground services 243,890 111,129 243,890 111,129
Receivables from provision of
cargo handling services 118,446 70,022 - -
Prepaid aircraft operating lease rentals 115,456 85,959 101,358 79,340
Short-term deposits with original
maturity over three months 77,446 108,870 12,721 7,441
Discounts on aircraft acquisitions
receivable 31,136 29,814 31,136 29,814
US Treasury zero coupon bonds - 585,736 - 585,736
Others 400,337 324,124 314,888 273,266
1,108,964 1,371,043 819,994 1,122,511

22. Trade Payables and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, all trade payables were current balances and aged within 30 days.

As at 31 December 2004, all notes payables were unsecured, interest free and repayable in six months.

95




Notes to the Financial Statements s

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited 91

{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

23. Other Payables and Accrued Expenses

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Amounts due to related
companies (note 38(a)(i) 138,968 771,643 164,216 739,427
Accrued fuel cost 1,290,038 697,652 1,136,343 603,381
Accrued take-off and landing charges 749,458 703,994 629,948 540,298
Current portion of accrued aircraft »
overhaul expenses (note 24) 539,249 385,168 464,268 377,224
Other accrued operating expenses 427,294 603,260 290,727 492,295
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 333,910 138,854 286,467 119,117
Flight equipment purchase payable 289,232 147,775 281,001 141,920
Airport construction levy payable 243,295 - 243,295 -
Levies collected from ticket sales on
behalf of overseas tax authorities 218,915 82,862 218,915 82,862
Duties and levies payable - 188,627 10,048 150,178 -
Airport expenses related to provision
of ground services 98,162 42,320 98,162 42,320
Current portion of provision for staff
housing allowances (note 34 (b)) 93,427 85,973 85,387 78,771
Current portion of long-term payables
(note 31) 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Current portion of post-retirement
benefit obligations (note 33(b)(7) 27,500 19,750 25,771 18,635
Amounts due to minority sharehclders - 156,308 ~ -
Others 685,574 424,281 580,920 339,670
5,353,649 4,299,989 4,685,598 3,605,820
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24. Accrued Aircraft Overhaul Expenses

25.

Group Company

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2004 576,552 547,813 515,534 441,863
Additional provisions 244,625 123,213 175,314 121,839
Over provision (20,814) (69,456) (20,814) (26,860)
Utilised during the year (85,154) (35,018) (72,755) (21,308)
At 31 December 2004 715,209 576,552 597,279 515,534
Less: current portion (note 23) (539,249) (385,168) (464,268) (377,224)
Long-term portion 175,960 191,384 133,011 138,310

Accrued alrcraft overhaul expenses represent present value of estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft and

engines under operating lease as the Group has the responsibility to fulfill certain return conditions under relevant

lsases.

Obligations under Finance Leases

At 31 December 2004, the Group and the Company had 22 aircraft (2003: 18 aircraft) under finance leases.

Under the terms of the leases, the Group and the Company has the cption to purchase, at or near the end of the

lease term, certain aircraft at fair market value and others at either fair market value or a percentage of the

respective lessor’s defined cost of the aircraft.

The future minimum lease payments, interest and present value of minimum lease payments which are principally

denominated in foreign currencies, under these finance leases as at 31 December 2004 are as follows:—

Group and Company
2004 2003

Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum  Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest  paymenis
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Within one year 1,526,981 337,333 1,189,648 2,049,07% 356,995 1,692,084
In the second year 1,962,208 262,372 1,699,836 1,242,950 256,355 986,595
In the third to fifth year inclusive 3,924,600 168,346 3,756,254 4,361,682 322,316 4,039,366
After the fifth year 2,401,578 385,030 2,016,548 408,853 26,012 382,841
Total 9,815,367 1,153,081 8,662,286 8,062,564 961,678 7,100,886

Less: amount repayable within

one year

(1,526,981) (337,333)(1,189,648) (2,049,079) (356,995) (1,692,084)

Long-term portion

8,288,386 815,748 7,472,638 6,013,485 604,683 5,408,802
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25. Obligations under Finance Leases (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2004, the Group and the Company had long-term bank deposits totalling RMB1,908,398,000
(2003: long-term bank deposits and U.S. Treasury zero coupon bonds totalling RMB2,329,660,000) pledged as
securities under certain finance lease arrangements (see note 19). All of these bank deposits will be used to meet

future lease obligations as they fall due.

In addition, the Group's finance lease obligations are secured by the related aircraft, the relevant insurance policies

and bank guarantees.

26. Long-term Bank Loans

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bank loans
- secured 5,912,958 6,495,507 5,912,958 6,495,507
- unsecured 4,823,302 4,727,416 4,792,679 4,727,416
Total 10,736,260 11,222,923 10,705,637 11,222,923
Less: amount repayable
within one year (3,193,432) (2,250,734) (3,185,156) (2,250,734}
Long-term portion 7,542,828 8,972,189 7,520,481 8,972,189
The bank loans are repayable as follows:-
Within one year 3,193,432 2,250,734 3,185,156 2,250,734
In the second year 2,386,862 2,438,574 2,370,309 2,438,574
In the third to fifth year inclusive 3,216,181 4,163,578 3,210,387 4,163,578
After the fifth year 1,939,785 2,370,037 1,939,785 2,370,037

Total

10,736,260 11,222,923 10,705,637

11,222,923




— Notes to the Financial Statements

94 China Eastern Aitlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

26. Long-term Bank Loans (Cont’d)

The terms of long-term bank loans can be summarised as follows:—-

Group Company
Interest rate and final maturities 2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RMB denominated bank loans:—
Loans for Fixed interests rates ranging
working from 4.94% to 5.76%
capital per annum as at 31 December
2004; 3-year loans with final
maturity through to 2007. 1,710,100 1,306,700 1,710,100 1,306,700
Loans for the Fixed interest rate of 5.18%
purchases of  per annum as at 31 December
aircraft 2004; 2 to 8-year loans with final
maturity through to 2012 880,000 - 880,000 -
Loans for Fixed interest rate of 5.76% per
construction  annum as at 31 December
projects 2004; 7 to 10-year loans with
final maturities through to 2007 412,500 637,500 412,500 637,500
U.S. dollar denominated bank loans:—
Loans for the Fixed interest rates ranging
purchases of  from 5.65% to 6.86% per
aircraft annum and floating interest
rates ranging from 3 months
LIBOR +0.25% to 6 months
LIBOR +0.3% as at 31
December 2004, 2 to 10-year
loans with final maturities
through to 2013 7,703,037 9,278,723 7,703,037 9,278,723
Loan for the Floating interest rates of 6
purchase of months LIBOR +0.6% as at
an aircraft 31 December 2004; 3-year
simulator loans with final maturity in 2007 30,623 - - -
Total long-term bank loans 10,736,260 11,222,923 10,705,637 11,222,923
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26. Long-term Bank Loans (Cont’d)

All secured bank loans as at 31 December 2004 and 2003 of the Group and the Company for the purchases of

aircraft were secured by the related aircraft (note 12(b)). In addition, certain secured bank loans with aggregate
amount of RMB1,162,186,000 (2003: RMB1,456,320,000) were also guaranteed by Export-Import Bank of the

United States, China Industrial and Commercial Bank and China Construction Bank,

Certain unsecured bank loans of the Group and the Company with aggregate amount of RMB2,122,600,000

(2003: RMB1,944,200,000) were guaranteed by CEA Holding (note 38(b)).

27. Short-term Bank Loans

Short-term bank loans of the Group and the Company are repayable within one year with interest charged at the

prevailing market rates based on the rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China. The interest rates related to

such loans were between 2.22% and 5.04% per annum (2003: 2.06% and 5.04% per annum). During the year

ended 31 December 2004, the weighted average interest rate on short-term bank loans was 3.81% per annum

(2003: 3.34% per annum).

28. Share Capital

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000

Registered, issued and fully paid of RMB1.00 each A shares
State-owned shares held by CEA Holding 3,000,000 3,000,000
Shares held by public 300,000 300,000
3,300,000 3,300,000
Overseas listed foreign H shares 1,566,950 1,566,950
4,866,950 4,866,950

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the A shares held by CEA Holding,

employees, the public and H shares are all registered ordinary shares, carrying equal rights.
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29. Reserves

Statutory  Statutory  Discretionary
commaon common common
Share reserve welfare reserve  Revaluation  Capital Hedging  Retained
premium fund fund fund reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
{note (b)) (note (c)) (note (d)) (note 40)
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
Group
At 1 January 2004 1,006,455 143498 142,548 27,989 490,688 (720,057) (77,879) 501,959 1,515,201
Unrealised losses
on cashflow
hedges (note 40)
- gross - - - - - - (7,610) - (7,610)
- tax - - - - - - 1,14 - 1,141
Realised gains on cashflow
hedges (note 40)
- gross - - - - - - (8,839) - (8,839)
- tax - - - - - - 1328 - 1,326
Profit attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - - 514075 514,075
Transfer from retained
profits to reserves
(note (a)) - 35299 31,837 - - - - {67,136) -
At 31 December 2004 1,006,455 178,797 174385 27,989 490,688 (720,057) (91,861) 948,898 2,015,294
Company
At 1 January 2004 1,006,455 77,214 77,214 27,908 448,859 (720,057) (77,879) 131,243 970,963
Unrealised losses
on cashflow
hedges (note 40}
- Qross - - - - - - (7,610} - (7,610)
- tax - - - - - - 114 - 1,141
Realised gains on cashflow
hedges (note 40}
- gross - - - - - - (8,839 - (8,839)
- tax - - - - - - 1328 - 1,326
Release of reserves
upon disposals
of aircraft, net of tax - - - - (13,782) - - 18,782 -
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 393,291 393,291
At 31 December 2004 1,006,455 77,214 77,214 27,908 435,077 (720,067) (91,861) 538,322 1,350,272
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29. Reserves (Cont’d)

Statutory  Statutory ~ Discretionary

common common common
Share  reserve welfare reserve  Revaluation  Capital  Hedging  Retained
premium fund fund fund reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
{note (b)) (note {c}) {note (d)) {note 40)
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
Group
At 1 January 2003 1,006,455 106,809 106,727 27,989 504,957 (720,057) (28,225) 1,507,498 2512153
Unrealised losses
on cashfiow
hedges (note 40)
- gross - - - - - - (71573 - (71,573
- fax - - - - - - 10,736 - 10,736
Realised losses on cashflow
hedges (note 40}
- §ross - - - - ~ - 13,156 - 13156
- tax - - - - - - (1978 - (1,973)
Release of reserves upon
disposals of aircraft
- §ross - - - - (16,787) - - 16,787 -
- fax - - - - 2,518 - - - 2,518
Loss attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - - [948,816) (949,816)
Transfer from retained
profits o reserves
{note {a)) - 36,689 35,821 - - - - [72,510) -
At 31 Decernber 2003 1,006,455 143498 142,548 27,989 490,688 (720,067) (77,879) 501,959 1,515,201
Company
At t January 2003 1006455 77,214 77,214 27,908 517,549 (720,057) (28,225) 1,297,904 2,255,962
Unrealised losses
on cashflow
hedges (note 40)
- gross - - - - - - (11,578) - {71,573
- fax - - - - - - 10,736 - 10736
Realised losses on cashfiow
hedges (note 40)
- §ross - - - - - - 13186 - 13,156
- tax ' - - - - - TR - {19y
Release of reserves upon
disposals of aircraft
- gross - - - - (80,812) - - 80812 -
- tax - - - - 12,122 - - - 12122
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (1,247 467) (1,247 467)
At 31 December 2003 1,008,455 77,214 77,214 27,908 448,859 (720,087 (77,879) 131,249 970,963

102



Notes to the Financial Statements

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

29. Reserves (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

103

For the year ended 31 December 2004, under the PRC Accounting Regulations, the profit for the year of
the Company is used to offset the loss incurred in 2003, Accordingly, no profit appropriation of the
Company to reserves has been made for the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: nil). Transfer from
retained profits to reserves for the year represents the profit appropriation to reserves of certain subsidiaries

of the Company.

Pursuant to PRC regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company is required to
transfer 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to statutory

common reserve fund until the fund aggregates to 50% of the Company’s registered capital.

Statutory commaon reserve fund can be used to make good previous years' losses, if any, and 1o issue
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to increase the par value of
the shares currently held by them, provided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the

registered capital.

Pursuant to PRC regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company is required to
transfer 5% to 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the
statutory common welfare fund. This fund can only be used to provide staff welfare facilities and other

collective benefits to the Company’s employees. This fund is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

The Company is allowed to transfer 5% of the profit for the year as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer to this reserve is subject to the approval

by shareholder’s meetings.




Notes to the Financial Statements

China Eastern Airtines Corporation Limited 99

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

30. Deferred Taxation

As at 31 December 2004, the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction) were made up of taxation effects of the followings:—

2004 2008
Current Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

Group

Deferred tax assets:—
Tax losses carried forward - 349,562 349,562 - 312816 312,916
Provision for obsolete flight equipment

and spare parts - 54,014 54,014 - 41,960 41,960

Repair cost on flight equipment - 118,039 119,039 - 160,541 160,541
Provision for post-retirement benefits 4,192 91,060 95,252 2,999 86,734 89,733
Other accrued expenses 104,493 16,211 120,704 108,518 13,744 122,262

108,685 629,886 738,571 111,517 615,895 727,412
Less: unrecognised assets - (252,120) (252,120) - (258,515 (258,515)

108,685 377,766 486,451 111,617 357,380 468,887

Deferred tax liabilities:-

Provision for overhaul - (106,128) (106,128) - {103,853) (103,853)
Depreciation and amortisation - (7387,775) (737,775) - (705,385) (705,385)
- (843,903) (843,903) - (809,238) (809,238)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 108,685 (466,137) (357,452) 111,517 (451,858) (340,341}
) Company

Deferred tax assets:-

Tax losses carried forward - 349,562 349,562 - 312916 312,918
Provision for obsolete flight
equipment and spare parts - 53,108 53,108 - 43,660 43,660
Repair cost on flight equipment - 120,071 120,071 - 161,573 161,573
Provision for post-retirement benefits 3,866 78,161 82,027 2,795 77,900 80,695
Other accrued expenses 66,838 16,211 83,049 64,371 13,744 78,115
70,704 617,113 687,817 67,166 609,793 676,959
Less: unrecognised assets - (252,120) (252,120) - (258,515) (258,515)

70,704 364,993 435,697 67,166 351,278 418,444

Deferred tax liabilities:—

Provision for overhaul - (60,619) (60,619) - {60,441)  (60,441)
Depreciation and amortisation - (715,481) (715,481) - (672,639) (672,639)

- ({776,100) (776,100) - {733,080) (733,080)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 70,704  (411,107) (340,403) 67,166  (381,802) (314,636)

= ]
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30. Deferred Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same authority. The following

amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance shests:

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 BRMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Deferred tax assets 395,465 399,771 344,711 349,318
Deferred tax liabilities (752,917) (740,112) (685,114) (663,954)
(357,452) (340,34 1) (340,403) (314,636}

In accordance with PRC tax law, tax losses may be carried forward against future taxable income for a period of
five years. As at 31 December 2004, the Company had tax losses carried forward of approximately RMB2,330
million (2003: RMB2,086 miflion) which will expire between 2006 and 2009, available to set off against the Company’s
future taxable income. For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Company did not recognise RMB252,120,000
(2003: RMB258,515,000) of deferred tax asset arising from the tax losses avallable as management believe it was

more likely than not that such tax losses would not be realised before they expire.

Movement in net deferred taxation liability is as follows:~

Group Company
2004 20083 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
At 1 January 340,341 232,825 314,636 217,941
Charged/(credited) to income statement 19,578 118,797 28,234 117,580
Charged/(credited) to equity
- revaluation reserves - (2,518) - (12,122)
© —unrecognised losses on
cashflow hedges (2,467) (8,763) (2,467) (8,763
At 31 December 357,452 340,341 340,403 314,636

===
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31. Long-term Portion of Other Payabie

Group and Company

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB'000

At 1 January 151,860 172,250
Less: instalments paid during the year (30,000} (30,000)
121,860 142,250

Interest accrued during the year (note 6) 8,344 9,610
At 31 December 130,204 151,860
Less: Current portion {note 23) (30,000) (30,000)
Long-term portion 100,204 121,860

Balance is unsecured, accrue interest at an effective rate of 6.21% and is repayable by annual instalment of

RMB30 million (before taking into account of time value) up to year’ 2009.

32. Minority Interests

Group

2004 2003

RMB'0C0 RMB'000

At 1 January 522,713 404,517
Contributions from minority shareholders 218,387 5,765
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (60,000} -
Share of profits of subsidiaries 150,108 112,431
At 31 December 831,208 522,713

33. Retirement Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes

0)

Pension

Substantially all of the Group employees are eligible to participate in the Group’s retirement schemes.

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes organised by the municipal governments

of the various provinces in which the Group operates. The Group is required to make annual contributions

to the schemes at rates ranging from 20% to 22% of salary costs including certain allowances calculated

in the prior year. Employees contribute at rates ranging from 7% to 8% of their basic salaries. The Group

has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions

under these schemes. For the year ended Sf December 2004, the Group’s pension cost charged to the

income statement amounted to RMB 146,500,000 (2003: RMB121,200,000).
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33. Retirement Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits (Cont’d)

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes (Cont’d)

(i) Medical insurance
In 1998, the State Council announced that each municipal government should introduce a medical
insurance scheme for employees and retirees of all enterprises, of which the detailed policies and

regulations were to be set out by individual municipal government.

In the end of 2000, the Shanghal Municipal Government promulgated the detailed policies and regulations
of its medical insurance scheme. In January 2001, the Group joined this scheme under which the Group
and its employees contribute approximately 12% and 2% of the employee’s basic salaries to the scheme
respectively. The Group has no other obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond the annual
contributions. For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group’s medical insurance contribution charged

to the income statement amounted to RMB76,288,000 (2003: RMB65,012,000).

(b) Post retirement benefits
In addition to the above retirement schemes, the Group provides retirees with post-retirement benefits
including transportation subsidies, social function activities subsidies as well as other welfare. The expected
cost of providing these post-retirement benefits is actuarially determined and recognised by using the
projected unit credit method, which involves a number of assumptions and estimates including the rate

of inflation, discount rate and employees’ turnover ratio.

(i As at 31 December 2004, the post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheets of the

Group and the Company were as follows:~

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Present value of unfunded

post-retirement benefit obligations 538,428 514,351 462,997 440,362
Unrecognised actuarial gains 51,704 51,170 34,948 48,702
Post-retirement benefit obligations 590,132 565,521 497,945 489,064
Less: current portion (note 23) (27,500) (19,750) (25,771) (18,635)

Post-retirement benefit obligations
~ long-term portion 562,632 545,771 472,174 470,429
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33. Retirement Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Post retirement benefits (Cont’d)

(ii) Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations are as follows:~

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB*000 RMB’000 RMB'C00
At 1 January 565,521 544,677 489,064 466,068
Current service cost 20,849 13,064 17,497 11,262
Interest on obligation 29,857 27,235 25,058 23,474
Actuarial loss recognised 998 - 998 -
Payment made in the year (27,093} (19,455) (26,067) (18,712)
Transfer (to)/from subsidiaries - - (8,605) 6,972
At 31 December 590,132 565,521 497,945 489,064
(i) The costs of post-retirement benefits were recognised under wages, salaries and benefits in the
consolidated income statement for the year as follows:—
Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Current service cost 20,849 13,064
Interest on obligation 29,857 27,235
Actuarial loss recognised 998 -
Total (note 5) 51,704 40,299
{iv) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:~
Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Discount rate 5.00% 5,00%
Annual rate of increase of per capita benefit payment 1.50% 1.50%
Employees turnover rate 3.00% 3.00%
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34. Staff Housing Benefits

(a) Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group is required to make contribution to the State-
sponsored housing fund at a range from 1% to 15% (2003: 1% to 15%) of the specified salary amount of its PRC
employees. At the same time, the employees are required to make contribution equal to the Group’s contribution
out of their salaries. The employees are entitled to claim the entire sum of the fund contribution under certain
specified withdrawal circumstances. For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group's contributions to the

heousing funds amounted to RMB94,200,000 (2003: RMB65,300,000) which is charged to the income statement.

(b) Staff housing allowances

Upon the issuance of the government circulars in 2000, the Company’s directors estimated a provision of
approximately RMB80,179,000 for staff housing allowance payable to eligible employees who joined in the Group
prior 1o 1998 with reference to staff housing policies already set out by certain provincial governments then. Such
provision for staff housing benefits is included in other payables in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at

31 December 2002.

In October 2003, the Board of directors approved a new staff housing policy (the “New Staff Housing Policy”)
which is extended to cover all existing staff who have not been allocated sufficient housing quarters. The benefit
level given to the staff under the New Staff Housing Policy is generally higher as compared to the policies to which

the Company’s directors made reference in 2000.

Under the New Staff Housing Policy, staff who have not been allocated with any housing quarters or who have
not been allocated with a quarter up to the minimum area as set out in the New Staff Housing Policy are entitled
10 a cash allowance. An eligible staff’'s entitiement is calculated based on area of quarter entitled and the unit price
as set out in the New Staff Housing Policy. The total entitiement is principally vested over a period of 20 years.
Upon an employee’s resignation, his or her entitiement will cease and any unpaid entitlement related to past
services will be paid. Upon the establishment of the New Staff Housing Policy, employees are entitled to a portion
of the total entitlement already accrued based on his or her past service period. Such entitiement will be paid over
a period of 4 t0 5 years. The Group recognised a provision of RMB 340,642,000 as related to its present obligation
for its employee's staff housing entitlements, RMB 85,873,000 of which is classified as current portion in other
payables in the Group’s consolidated balance shest as at 31 December 2003 (note 23). The incremental obligation
of RMB 280,463,000 for staff housing benefits as a result of the New Staff Housing Policy was charged to the

2003's income statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the staff housing benefit provided under the New Staff Housing Policy

amounted to RMB29,253,000 and is charged to the income statement.
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35. Supplementary information to the Consolidated Cashflow Statement

2004 2003
RMB'000 RMB’000
Investing activities not affecting cash:-
Discounts on aircraft acquisition used for purchases
of flight equipment and spare parts - 50,220
Financing activities not affecting cash:-
Finance lease obligations incurred for acquisition of aircraft 3,177,225 -

36. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(a) Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2004, the Group and the Company had the following capital commitments:—

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
Authorised and contracted for:—
— Aircraft and related equipment 8,791,472 7,668,801 8,791,472 7,668,801
- Other 437,574 358,415 406,494 358,415

9,229,046 8,027,216 9,197,966 8,027,216

Authorised but not contracted for:i—

- Aircraft and related equipment 3,533,000 723,000 1,900,000 -
- Additional investment in subsidiaries - - - 992,183
- Other 2,381,710 1,122,526 2,117,727 1,054,650

5,914,710 1,845,526 4,017,727 2,048,833

15,143,756 9,872,742 13,215,693 10,074,048

——

The above commitments mainly include amounts for acquisition of five A320, two A321, twenty A330, six B737,
five A319 and five ERJ145 aircraft (2003: ten A320, two A340, four A321 aircraft and two A340 engines) for
delivery between 2005 and 2008 (2003: between 2004 and 2005).
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36. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(a) Capital commitments (Cont’d)
Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft and related equipment, including deposits prior to delivery, subject
to an inflation increase built in the contracts and any discounts available upon delivery of the aircraft, were expected

to be paid as follows:—

Group and Company

2004

RMB’000

2005 6,945,235
2006 1,350,420
2007 495,817
8,791,472

(b) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2004, the Group and the Company had commitments under operating leases to pay future

minimum lease rentals as follows:—

2004 2003
Aircraft Aircraft
and flight Land and and flight Land and
equipment buildings equipment buildings

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Group
Within one year 1,024,857 19,287 1,083,619 49,532
In the second year 1,095,792 14,874 1,134,669 12,284
In the third to fifth year inclusive 3,094,495 25,401 2,735,477 24,413
After the fifth year 550,310 22,139 1,145,355 11,206
5,765,454 81,701 6,079,120 97,435
Compé,hy E— : - -
Within one year 831,187 19,207 869,944 45,343
In the second year 902,122 14,794 940,895 12,175
In the third to fifth year inclusive 2,397,661 25,379 1,910,171 24,313
After the fifth year 550,310 122,139 1,080,134 11,208

4,681,280 81,519 4,801,244 93,037
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37. Segmental Reporting

(a) Primary reporting format by business segment
The Group operates in one business segment which is the common carriage of passengers, cargo and mail over

various routes authorised by CAAC.,

(b) Secondary reporting format by geographical segment

The Group’s turnover and segment results by geographical segments is analysed as follows:~

. Other
Domestic Hong Kong Japan countries(*) Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2004
Traffic revenues
~ Passenger 8,283,701 2,186,810 1,466,070 3,421,033] 15,357,614
~ Cargo and mail 298,846 592,008 647,181 2,890,325 4,428,360
8,582,547 2,778,818 2,113,251 6,311,358 19,785,974
Other operating revenues 1,163,205 22,223 16,900 50,474 1,252,802
Turnover 9,745,752 2,801,041 2,130,151 6,361,832 21,038,776
Segment results 226,803 388,497 238,192 471,263 1,324,755
Unallocated income (note 4) 154,422
Operating profit 1,479,177
2003
Traffic revenues
- Passenger 5,591,840 1,627,003 977,610 2,064,6841 | 10,261,027
~ Cargo and mail 279,003 390,088 588,361 1,929,532 3,186,984
5,870,643 2,017,181 1,565,971 3,894,216 13,448,011
Other operating revenues 788,811 10,738 8,336 21,282 829,147
Turnover 6,659,454 2,027,919 1,674,307 4,015,478 14,277,158
Segment results (576,838) 224,683 190,042 322,686 160,573
Unallocated income (note 4) 60,820
Operating profit 221,463
0] include U.S., Europe and other Asian countries

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group are its aircraft fleet, all of which are registered in the PRC. Since
the Group’s aircraft fleet is deployed flexibly across its route network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such
assets and the related liabilities to geographical segments and hence segment assets and capital expenditure by

segment has not been presented.
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38. Related Party Transactions

(a)
0]

U]

(iti)

113

Balances with related companies
Amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries arising from trading activities are unsecured, interest free and

with no fixed terms of repayment. As at 31 December 2004, such balances mainly included the following:.—

China Eastern Air Northwest Company ("CEA Northwest”)
Amount of RMB118,433,000 (2003: RMB217,680,000) due from CEA Northwest comprised amount of
air tickets sold by CEA but uplift by CEA Northwest and operating lease rental charges for aircraft.

China Eastern Air Yunnan Company (“CEA Yunnan”)
Amount of RMB42,087,000 due to CEA Yunnan (2003: amount due from CEA Yunnan RMB65,648,000)
comprised amount of air tickets sold by CEA but uplift by CEA Yunnan and operating lease rental charges

for aircraft.

Nanjing Afrlines Co., Ltd. {“Nanjing Airlines”)
Amount of RMB44,370,000 (2003: RMB15,535,000) due from Nanjing Airlines comprised operating

lease rental charges for aircraft.

Amounts due from/to asscciates

China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. {("CEA Wuhan Airlines”)

Amount of RMB 18,063,000 (2003: RMB36,099,000) due to CEA Wuhan Airlines comprised amount of
air tickets sold by CEA but uplift by CEA Wuhan Airlines and operating lease rental income for operating

lease of aircraft.

Eastern Aviation Import & Export Co., Ltd. (“EAIEC”)
Amount of RMB47,083,000 (2003: RMB509,248,000) due to EAIEC comprised prepayments and
purchases of flight equipment and flight equipment spare parts payable to EAIEC.

Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. ("SDATC”)
Amount of RMB39,485,000 (2003: RMB24,940,000) due from SDATC represented amount of tickets
sold by SDATC.

Short-term deposits with an associate

The Group and the Company have short-term deposits of RMB413,870,000 and RMB43,207,000 (2003:
RMB214,241,000 and RMB88,124,000) respectively placed with Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd.
("EAGF"), an associate. The short-term deposits vield interest at an average rate of 0.72% per annum

{2003: 0.72% per annum).
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(b)

Balances with related companies (Cont’d)

Short-term loans from an associate

The Group and the Company have short-term loans of RMB140,765,000 and RMB132,765,000 (2003:
RMB860,000,000 and RMBB830,000,000) respectively from EAGF. During the year ended 31 December

2004, the weighted average interest rate on the loan was 4.5% per annum (2003: 4.54% per annum).

Guarantee by the holding company

As at 31 December 2004, unsecured long-term bank loans of the Group and the Company with aggregate

amount of RMB2,122,600,000 (2003: RMB1,944,200,000) are guaranteed by CEA Holding (note 286).

(c)

Related party transactions

Except as disclosed in note 8 of the financial statement, the Group had the following material fransactions with its

related parties during the year ended 31 December 2004, which were, in the opinion of the directors, carried out

in the normal course of business:~

Sublease arrangement with CEA Northwest

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Company entered into operating lease agreements with
two third-party lessors to lease six A320 aircraft. These aircraft were operated by CEA Northwest from
the effective date of the relevant lease to the date of agreement being modified (refer below for details).
No agreements were entered into between the Company and CEA Northwest regarding the arrangement,
nor writien consents obtained from the lessors for the operation of the six A320 by CEA Northwest.
Under the lease arrangement, the Company is liable 1o the lessors for all obligations under the lease
agreement. Upon the Board of Directors being notified of the arrangement in August 2004, it appropriately
took action and the Company entered into agreements in December 2004 and April 2005 with the
third-party lessors, CEA Northwest, and the relevant leasing company to modify the original lease
agreement (the “Novation and Amendment Agreements”) to completely relieve the Company of the
lease obligations for the lease arrangements. From the inception of the lease to the effective date of the
Novation and Amendment Agreements, the Company charged CEA Northwest the same amount it paid

1o the third-party lessors for use of the six A320 aircraft,

Under the Novation and Amendment Agreements, the Company was relieved from all obligations related
to the original lease arrangements from the inception of the lease and CEA Northwest will become the
sole lessee to the amended lease agreements. During 2004, prior to the execution of the Novation and
Amendment Agreements, the Company account for the arrangement as a sublease, the lease income of
RMB83,241,000 from CEA Northwest are recorded as other operating income, and the same amount

paid to the third-party lessors as lease expense.
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c)
(ii)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Rescission of lease arrangements with fellow subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group entered into certain lease arrangements to lease
aircraft from fellow subsidiaries to operate on certain of the Company’s air routes. In connection with the
lease arrangements, the Company operated the aircraft, recognising traffic revenue and expenses, relating
to payments to independent third parties for fuel, take-off and landing fees, and other costs related to the

operation of those aircraft.

Under PRC Company Law and applicable stock exchange listing rules, certain related party transactions
meeting specified thresholds, including lease transactions, require prior approval by the Board of Directors,
including the independent directors. Certain of the lease arrangements to fease three A310 aircraft from
CEA Northwest and three Bae 146 aircraft from Nanjing Airlines, a subsidiary of CEA Northwest, (collectively,
the "Leased Alrcraft”) in 2004 had not been properly authorised and approved in advance by the Board
of Directors. Accordingly, as such lease arrangements were not properly approved in advance, the Board
of Directors resolved in August and December 2004 to terminate the lease arrangements, and agreement
was reached with CEA Northwest to terminate such arrangements. In connection with the termination of
the lease arrangements, the Company and CEA Northwest agreed to retroactively rescind the transactions
from the inception of the lease arrangements as permitted under PRC laws. The Company has been
advised by its external PRC counsel that under PRC law, a transaction can be rendered invalid from
inception upon agreement by all parties. However, under IFRS, because the Group actually operated the
Leased Aircraft in its normal business operations during the period from the inception to rescission of the
lease, the air traffic revenue of RMB440,864,000 and related operating costs of RMBE573,893,000
{including the lease charges of RMB192,098,000 and RMB44,895,000 payable to CEA Northwest and
Nanjing Airlines respectively) have been recognised in the financial statements of the Company. The
impact of the retroactive rescission of the CEA Northwest lease arrangements was for CEA Northwest
and Nanijing Airlines to walve amounts owed by the Group totaling RMB133,029,000 (the “Settlement
Amount”), which represents the operating losses incurred on the operation of the Leased Aircraft during
2004. The Settlement Amount was in effect an extinguishment of a financial liability through a reduction
of the Group’s inter-company payable account with CEA Northwest or Nanjing Airlines, as applicable.
The Settlement Amount was recognised as non-operating income for the year ended 31 December
2004 due to its nature being that of a financing transaction. The action of the Board of Directors to
disapprove and retroactively rescind such arrangement, with consent from CEA Northwest or Nanjing,
was 1o ensure that the Group's financial position being restored to what it would have been had the lease

arrangements never been entered into.
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(a) Balances with related companies (Cont'd)
(iii) In addition to the transaction disclosed above, the Group had the following transactions, with its related

parties during the year ended 31 December, 2004:-

income/
(Expenses, payments or
purchase consideration)
2004 2003
Nature of transaction Related party RMB'000 RMB’000

With CEA Holding or companies directly

or indirectly held by CEA Holding:~

Interest income on deposits at rates of EAGF 4,897 4,096
0.72% per annum (2003: 0.72% per annum)

interest expenses on loans at rates of 4.5% EAGF (1,150 (6,396)
per annum (2003: 4.54% per annum)

Commission income on carriage service - CEA Northwest 93,062 51,667
provided by other airlines with air tickets sold - CEA Yunnan 81,517 50,442
by the Group at fixed rates ranging from ~ CEA Wuhan Airlines 32,396 28,964

3% to 9% of value of tickets sold
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Income/

{Expenses, payments or
purchase consideration)

2004 2003
Nature of transaction Related party RMB’000 RMB’'000
With CEA Holding or companies directly
or indirectly held by CEA Holding (Cont’d):-
Commission expenses on air tickets sold on - Shanghai Tourism (13,201) (6,046)
behalf of the Group at rates ranging from Company (Hong Kong)
3% to 9% of value of tickets sold Limited
~ CEA Northwest (14,181) (17,776)
- CEA Yunnan (22,494) (10,743)
- Certain other subsidiaries
of CEA Halding (19,402) (25,466)
— CEA Wuhan Alrlines (32,396) (8,547)
- SDATC (8,228) (24,940)
Handling charges of 0.1% to 2% for EAIEC (34,270) (21,393}
purchase of aircraft, flight equipment,
flight equipment spare parts and other fixed
assets
Ticket reservation service charges for utilisation TravelSky Technology (86,311) (71,884)
of computer reservation system Limited
Repairs and maintenance expenses CEA Northwest (9,535) -
for ground service facilities
Repairs and maintenance expenses Shanghai Eastern Union (25,445) {25,361)
for aircraft and engines Aviation Wheels & Brakes
Overhaul Engineering
Co., Ltd.
Lease rental income from operating lease of CEA Wuhan Alrlines 38,239 31,209

aircraft
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Income/

{Expenses, payments or
purchase consideration)

2004 2003
Nature of transaction Related party RMB’000 RMB’'000
With CEA Holding or companies directly
or indirectly held by CEA Holding {Cont'd):-
Lease rental charges for operating lease of aircraft ~ CEA Northwest (199,188) 69,118}
- Nanjing Airlines - (23,348)
- CEA Yunnan (86,341) (27,726)
Source of food and beverages - Eastern Alr (Shantou) (57,623) (36,413)
Economic Development
Co., Ltd.
- China Eastern Air Catering
Investment Co., Ltd (188,406) -
- Shanghai Eastern Air - (96,984)
Catering Co., Ltd
- Qilu Eastern Air Catering - {5,285)
Co., Ltd.
- Qingdac Air Service Co., Ltd. - (2,518)
Advertising expenses Eastern Aviation Advertising (5,629) (2,678)
Service Co., Ltd. (‘EAASC”)
Purchase of aviation equipment Shanghal Eastern Aviation (14,850) (3,149)

Equipment Manufacturing

Corporation
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Income/

(Expenses, payments or
purchase consideration)

2004 2003
Nature of transaction Related party RMB'000 RMB'000
With CEA Holding or companies directly
or indirectly held by CEA Holding {Cont’d):~
Rental expenses Shanghai Eastern Aviation (5,582) (5,945)
Equipment Manufacturing
Corporation
Investment in China Eastern Air Real Estate CEA Holding (5,000) -
Investment Co., Ltd., a company 95%
owned by CEA Holding
Investment in an associate, Eastern Aviation CEA Holding - {43,820)
Import & Export Co. Ltd., a company
55% owned by CEA Holding
Investment in an associate, China Eastern Air CEA Holding - (157,500)
Catering Investment Co., Ltd., 55% interests of
which is owned by CEA Holding
Investment in an associate, Shanghai Dongmel CEA Holding - (6.828)

Aviation Travel Co., Ltd., 55% interests

of which is owned by CEA Holding
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38. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) Related party transactions (Cont’d)
(iv) Other related party arrangements with CEA Northwest/CEA Yunnan
In addition to the related party transactions disclosed above, the Company also has other non-monetary

arrangements with CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan as follows:

¢ Airroutes - Inthe PRC, air routes are assigned by CAAC. The Company has permitted CEA Northwest
and CEA Yunnan to use some of the air routes allocated to the Company during the year of 2004 at
no charge to CEA Northwest or CEA Yunnan, as applicable, as the Company did not have sufficient

capacity to fully utilise those air routes.

¢ Inter-aitline billing code — As with all other airlines in the PRC, the Company pays a processing fee to
CAAC for use of the ticket settlement system based on the volume of the tickets processed. At the
direction of CAAC, the Company has permitted CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan to use the
Company’s unigue inter-airline billing code ("781") at no incremental charge other than amounts paid
to CAAC to facilitate ticket settlement between the airlines. Internal administrative cost for ticket

handling and processing are not charged to CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan.
{v) Related party transaction of an associate

China Eastern Air Catering Investment Co., Ltd, an associate of the Company in which the Company and
CEA Holding hold 45% and 55% interest respectively, acquired certain subsidiaries from CEA Holding in
an aggregate consideration of RMB263,804,000 during the year ended 31 December 2004.

(d) In accordance with a specific exemption in IAS 24, “Related Party Disclosure”, the Group does not

accumulate or disclose transactions with other state-owned enterprises as related party transactions.

39. Financial Risk Management

Financial assets of the Group mainly include short-term deposits and bank balances, deposits with and amounts
due from related companies, trade receivables, long-term receivables, bank deposits, short-term investments
and derivative assets. Financial liabilities of the Group include bank and other loans, obligations under finance

leases, amounts due to related companies, trade payables, notes payables, derivative liabilities and other payables.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(a) Business tisk

The operations of the air transportation industry are substantially influenced by global pclitical and economic
development. Accidents, wars, natural disasters, etc. may have material impact on the Group’s operations or the
industry as a whole. In addition, the Group conducts its principal operations in the PRC and accordingly is subject
to special consideration and significant risks not typically associated with companies in the United States of
America and Western Europe. These include risks associated with, among others, the poalitical, economic and

legal environment, competition and influence of CAAC in the PRC civil aviation industry.

(b) Price risk

The Group's results of operations may be significantly affected by the fluctuation of the fuel prices which is a
significant expense for the Group. While the international fuel prices are determined by worldwide market demand
and supply, domestic fuel prices are regulated by CAAC. Itis the Group's plan to strengthen the control over the

fuel price risk through financial derivatives.

(c) interest rate risk

The Group has significant bank borrowings and is exposed 1o risk arising from changes in market interest rates.
To hedge against the variability in the cashflow arising from a change in market interest rates, the Group entered
into certain interest rate swaps during the year (note 40(a)). The interest rates and terms of repayment of loans

made to the Group are disclosed in notes 25, 26 and 27.

(d) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group also receives deposit
from customers and counter-parties, where appropriate, if they require credit. A major portion of sales is conducted
through sales agents and majerity of these agents is connected to various settlement plans and/or clearing

systems which have tight requirements on credit standing of these agents.

Transactions in relation to derivative financial instruments are only carried out with financial institutions of high

reputation. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.

0] Deposits with an associate and cash and bank balances
Substantially all the Group's cash and bank balances are placed with a number of intematiohal and PRC
banks and an associate, EAGF. Amount placed with any one institution is subject to a cap. Regular
assessment of credit ratings on these institution has been performed. Detalls of deposits placed with

EAGF have been disclosed in note 38(a)fiii).
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{Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decernber 2004

39. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(d) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(ii) Trade receivables
These are mainly tickets sales receivable from sales agents and receivables related to uplifts by the

Company on behalf of other carriers which are spread among numerous third parties.

(i) Other receivables

These are spread among numerous third parties.

(e) Liquidity risk
The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions of and upgrades on aircraft and flight equioment

and payments on related debts. The Group finances its working capital requirements through a combination of

funds generated from operations and short-term bank loans. The Group generally acquires aircraft through long-
term finance leases. To take advantage of the low interest rate for long-term loans, recently the Group also

purchased certain number of aircraft through long-term loans from banks in the PRC.

The Group generally operates with a working capital deficit. As at 31 December 2004, the Group's net current
liabilities amounted to RMB 12,502 million (2003: RMB@,941 million). For the year ended 31 December 2004, the
Group recorded a net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB3,266 million (2003: RMB3,163 million), a net
cash outflow from investing activities and financing activities of RMB2,745 million (2003: RMB3,541 million), and

an increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB521 million (2003: decrease of RMB378 million).

The directors of Company believe that cash from operations and short-term bank borrowings will be sufficient to
meet the Group’s operating cashflow. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group treasury
aims at maintaining flexibility in anding by keeping credit lines available. The directors of the Company believe
that the Group has obtained sufficient general credit facilities from PRC banks for financing future capital

commitments and for working capital purposes.

(f) Foreign currency risk ,

The Group’s finance lease obligation as well as certain bank and other loans are denominated in US dollars,
Japanese Yen and Euro, and certain expenses of the Group are denominated in currencies other than RMB. The
Group generates foreign currency revenues from ticket sales made in overseas offices and would normally generate
sufficient foreign currencies after payment of foreign currency expenses, to meet its foreign currency liabilities
repayable within one year. RMB against US dollars had been comparatively stable in the past. However, RMB
against Japanese Yen and Euro had experienced a significant level of fluctuation over the past two years which is
the major reason for the significant exchange differences recognised by the Group for the years ended 31 December
2003 and 2004.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

39. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
(f) Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)
The Group enters into certain foreign currency forward contracts with PRC banks to hedge against foreign currency

risk (note 40).

(9) Fair value
The carrying amounts and estimated fair value of the Group’s significant financial assets and liabilities at 31

December 2004 are sst out as follows:—

Group and Company

2004 2003
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Long-term bank loans 10,705,637 9,878,592 11,222,923 10,131,805
Obligations under finance leases 8,662,286 8,382,324 7,100,886 7,069,346
Long-term bank deposits 1,908,398 1,990,832 1,743,924 1,840,139

The fair values of the long-term bank loans, obligation under finance leases and long-term bank deposits are
estimated by applying a discounted cashflow approach using current market interest rates for similar indebtedness/

investment,

The fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from and to related
companies, trade payables, notes payables, other payables and short-term bank loans are not materially different

from their carrying amounts because of the short maturities of these instruments.
Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time and are based on relevant market information. This estimate

is subjective in nature and involves uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be

determined with precision. Changes in valuation methods and assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year endled 31 December 2004

40. Derivative Financial Instruments

Group and Company

Assets Liabilities
RMB’000 RMB'000

At 31 December 2004
Interest rate swaps (note (a)) 11,571 19,447
Forward foreign exchange contracts {note (b)) - 100,196
11,571 119,643

At 31 December 2003

Interest rate swaps (note (a)) 2,814 40,390
Forward foreign éxchange contracts (note (b)) - 54,047
2,814 94,437

(a) Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce risk of changes in market interest rates (note 39(c)). The interest
rate swaps entered into by the Group generally for swapping variable rates, usually reference to LIBOR, with fixed
rates. The Group’s interest rate swaps fulfill the criteria for hedge accounting and are accounted for as cashflow
hedge. As at 31 December 2004, the notional amount of the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was
approximately US$437 million (2003: US$164 million) which will expire between 2006 and 2013. For the year
ended 31 December 2004, a net gain of RMB29,700,000 (2003: loss of RMB315,000) arising from changes in
the fair value of the interest rate swaps subseqguent to initial recognition is recognised directly in the hedging

reserve (note 29).

(b} Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group uses currency forward contracts to reduce risks of changes in currency exchange rates in respect of
ticket sales and expenses denominated in foreign currencies (note 39(f)). These contracts were generally entered

for sales of Japanese Yen and purchases of U.S. dollars at fixed exchange rates. The Group’s currency forward

contracts qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for as cashflow hedges of firm commitments. As at 31
December 2004, the notional amount of the outstanding currency forward contracts were approximately US$226
million (2003: US$237 million). These currency forward contracts will expire between 2006 and 2010. For the year
ended 31 December 2004, a net loss of RMB46,149,000 (2003: RMB58,102,000) arising from changes in the fair
value of these foreign currency forwards subsequent 1o initial recognition is recognised directly in the hedging

reserve (note 29).
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2004

41. Ultimate Holding Company

The directors regard CEA Holding, a company established in the PRC, as being the immediate holding and the

ultimate holding company.

42, Post Balance Sheet Date Event
On 2 March 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with United Technologies Far East Limited (*UTFEL"),
to establish Hamilton Sundstrand {(Shanghai) Aerospace Technology Limited ("HSSATL"), a jointly controlled entity
which will be principally engaged in the provision of repair and maintenance services for auxiliary power units of
aircraft in the PRC. The registered capital of HSSATL is US$8,900,000, which is to be contributed by the Company
and UTFEL in proportion of 51% and 49% respectively.
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Repor! of tne PRC Audiiors

China Eastemn Airfines Corporation Limited

HZKZ(2005)0001

To the shareholders of

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet and consolidated balance sheet of China Eastern Airlines Corporation
Limited ("the Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and the related statement of income and income appropriation,
and consolidated statement of income and income appropriation, and statement of cash flow and consolidated
statement of cash flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Independent Auditing Standards of the People’s Repubilic of China to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.
In our opinion, the above-mentioned financial statements are in conformity with the Accounting Standards and the

“Accounting Regulations for Enterprises”. They present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Company as of December 31, 2004, operating results and cash flow for the year then ended.

Dongmo Lin C.P.A.

LiChen C.PA,

Shanghai Zhonghua Certified Public Accountants

Shanghai, China
April 12, 2005
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Balance Sheei

China Eastemn Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
As at 31 December 2004

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Unit: RMB
Consolidated Parent corp. ;
Ending Beginning Ending Beginning !
Assets Note Balance Balance Balance Balance
Current Assets:
Cash & bank 51 3,841,460,120.53 3,322,926,329.92 2,571,544,389.61 2,246,480,385.11
Short-term Investment 5.2 413,042,752.711 182,786,582.38 412,692,752.71 182,786,582.38
Dividends Receivable 6,990,663.15 3,300,000.00 6,990,663.15 3,300,000.00
Interests Recelvable 240,061.50 - - -
Accounts Receivable 5.3 1,780,420,970.81 1,475,550,239.60 1,562,172,460.75 967,867,269.65
Other Receivables 54 858,396,742.73 424,503,864.46 1,345,534,606.21 2.381,112,226.91
Prepayments 55 32,142,313.83 16,502,998.23 25,714,275.32 8,719,784.69
Inventories 56 1,177,346,469.96 1,348,137,867.35 1,098,436,416.93 1,275,070,338.58
Amounts to be Amortized 57 125,451,097.02 107,328,906.46 106,129,728.15 86,742,026.77
Total Current Assets 8,235,491,192.24 6,879,036,788.40 7,129,215,292.83 7,152,078,614.09
Long-term Investment
Long-term equity Investment 5.8 677,070,402.26 £94,568,890.86 2,996,065,529.94  2,578,539,797.83
Long-term Debt Investment 59 - 585,736,277.08 - 586,736,277.08
Total Long-term Investment 677,070,402.26 1,280,305,167.94 2,996,065,529.94 3,164,276,074,91
L.ess: Provision for Impairment of
Long-term Investment 58 1,758,050.62 1,758,050.62 - -
Long-term Investment, net 675,312,351.64 1,278,547,117.32 2,996,065,529.94 3,164,276,074.91
Including: Consolidation Difference 58 -1,653,640.63 -1,879,467.30 - -
Including: Equity Investment Difference 5.8 53,910,614.20 58,747,236.09 51,741,918.01 58,367,059.93
Fixed Assets:
Fixed Assets, at cost 510  40,860,132,679.81  35907,184,718.07  34,097,710,149.69  29,633,482,904.84
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 510  12,905,946,919.58  11,716,702,028.87  10,414,452,094.15 9,596,957,491.83
Net Fixed Assels 27,954,185,760.23  24,190,482,689.20  23,683,258,055.54  20,036,525,413.01
Less: Provision for Impairment of
Fixed Assets 510 3,570,000.00 3,570,000.00 3,570,000.00 3,570,000.00
Fixed Assets, net 27,950,615,760.23  24,186,912,68920  23,679,688,055.54  20,032,955,413.01
Engineering Supplies 326,900.00 329,000.00 326,900.00 329,000.00
Construction in Progress 511 2,910,755,235.80 2,749,083,854.48 2,802,052,449.65 2,622,108,383.42
Disposal of Fixed Assets - 162,661.03 - -~
Total Fixed Assets 30,861,697,896.03  26,936,488,204.71  26,482,067,405.19  22,655,387,796.43
Intangible Assets & Other Assets
Intangible Assets 512 1,322,183,829.68 1,258,390,496.48 788,780,012.33 784,717,430.34
Long-term Assets to be Amortized 513 161,327,014.54 201,893,846.42 136,399,412.78 181,828,544.73
Total intangible Assets & Other Assets 1,483,510,844.22 1,460,284,342.90 925,179,425.11 966,545,975.07
Deferred Taxes:
Deferred Tax Debits 514 139,592,391.32 133,122,893.75 114,305,063.55 111,469,166.97
Total Assets 41,395,604,675.45  30,687,479,347.08  37,646,832,716.62  34,049,757,627.47
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{Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
As at 31 Dacember 2004

Balance Sheet

China Eastem Airfines Corporation Limited

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Unit: RMB
Consolidated Parent corp.
Ending Beginning Ending Beginning
Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity Note Balance Balance Balance Balance
Current Liabilities:
Short-term Loans 515 6,188,919,456.37 4,631917,352.58  4,265,919,456.37  3,971,917,352.58
Notes Payable 516 838,337,176.10 756,486,871.84 838,337,176.10 658,901,972.62
Accounts Payable 517 727,835,020.99 370,753,762.69 665,488,290.48 130,642,579.69
Advances from Customers 518 69,661,954.06 95,527,168.39 225,488,934.68 209,428,250.17
Internationat Sales in Advance of
Carriage 519 716,225,097.79 808,998,400.37 691,240,870.62 £56,057,929.59
Domestic Seles in Advance of Carriage  5.20 148,349,090.03 253,000,258.93 148,349,000.03 252,792,500.99
Payroll Payable 262,868,327.26 22,238,920.54 255,080,100.27 19,355,085.40
Welfare Payable 9,836,722.21 75,856,022.29 5,407,738.79 64,675,336.90
Dividends Payable 521 1,278,965.10 735,594.70 - -
Taxes Payable 522 369,550,167.33 186.940,960.39 194,367,039.98 71,051,418.47
Other Outstanding Payment (statutory)  5.23 643,612,487.75 365,837,626.62 604,004,602.15 331,938,610.26
Other Payables 524 1,743,733,768.88 1,330,458,305.06 1,372,455,728.11 1,079,119,669.42
Accrued Expenses 5.25 3,323,089,093.18  3,235,980,189.05 2,594,404,151.53 2,606,469,634.59
Accrued Liabilities 5.26 13,831,473.00 385,973.00 13,831,473.00 365,973.00
Deferred Income 5.27 89,750,899.62 - 89,750,899.62 -
Portion of Long-term Liabilities due
Within One Year 528 3,806,169,293.36 3.972,841,034.43 3,806,169,293.36 3972,841,034.43
Total Current Liabilities 18,953,048,993.03  16,107,938,440.88  15,760,294,845.09  14,025,557,348.11
Long-term Liabilities:
Long-term Loans 5.29 7,283,214,165.34 7,809,983,684.45 7,252,590,945,34 7,809,983,684.45
Long-term Accounts Payable 5.30 8,316,485,000.96 6,720,984,780.75 8,316,485,000.96 6,720,984,780.75
Payments for Special Purpose 102,276.05 180,112.00 102,276.05 180,112.00
Total long-term Liabilities 15,599,801,442.35  14,531,148,577.20  15,569,178,222.35  14,531,148,577.20
Deferred Taxes:
Deferred Tax Credits 5.31 329,766,349.19 258,798,660.84 329,584,634.66 258,616,348.31
Total Liabilities 34,882,616,784.57  30,897,885,678.92  31,659,057,702.10  28,815,322,871.62
Minority irterests 714,813,526.35 562,680,156.52 - -
Shareholder’s Equity:
Capital Stock 5.32 4,8686,950,000.00 4,866,950,000.00 4,866,950,000.00 4,866,950,000.00
Capital Reserve 533 1,182,682,050.85 1,147,086,556.87 1,285,210,430.76 1,147,086,556.87
Surplus Reserve 5.34 185,940,927.08 118,805,091.66 - -
Including: Public Weifare Fund 5.34 90,739,788.10 58.902,989.16 - -
Undistributed Profit 5.35 -534,737,613.40 -905,928,136.89 -261,724,416.24 -779,601,801.02
Cash Dividends 97,339,000.00 - 97,339,000.00 -
Total Shareholder's Equity 5,798,174,364.53 5,226,913,511.64 5,987,775,014.52  5,234,434,755.85
Total liabilities & Shareholder’s Equity 41,395,604,675.45  36,687,479,347.08  37,646,832,716.62  34,049,757,627.47
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INncome statement

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
For the period of January — December 2004

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Unit: RMB
Consolidated Parent corp.
Ending Beginning Ending Beginning
[tem Note Balance Balance Balance Balance
. Revenue from main Operations: 536  19,893,143,628.50  13,999,058,353.15  15,875,882,226.74  11,061,812,480.67
Less: Main Operating Cost 536  16,123,577,232.40  11,904,633355.78  12,947,428,391.25  9,761,993,025.07
Business Taxes and additional  5.37 521,573,837.03 167,358,463.22 463,064,638.04 128,040,138.69
Il Profit from Main operations 3,247,992,550.16  1,927,006,534.15  2,525,389,197.45  1,171,779,316.91
Add: Other operating Revenue 5.38 664,863,604.99 409,834,769.12 327,651,265.45 312,650,329.19
Less: Operating Expenses 1,449,384,291.23 1,104,325,666.15 1,285,799,267.59 877,431,933.36
General & Administrative
Expenses 1,176,830,743.19  1,083,814,024.61 903,400,798.62 918,235,775.83
Financial Expenses 5.39 698,476,930.78 785,040,705.64 625,102,482.12 734,615,839.26
. Profit from Operations 588,164,198.95 -636,279,093.13 38,737,914.57  -1,145953,902.35
Add: Investment Income 5.40 -29,401,993.41 43,804,293.09 313,895,668.13 328,159,937.91
Subsidy Income 5.41 71,219,749.56 87.894,528.18 71,105,974.91 87,894,528.18
Non-operating Income 542 337,990,332.32 122,982,722.18 312,336,039.27 119,004,173.37
Less: Non-operating Expenses 543 53,371,600.17 28,525,186.13 52,648,827.83 57,413,133.54
IV.  Total Profit 914,600,687.25 -410,122,735.81 683,426,769.05 -668,308,396.43
Less: Income Tax 544 224,587,769.55 296,270,791.76 68,210,384.27 171,685,450.67
Gains or Losses of Minority
Shareholders 153,670,846.87 119,678,2756.73 - -
V. Net Profit 536,342,070.83 -825,971,803.30 615,216,384.78 -839,993,847.10
Supplementary Data -
1, Procesds from Sale or Disposal
of Departments or Invested
Companies - - - -
2. Loss from Natural Disasters - - - -
3. Increase {or Decrease) of Total
Profit Arising From Change
in Accounting Policies - 59,250,000.00 - -6,000,000.00
4. Increase (or Decreass) of Total
Profit Arising From Change
in Accounting Estimations -37,039,000.00 - -35,483,000.00 -

5. Loss from Debt Reorganization

8. Other ltems
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China Eastern Airfines Comporation Limited 125

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
For the period of January - December 2004

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Unit: RMB
Consolidated Parent corp.

Ending Beginning Ending Beginning

Item Note Balance Balance Balance Balance

I Net Profit/(loss) for the year 536,342,070.83 -825,971,803.30 615,216,384.78 -839,993,847.10
Add: (Accumulated Loss)y/Retained

Profits at the Beginning of
the Year -905,928,136.89 198,158,023.32 -779,601,801.02 278,888,379.81
Less: Provision for staff housing benefits - 218,496,333.73 - 218,496,333.73

Add: Transfer from Surplus Reserve - - - -

Il Profits Available for Distribution -369,586,066.06 -848,310,113.71 -164,385,416.24 -779,601,801.02
Less: Provision for Statutory Surplus
Reserve 35,299,036.48 30,227,402.60 - -

Provision for Statutory Welfare

Fund 31,836,798.94 29,390,620.58 - -
Provision for Staff & Worker's
Walfare Fund 676,711.92 - - -

lil.  Profits Available for Distribution to
Owners -437,398,613.40 -905,928,136.89 -164,385,416.24 -779,601,801.02
Less: Dividends for Preferred Shares - - - -
Provision for Discretionary

Surplus Reserve - - - -

Dividends for Common Shares 97,339,000.00 - 97,339,000.00 -
Commeon Shares Transferred into
Share Capital - - - ~
IV. Retained Profits/{Accumulated Loss) -534,737,613.40 -905,928,136.89 -261,724,416.24 -779,601,801.02
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126 China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with FRC Accounting Regulations)
For the period of January — December 2004

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Item Note

Consolidated

Unit: RMB

Parent corp.

I.  Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services

20,777,180,533.99

16,318,231,885.36

Refunds of taxes 2,985,839.97 2,870,250.00
Other cash received relating to operating activities 129,593,658.95 118,520,388.82
Sub-total of cash inflows 20,909,770,032.91 16,439,622,524.18

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Payments of all types of taxes

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

13,441,300,043.48
1,565,602,774.09
869,494,073.17
816,248,432.45

10,673,5610,185.17
1,286,347,268.88
575,711,245.89
595,227,207.30

Sub-total of cash outflows

16,692,645,323.19

13,130,795,857.24

Net cash flows from operating activities

4,217,124,709.72

3,308,826,666.24

lI.  Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash received from return of investments
Cash received from distribution of dividends or profits
Net cash receipts from the disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Other cash received relating to investing activities

248,031,513.13
380,108,708.76

065,455,430.98

246,031,513.13
524,872,824.51

2,702,786,101.84

Sub-total of cash inflows

1,591,595,650.87

3,473,690,439.48

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
intangible asset, and other long-term activities
Cash paid for acquisition of investments

3,690,413,240.56
63,842,274.35

3,534,373,595.66
166,513,074.35

Other cash paid relating to investing activities 5.45.1 30,001,880.00 30,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash outflows 3,784,257,494.91 3,730,886,670.01
Net cash flows from investing activities -2,192,661,844.04 -257,196,230.53
lil. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Cash received from investors 59,400,000.00 -
including: Cash received by subsidiaries from investments
by minority shareholders £9,400,000.00 -
Cash received from borrowings 9,995,591,423.35 7,481,968,203.35
Other cash received relating to financing activities - -
Sub-total of cash inflows 10,054,991,423.35 7,481,968,203.35
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 8,637,069,699.78 7,427,069,699.78
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits
and for interest expenses 509,121,009.71 360,452,079.50
including: Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits
to minority shareholders by subsidiaries 60,122,482.25 -
Other cash paid relating to financing activities 5452 2,400,420,556.99 2,400,375,556.99

Sub-total of cash inflows

11,546,611,266.48

10,187,897,336.27

Net cash flows from financing activities

-1,491,619,843.13

-2,705,929,132.92

IV. Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash

8,308,131.20

1,980,064.15

V. Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

541,151,153.75

347,681,367.64
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Cash Flow Statement

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
For the period of January — December 2004

Prepared by: China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Supplementary Information

Note

Consolidated

Unit: RMB

Parent corp.

L

Provision for impairment of assets
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Reconciliation of Net Profit to Cash Flows from
Operating Activities

Net Profit

Add: Gains or losses of minority shareholders

Amortization of long-term deferred expenses

Decrease/(increase) in deferred expense
Decrease/(increase) in accrued expense
Losses/(gains) on disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets

Losses on scrapping of fixed assets

Financial expenses

Losses/{gains) arising from investments
Deferred taxes credit/(debit)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payable

Others

5.45.3

536,342,070.83
158,670,846.87
73,852,281.83
1,821,060,032.06
34,639,998.16
102,066,168.58
-18,122,180.56
160,385,706.41

-17,721,604.68
749,354,569.47
29,401,893.41
£4,498,190.78
122,607,902.67

-2,132,699,344.89

2,512,904,583.77
24,883,505.00

615,216,384.78
39,351,049.03
1,440,328,778.68
23,308,133.51
96,056,762.26
-19,387,701.38
21,994 ,645.86

-16,797,218.75
666,632,761.27
-313,895,668.13
68,131,791.77
131,727,378.94
-948,414,020.66
1,479,680,084.76
24,883,505.00

Net cash flows from operating activities

4,217,124,709.72

3,308,826,666.94

Investing and Financing Activities that do not Involve
Cash Receipts and Payments

Conversion of debt into capital

Convertible bonds maturing in one year

Fixed-assets acquired by finance leases

2,974,881,194.98

2,974,881,194.98

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at the end of the pericd

Less: cash at the beginning of the period

Add: cash equivalents at the end of the period

Less: cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

1,779,428,622.54
1,468,183,639.12
412,692,752.71
182,786,582.38

529,085,738.20
412,210,540.89
412,692,752.71
182,786,582.38

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

541,151,153.75

347,681,367.64
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128 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 37 December 2004

1. Brief Profile of the Company

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited {“the Company”) was established in April 1995 under the sole
sponsorship of Eastern Air Group Company. In Feb. 1997, with the approval of State Reformation Commission
by its Circular No. (1996) 180 and State Council Securities Commission by its Circular No. (1997) 4, the Company
issued 1,566,950,000 H shares, which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and New York Stock
Exchange. In May 1997, with the approval of Civil Aviation Administration of China and China Securities Supervisory
Commission, the Company issued 300,000,000 A shares to the public. The registered capital of the Company is
RMB 4,868,250 thousand. The registered address is No. 66 Jichang Avenue, Pudong International Airport,
Shanghai.

The Company is primarily engaged in the air transportation of passengers, cargo, mails and luggage over domestic
and approved overseas air routes, extended services, general aviation business, aircraft maintenance, manufacturing
and maintenance of aviation eguipment, agent services for airlines both at home and abroad and other business

related to aviation transportation.

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations
2.1 Accounting Policies Applied
The company and its subsidiaries follow the Accounting Standards and Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises and its supplementary regulations. Since Jan. 1, 2003, the company and its supbsidiaries also follow

the Accounting Treatment for Civil Aviation Industry.

2.2 Accounting Period
The Company adopts the Gregorian calendar year as its accounting period, i.e., from January 1 to December 31

each year.

2.3 Base Currency

The Company adopts Renminbi ("“RMB") as its base currency.
2.4 Principle and Basis of Accounting

The Company adopts accrual basis. All items are recorded at actual cost upon acquisition. If impairment occurs,

the provision for impairment will be made according to “Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 Decamber 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont’d)

2.5 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB at the middie exchange rate issued by PBOC at the
beginning of the month. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the middle
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each period. The differences between RMB equivalents and carrying

amounts are treated as exchange differences. Exchange differences of specific borrowings related to the acquisition ; AN

or construction of a fixed asset should be capitalized in the period in which they are incurred when the relevant
fixed asset being acquired or constructed is not ready for its intended use. Exchange differences during preparation
period are included in long-term amortization charges, which will be accounted as current profit and loss of the

month during which formal operation starts. Exchange differences in normal operations are included in the exchange

gains and losses of the current period.

2.6 Definition of Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short term (with a holding period of less than three months), highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.
2.7 Current Investment
2.7.1 The initial cost of a current investment is the total price paid on acquisition, deducting cash dividends

which have been declared but unpaid at the time of acquisition or unpaid interest on bonds that have
been accrued. Cash dividends or interests during holding period are offset against the carrying amount
of investments upon receipt. On disposal of a current investment, the difference between the carrying

amount and the sale proceeds is recognized as an investment gain or loss of the current period.

2.7.2 The current investment is recorded at the lower of cost and market value. The provision for impairment
of current investment is made at the excess of carrying amount over the market value on an individual

item basis and will be accounted as current profit and loss.

2.8 Accounting Method for Bad Debts

2.8.1 The Company adopts allowance method for bad debts. At the end of each accounting period the
company analyses the recoverability of receivable items (including accounts receivable and other
receivables) and makes allowance for bad debts according to the aging method and analysis result.
Allowance for bad debts is not made for the items that are surely to be recovered. If there is enough
evidence proving the uncollectibility of an account receivable then allowance is made at a higher ratio or
at the full carrying amount. The allowance for remaining accounts receivable shall refer to the following

ratios.

134



Notes to the Financial Statements

130 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont’d)

2.8 Accounting Method for Bad Debts (Cont’d)
Aging Ratio
Within 1 year _ 3%o
In the second year 5%
In the third year 10%
In the forth year 15%
In the fifth year 20%
Qver 5 years 40%

282 The company adopts following standards in determination of bad debts:

a. When the debtor is bankrupt or dead, the accounts receivable that are unable to be recovered even

after liquidation of the debtor’s bankrupt estate or legacy.

b. When the debt is overdue due to the default of the debtor and there is obvious evidence proving the

uncollectibility of the accounts.

The bad debt loss should be approved by Board of Directors. The bad debts will first offset against the allowance
that has already been made. If the allowance for bad debts is not enough to compensate the losses the difference

will be charged into income statement of the current period.

2.9 Inventory

2.9.1 The inventory of the Company mainly comprises high-price rotables, aircraft consumables, common
appliances, aircraft supplies and low-price consumables. The inventory is recorded at planned price
and the difference between planned price and actual cost is recorded in ‘Materials Cost Variance'. The
amortization of high-price rotables is made evenly over 5 years starting from tﬁe next month of acguisition
according to the adjusted actual cost. Other inventory such as aircraft consumables is charged to cost
according to the adjusted actual cost when put into use. The maintenance costs for high-price rotables

are recognized as current period expenses immediately when occurred.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations {Cont’d)

2.9
2.9.2

2.10
2.10.1

2.10.2

2.10.3

Inventory (Cont’d)

In respect of aircraft consumables of the aircraft type which are continue to use, provision for impairment
is made based on aging analysis and corresponding percentage at the end of each period. For those of
the aircraft-type which are no longer for use, provision for impairment is made at the lower of the

realizable value and the carrying amount.

Long-term Investment

Long-term equity investment (including stock investment and other equity investment) is recorded at
the actual cost after deducting cash dividends which have been declared but unpaid at the time of
acquisition or at the price agreed upon by relevant parties. The equity method is applied wherever the
Company can control, jointly control or has significant influence over the investee enterprise (usually
when the Company holds 20% or more voting capital of the investee enterprises or holds less than
20% of the voting capital but has significant influence over the investee enterprise). Otherwise, the cost
method is applied. When equity method is adapted, the difference (referred to as "equity investment
difference”) between the initial investment cost and the Company’s share of owners’ equity of the
investee enterprise should be amortized evenly over a period of 10 years and charged into corresponding

year’s profit and loss account.

Long-term debt investment (including bond investment and other debt investment) is recorded at actual
cost. The difference between actual cost and the nominal value of a bond investment is recognized as
premium or discount. Interest from investment on bonds should be accrued periodically. The accrued
interest revenue from investment on bonds, after adjustments of the amortization of premium or discount,

should be recognized as investment income of the period.

The long-term investment is recorded at the lower of carrying amount and recoverable amount at the
end of each period. If the recoverable amount of a long-term investment is lower than its carrying
amount as a result of a continuing decline in market value or deterioration in operating conditions of the
investee enterprise, the Company shall make provision for impairment on long-term investment on an

individual item basis and charge into the current pericd.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont'd)

2.11 Fixed Assets and Depreciation

2.11.1  Fixed assets refer to those tangible assets whose useful life is over 1 year, with a high unit price and can
be held physically to realize its benefits during the course of use. Fixed assets are recorded at actual
acquisition cost. Fixed assets held under financial lease are recorded at net contract price and other
actual incidental cost incurred. The corresponding long-term liabilities are determined by the total financing
amount stipulated in such financing contracts as lease agreement and loan agreement signed by the
Company and lessor. The financing expenses are appoertioned during the course of leasehold at actual

interest rate.

If no impairment has occurred, the depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis according to the

following useful lives and estimated residual value.

Useful lives Residual value rate
Aircraft and engines attached 20 years 5%
Standby engines 20 years 0%
Buildings 15-35 years 3%
Vehicles and electronic devices 5-6 years 3%
Other Equipmeant 5-20 years 3%

When impairment occurs, the depreciation is provided on an individual item basis based on the net

book value after deducting impairment and residual useful lives.

2.11.2  Fixed assets which have been or will be put into other use, or will not be in operation or will be disposed
are recorded at the lower of carrying amount and recoverable amount at the end of each period. The
recoverable amounts depend on the future cashflows generated by the assets or the estimates made
by the management according to the current market situation. When the recoverable amounts have
declined below their carrying amounts, the Company shall make provision for impairment of fix assets

at the end of the period on an individual item basis and charge to the current period.

2.12 Construction-in-Progress

2.12.1  Construction-in-progress is accounted for on an individual item basis at the actual cost. Upon completion
and readiness for use, the cost of construction-in-progress is to be transferred to the account of Fixed
Assets. Interests incurred in connection with specific borrowings and relevant exchange differences for
the purpose of construction-in-progress should be capitalized as part of the cost when the project is
not ready for intended use. Interests incurred and exchange differences after the project is ready for

use should be recognized as current period expenses.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations {Cont'd)

2.12 Construction-in-Progress (Cont'd)

2.12.2  Construction-in-pregress is recorded at the lower of carrying amount and recoverable amount at the
end of each period. The Company shall make provision for impairment of construction-in-progress at
the excess of the carrying amount over its recoverable amount on an individual item basis and charge

to the current period.

2.13 Valuation and Amortization of Intangible Assets

2.13.1  Theintangible assets of the Company refer to non-monetary long-term assets without physical substance
held for the purpose of rendering service, rental or for administrative purposes. The intangible assets of
the Company mainly include land use right and premise use right. The intangible assets are recorded at

actual acquisition cost and amortized over its expected useful life under straight-line method.

2.13.2 The intangible asset of the Company is recorded at the lower of carrying amount and recoverable
amount at the end of each period. The Company shall make provision for impairment of intangible
asset at the excess of the carrying amount over its recoverable amount on an individual item basis and

charge to the current period.

2.14 Long-term Amortization Charges

Long-term amortization charges refer to the expenses that will be amortized after formal operation or the amortization
period is over one year. Long-term amortization charges of the Company are mainly uniform cost. All long-term
amortization charges are amortized evenly over its estimated beneficial period except organization cost, which

will be charged to the profit and loss account of the month during which formal operation starts.

2.15 Overhaul Expenses of Aircraft and Engines

The overhaul expenses refer to maintenance of D criteria and higher grade of aircraft owned by the Company or
held under finance lease or operating lease. The overhaul expenses of self-owned aircraft and aircraft held under
finance lease are charged into the current profit. The overhaul expenses of aircraft under operating lease are
accrued according to lease contract or at a certain percentage for different types of aircraft {the ratio of actual
flying hours and estimated flying hours between overhauls). The actual overhaul expenses will offset against the
accrued amount. The other daily maintenance expenses of aircraft and engines will be charged into the current

profit and loss account.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 Decermber 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont’d)

2.16

Sales in Advance of Carriage

The sales in advance of carriage (SIAC) are mainly sales proceeds for transportation of passengers, cargo, mail

and overweight luggage with tickets of the Company, which are to be settled later. The sales in advance of

carriage are classified into international and domestic under categceries of passenger, cargo and mail for tickets

sold in different years. The balance of SIAC is transferred out upon delivery of service by the Company or other

airlines with uplifted coupons or billing list by other airlings as evidence.

According to the Accounting Treatment for Civil Aviation Industry with the circular number Cai-kuai [2003]18, the

Company acknowledges those SIAC balances of both domestic and international sales over settlement period as

“over settlement balance” and has transferred it into non-operating revenue of this year.

2.17
2.17.1

2.17.2

2.18
2.18.1

Retirement Benefits and Medical Insurance

Retirement Benefits

The Company participates in defined contribution retirement schemes regarding pension for employees
organized by the governments of respective provinces. The Company and employees turn in social
pension at 14.5% and 8% of the total salaries of last year recognized by government to social welfare
agent. In addition, the Company provides retirees with living aliowance and transportation subsidies as
well as other welfare. The post-retirement benefit expenses are recognized in the current profit and

loss.

Medical Insurance

Except Shanghai Headquarters, its subsidiaries and Ningbo Branch, the branches in other provinces
have not participated in the social medical insurance scheme introduced by local governments. The
Company and employees that have participated in the scheme contribute 12% and 2% of the total
salaries of last year to local social welfare agent. For those who have not participated in the social

medical insurance scheme, the actual medical expenses are recognized in the current profit and loss.
Revenue
The Company’s revenue from rendering transportation service of passengers, cargo and mails is

recognized upon delivery of the service with uplifted coupons as evidence.

The commission income from other carriers in respect of sales made by the Company is recognized

upon billing by other carriers.

Ground service income is recognized as other operating revenue upon rendering of services.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont’d)

2.18 Revenue (Cont’d)
2.18.2  Theinterest income and royalty arising from the use by others of the assets held by the Company is
recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to

the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

2.18 Frequent Flyer Program

The policy of FFP implemented by the Company entitie available free travel award to members based on their
accumulated mileage. Extra cost incurred as a result of the policy. The company adopts incremental cost methods
to estimate the cost of the program. The estimated incremental cost is recognized as an expense in the income
statement and accrued as a liability in the balance sheet. As members redeem awards or their entitlements

expire, the incremental cost liability is reduced accordingly.

2.20 Income Tax
Tax effects of taxable temporary timing differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities. Tax effects of

deductible temporary timing differences are recognized as deferred income tax assets.

2.21 Basis of Consolidated Statements

2.21.1  Consolidation Scope: According to “Notice on the Distribution of ‘Provisional Regulation on Consolidation
of Financial Statements’™ (1995} issued by Ministry of Finance and regulations of CKZ(96) No. 2 “Answer
to Questions about Consolidation Scope”, the consolidation scope of the Company includes all
subsidiaries under control and associated companies under joint control, except those companies that
have aiready been closed down, merged, declared in the process of liquidation or bankruptcy, intended

to be sold in the new future or have an insignificant influence on consolidation.

2.21.2  Consolidation Method: The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries within consolidation scope and other relevant information.
The eguity investment and the corresponding portion of the owner's equity of the invested entities, the
claims and liabilities, as well as all material transactions between or among them have been eliminated.

The financial statements of the associate companies are consolidated in proportion.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimations (Cont’d)

2.22 Significant Changes in Accounting Estimate and its Influence

2.22.1  Contents and basis of changes in accounting estimate: The Company changed the method of provision
for impairment of aircraft consumables from Jan 1.2004 to indicate the value of these inventories more
accurately and to manage the over-storage of aircraft consumables more conveniently. Provisions are
recognized based on the storage age instead of the average useful life of aircraft type accordingly, and
the average discount rate in previous disposal of the aircraft consumables of the workable aircraft type.
For those aircraft type will not work, no provisions of the aircraft consumables will be recognized unless

that the net realizable value will be lower than the carrying amounts during future disposals.

2.22.2 Influence of changes in accounting estimate: the above-mentioned change decreases the total profit of

2004 by 37.04 million.

3. Taxation Items

3.1 Business Tax

The business tax of transportation, ground service and commissions is levied at 3% of the income.
The business tax of maintenance and other services is levied at 5% of the income.

3.2 Value-added Tax

The value-added tax is levied at 4% of the material transfer income.

3.3 City Construction Tax

The city construction tax is levied at 7% of the circular tax.

3.4 income Tax
The income tax is calculated at applicable income tax rate and taxable income of the period. According to circular
HSEC(2001)104 of Shanghai State Taxation Bureau, the Company enjoys the preferential policy of Pudong New

Area since July 1, 2001 and the applicable income tax rate is reduced to 15%.

3.5 Education Tax

The education tax is calculated at 3% of the circular tax.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
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4. Stock-held Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

Registered Total
Capital  Scope of Investment  Share-holding
No.  Name of Investee Company (10,000)  Business (10,000) Percent
1 China Eastern Airlines 25,750.36  Air fransportation of passengers, cargo,  14,162.70 55%
Jiangsu Co., Lid. mails and luggage over domestic air
routes and approved overseas routes
2 Shanghai Eastern Flight Training 47,300.00  Training for flying crew and other related  44,935.00 95%
Co., Ltd. personnel
3 Eastern Aidines Hatel Co., Ltd. 7,000.00  Sales of food, knitwear & hardware 8,010.00 85.86%
4 China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. 50,000.00  Air transportation of cargo & mails, 35,000.00 70%
air catering, sales of tourist goods, hotel,
catering and entertainment
5 Eastern (Shantou) Economic 1000.00  Production & sales of aviation products, 550.00 55%
Development Co., Ltd. hardware, chemical materials
6  Shanghai Eastern Airfines 41,250.00  Investment and relevant consultation 40,752.00 98.79%
Investment Co., Ltd.
7 Shanghal Eastern Alrlines 20,000 Cargo consignation, ground service, 15,080 70%
Logistics Co., Lid transportation service, storage, property
management
8  Jiangnan Tourism (HK) Co. 6411 Tour services 64.11 100%
9 Eastern Airlines Jiangsu 30.00  Design and making of advertisement in 30.00 100%
Advertisement Co., Ltd. domestic broadcast and newspapers
10 Jiangsu Suying Labor Service Co., 16.60  Labor service, labor agent, labor 14.94 90%
Ltd. information consuttation and training
11 Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd. 49.80  Shutup 49.80 100%

Food Trade Co.
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4. Stock-held Subsidiaries and Associated Companies (Cont’d)

Registered ‘ Total
Capital  Scope of Investment  Share-holding

No.  Name of Investee Company (10,000)  Business (10,000) Percent

12 Jiangsu Eastern Airlines Trade 20000  Shutup 110.00 55%
Co., Lid. '

13 Jiangsu Eastern Airlines 22,86 Shutup 16.01 70%
Industrial Co., Ltd.

14 Shanghai Dongwei Aviation 300.00  Land cargo transportation and 195.00 85%
Transportation Service Co., Ltd storage service

15 Shanghai Eastern Fudart USD100.00  Agent services for transportation of 708.82 51%
Transportation Services Co., Ltd. imp. & exp. cargo by air or sea

16 Shanghai East Aircraft Maintain USD310.00  airline reparing service 1,850.00 65%
Co,, Lid.

17 Shanghai Eastern Alrlines USD3000.00  civil aviation transportation and usD225.00 50%
Swire investment Co., Lid. investment in the related field

Among the above subsidiaries, No.1, No.2, No. 3, No. 4, No. 6, No. 7, No. 15, No. 16 and No.17 have been
included in the éonsolidation scope, No. 11, No. 12, and No. 13 have been shut up and are not included in the
consolidation scope; No. 5, No. 8, No.9, and No. 10 have no significant influence on the financial position and not
included in the consolidation scope for the total assets, operating revenue, and net profit of these companies
represent less than 10% of those of the parent company. No.14 has not started formal operation and is not

included in the consclidation scope;

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements

{All amounts are in RMB Yuan; the notes are explanations to major items of consolidated financial statements

except otherwise specified)
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5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.1 Monetary Fund
Ending Balance Beginning Balance 5
Item Original Currency Exchange Rate RMB Equivalent  Original Currency Exchange Rate RMB Equivalent 1
Cash 3,048,203.94 2,533,250.20 ]
Bank Deposit 1,635,609,200.98 1,391,971,099.34
RMB 1,328,627,356.53 100000 1,328,627,356.53  1,111,609,314.49 100000 1,111,609,314.49
UsD 13,861,220.47 827650  114,722.391.22 16,661,791.75 §27670  137.904,651.72
JPY 690,473,198.00 007970° 5503140435  714,733,416.00 007726 55,222,447 .85
HKD - 1.06370 - ‘ - 1.06110 -
EUR 2,346,005.76 11.26270 20,422,359.07 2,929,926.77 10.33830 30,290,461.92
SGD 4.304,794.41 5.06500 21,760,735.74 1,143,365.08 4.85860 5,585,163.58
KRW 2,865,582,404.00 0.00799 22,893,137.83  4,080,412,201.00 0.006%1 28,053,387.90
THB 76,992,681.93 0.21220 16,337,847 11 33,604 233,61 0.20870 7,013,203.55
NZD 772,678.39 5.94005 4580,748.27 1,099,796.36 541790 5,068,586.70
AUD 2,081,960.28 6.44280 13,413,711.68 923,572.31 6.20130 5,727,348.97
INR 16,632,923.51 0.18970 3,155,266.59 20,354,188.10 0.18199 3,704,258.69
GBP 1,100,576.16 15.93100 17,533,278.80 £3,369.81 1471180 932,263.97
MYR 2,831,267.12 2.17831 6,167,377.48 - -
CAD 720,782.57 6.87390 4,054,587.31 - -
Other Monstary Fund 2,202,802,715.61 1,928,421,980.38
Total 3,841,460,120.53 3,322,926,329.92
The other monetary fund includes the restricted overseas deposit of equivalent RMB 2.042 billion.
5.2 Current Investment
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Provision for Provision for
Balance Impairment Net Value Balance Impairment Net Value
Stock Investment - - - - - -
Cther Investment 413,042,752.71 - 41304275271 182,766,552.38 - 182,785,582.38
413,042,752.71 - 41304275271 182,786,582.38 - 182,786,582.38

The Company entrusts ICBC Shanghai Branch and CCB Shanghai No.1 Branch to manage its short-term foreign

exchange investment with its self-owned foreign exchange. The interest rate is 0.17558% of HKD and 2.12%-2.2175%

of USD. The maturity is Jan 4, 2005. These investments have been refunded by the issuing date of the financial reports.

The ending balance of short investment is 125.97% more than that of last year due to the surge of foreign

exchange investment to USD.
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5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.3 Accounts Receivable

5.3.1 Consolidated

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
Aging Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount

Within 1 Year 1,774,161,359.86 84,62 497546616 1,769,185,893.70  1,423,421,623.45 91.28 443393698 1,418,987,086.47
In the Second Year 3,508,164.93 019 342,666.24 321549869  49,108932.32 3.15 825446690 45,854,465.42
inthe Third Year 13,507,683.17 072 8513,820.52 490384285 8,036,426.11 052 3.303,213.49 4,733,212.62
In the Fourth Year 6.896,720.18 0.37 £.225,761.95 67093622  42.402,620.08 272 4057782226 1,624,797.82

In the Fith Year 41598498.29 222 4066348115 93001714 14,039,571.73 030 1402098472 18,587.01
Above & Years 35,187,70.59 188 3376792518 141978041 22,381,142.55 143 20.249,652.29 2131,490.26
Total 187491011202 10000  94489141.21 1,780,420,870.81 1559,390,316.24 10000  85,840,076.64 1473,550,238.60

Among the above accounts receivable, there is no amount due from shareholder holding over 5% (including 5%)

of the Company’s share capital.

The top 5 companies owe a total amount of RMBB91 millicn, accounting for 36.85% of the total ending balance.

53.2 Parent Company

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
Aging Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount Amount (%) for Bad Dabts Net Amount

Within 1 Year 1,557,470,337.88 9450 4581908.05 155278342085 93242928395 89.01 312427838 929,306,010.57
In the Second Year 2,583,020.41 016 129,451.02 245956939 3797680115 363 200756034 35,278,840.81
I the Third Year 1350746225 082 0,292,185.57 421520668 1,826.086.80 047 1,118075.31 708.011.29
In the Fourth Year 1,283.230.67 0.08 97757341 30565726 30.829.327.33 378 39,204,102 4252241

In the Fifth Year 38,900,035.54 236 37,932.300.36 97,735.18  14.039571.73 134 1402098472 18,587.01
Above b Years 34.440,328.93 208 33,006,066.52 143577241 2163426589 207 19.502,775.63 2,131,490.26
Total 1,646,19091568 10000  86,018454.93 1562,172,460.75 104753534685  100.00  79,668,077.00  967,867,269.65

Among the above accounts receivable, no amount is due from shareholder holding over 5% (including 5%) of the
Company's share capital.

The top 5 companies owe a total amount of RMB1,074 million, accounting for 65.16% of the total ending balance.

The ending balance of accounts receivable is 57.34% higher than the beginning balance mainly because of the

growth of sales.
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{Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.4 Other Receivables
5.4.1 Consolidated

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
Aging Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount
Within 1 Year 667.357,170.68 68.75 13.305,34301  654,001,827.67  259,874,686.49 50.05 9,289,96591  250,584,720.58

Inthe Second Year  102,052.129.97 1081 1118204411 9086008586 111286519310 2143 13353060605 9793198714
In the Third Year 73,931,069.10 762 1360637404 6032469506  36.136,439.74 596 530537985 30831,069.79
In the Fourth Year 2524717208 260 530607492 1985109717 3651486123 705 1080100147 25713,650.76
In the Fifih Year 30.382.629.44 313 1340018324 16,973,460.20 0,264 557.18 1.78 5,384,090.31 3,870,466.88
Above 5 Years 71,780,769.50 739 5539518273 16385571677 66,179,925.41 1275 5060718510 15,572,370.31

Total 970,750,040.78  100.00  112,354,198.05  856,306,742.73  519,245083.25 10000  94,741,19879  424,503,864.46

Among the year-end balance, RMB34.31million is due from Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding

62% of the Company’s share capital.

The top 5 companies owe a total amount of RMB174 million, accounting for 17.92% of the total ending balance.

5.4.2 Parent Company

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Percentage Provision Percentage Pravision
Aging Amount (%) for Bad Debts Net Amount Amount (%) for Bad Debis Net Amount
Within 1 Year 777,145,595.21 55,08 1215135679 76499423842 2,045,883,082.61 8318 11,803,864.83  2,034,079,218.08

Inthe Second Year  475,662,773.92 330 6,066,722.06 46879605186  213,976,998.10 870 1636180017 19761639793
In the Third Year 70,666,967.95 501 1068762476 5997934319 119,354,098.70 485 1362714585 10572695285
Inthe Fourth Year 25,042,548.09 I~ 536044132 1967750677 26,738871.39 1.08 7944007.82 1879583357
IhtheFifth Year - 19,822,845.25 1,40 396456906 1585827620  11,866,501.31 048 2.523,759.14 843674217
Above 5 Years 42,823077.00 303 26059388723 16,229.180.77  41,537,807.91 189 2607981560  15,458,082.31

Total 1411,16420742 10000 6582960121 1,345,534,606.21 2459,458,450.02  100.00  78,346,223.11 2,381,112,226.91

Among the year-end balance, RMB 34.31 million is due from Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding

62% of the Company’s share capital.
The top 5 companies owe a total amount of RMB845 miilion, accounting for 59.89% of the total ending balance.

The ending balance is 42.62% lower than that of the previous year, and the main reason is that the amounts
related to the aircrafts trading between the Company (as solder) and Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (as buyer) have been

paid in full by the end of the year 2004.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 Decernber 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.5 Prepayments
Ending Balance Beginning Balance

Percentage Percentage
Aging Amount (%) Amount (%)
Within 1 Year 32,142,313.83 100.00 15,130,134.04 91.68
In the Second Year - - 43,542.19 0.26
In the Third Year - - 374,687.00 2.27
In the Fourth Year - - 954,635.00 5.79
Total » 32,142,313.83 100.00 16,502,998.23 100.00

Among the year-end balance, RMB 7.47 million is due from Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding

62% of the Company’s share capital.

The ending balance is 94.77% higher than that of the previous year, mainly results from an increase of prepayments

for engine rental.

5.6 Inventory

Ending Balance Beginning Balance

Provision Provision
Aging Amount for Impairment Net Value Amount for Impairment Net Value
Aircraft Consumables 979,931,72394  467,100,745.16 51283098478 98474257719 43242085484  532312722.35
High-price Rotables 78301149052 15798128151 625030209.01 92363154617 14527270411  778358,842.06
Common Appliance 21,421,794.96 - 21,421794.96 31,522,131.48 - 31,522,131.48
Materials purchase 4,881,860.71 - 4,881,860.71 1,2682.347.32 - 1,262,347.32
Low-price Cansumables 904,209.27 - 904,209.27 42,742.71 - 42.742.71
Sub-contracted materials 1,152,580.22 - 1,152,689.22 2,057,255.07 - 2,057,255.07
Others 11,124,822.01 - 11,124,822.01 2,581,626.36 - 2.581,826.36
Total 1,802,428,496.63  625,082,026.67 1,177,346,469.96 1,925840,426.30  577,702,558.95 1,348,137,867.35
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China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Reguiations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.7 Expenses to be Amortized

Ending

Category Balance

Beginning
Balance

Aircraft operating Lease obligations 107,172,119.38

94,322,497.78

Duties and value-added tax of aircraft under operating lease 17,516,449.17 9,364,187.71
Others 762,528.47 3,642,220.97
Total 125,451,097.02 107,328,906.46
5.8 Long-term Equity Investment
5.8.1 Consolidated
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Provision Provision
Item Amount for Impairment Net Value Amount for Impairment Net Value
Stock investment 360,000.00 - 360,000.00 360,000.00 - 360,000.00
Other equify investment;
Subsidiaries 5,774,407 17 1,758,050.62 4.016,356.55 15,774,352.43 1,768,050.62 14.016,301.81
Associated companies - - - - - -
Affiliated companies 638,423,325.78 - 63842332578 680,314,005.73 - 680,314005.73
Other companies 34,166,309.94 - 34,166,309.94 ‘ - - -
Consolidation difference -1,853,640.63 - -1,653,640.63 -1,879,467.30 - -1,879,467.30
Subtotal 676,710,402.28 176805062  674,952.351684  694,208,890.86 1,758,050.62  692,450,840.24
Total 677,070,402.26 1,758,050.62  675312,351.64  £94,568,890.86 1,758,050.62  692,810,840.24
58.1.1 Stock investment
% of the Ending Balance
Investee Company Type of Shares  Quantity of Shares Registered Capital Amount Provision ~ Market Value
Huning Expressway Co., Ltd. Legal person shares 200,000.00 360,000.00 - 1,102,000.00

|

143




Notes to the Financial Statements

144 China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main Iltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.8 Long-term Equity Investment (Cont’d)
5.8.1.2 Other equity investment

Ending Balance
Including:
Investment % of Equity Investment Provision for
Investee Company Period  Shareholders' Equity Amount Difference {mpairment
Eastern (Shantou) Economic Development Co., Lid, 15 years 55.00% 2.614,272.54 5,724 80747 -
China Eastern Aidines Food Investment Co. Lid 20 years 45.00% 170,297,901 10 - -
Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes
QOverhaut Engneering Ca,, Ltd. 12 years 40.00% 23,852,219.52 - -
Eastern China Kaiya System Integration Co., Lid. No promise 37.00% 20,999,891.86 - -
Shanghai Hongpu Givil Arport Communication Co., Lid, 10 years 30.00% 7,538,770.14 - -
Eastern Air Group Finance Co,, Ltd. 20 years 25.00% 117,724.471.64 -3,322.913.25 -
China Eastern Airines Wuhan Co., Ltd, 30 yoars 40.00% 89,654.598.82 57,960,976.08 -
Eastam Aviation Advertising Service Co. No promise 45,00% 13,903,851.47 2,005,203.29 -
China Eastern Airfines Import and Export Co. Lid No promiss 45.00% £6,554,518.50 1,161,395.52 -
Shanghai Dongmel Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. 10 years 45.00% 17,076.299.10 - -
Shanghai Kelin Aviation Maintenance Service Co., Ltd 10 years 35.00% 13,300,785.02 - -
Eastern Alrlines Hotel Co., Lid 20 years 19.94% 21,968.325.52 - -
Eastern Airines Real Estate Co., Ltd 15 years 5.00% 5,000,000.00 - -
CAAG Information Network Co., Lid. 0.30% 4,090,000.00 - -
Shanghal Dongwei Aviation Travel Co., Lid 20 years 65.00% 1,850,000.00 - -
Eastern Union Freight (HK) Co., Ltd. No promise 41.00% 6063,757.47 - -
Qingdzo Livting Int" Airport Co., Lid, 30 years 2.00% 112,600,000.00 - -
China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Catering Co. 3 years 100.00% 493,000.00 - 498,000.00
Jiangsu Eastern Airlings Trade Co., Ltd, 15 yaars 55.00% 1,100,000.00 - 1,100,000.00
Jiangsu Eastem Airines Industrial Co., Lid. 19 years 70.00% 160,030.62 - 160,050.62
Jiangsu Eastern Airings Internationel Travel Agency Co., Lid. 30 years 46.00% £,256,261.07 +,830,760.03 -
Jiangnan Tourism {Hong Kong) Co. No gromise 100.00% 557,732.78 - -
Eastern Alrines Jiangsu Advertisement Co., Ltd. No promise 100.00% 39720847 - -
Hengtai Insurance Brokerage Co,, Lid. No promise 3.33% 1,000,00000 - -
Jangsu Suying Labor Sewvice Co., Lid. 10 years 90.00% 605,107.48 - -

Total 678,364,042.89 53,910,614.20 1,768,050.62
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.8 Long-term Equity Investment (Cont’d)

5.8.1.3 Equity Investment Difference

Amortization Current Period Remaining
Investee Company Original Amount Period Amortization Amount Reason
Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd., -5,538,188.77 10 years -553,818.88 -3,322,913.25 Notet
Easter (Shantou) Economic Development Co,, Lid., -8,178,296.39 10 years -817.829.64 -5,724 807 .47 Note?
China Eastern Airfings Wuhan Co., Ltd. 76,432,066.31 10 years 7,643,205.63 57,960,976.08 Note2
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. 2,506,504.114 10 years 250,650.41 2,005,203.29 Notel
China Eastern Airlines Import and Export Co. Lid 1,451,744.40 10 years 145,174.44 1,161,395.52 Note1
Jiangsu Eastern Airlines International Travel
Agency Co., Lid. 1,879,200.00 10 years 148,439.97 1,830,760.03 Note?
Total 53,810,614.20

s

Note 1:  The transaction price is determined with reference to evaluated net assets. The difference between
evaluated net assets and the carrying amount of net assets of subsidiaries is accounted for as equity

investment difference.
Note 2:  The former Wuhan Airlines took part in the incorporation of China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. with
its evaluated net assets. Some of them are not recognized according to the accounting policy of the

Company and the net assets on contribution date are adjusted accordingly.

5.8.1.4 Consolidation Difference

Original Amortization Amortization Remaining
Investee Company Amount Period this Period Balance '
Shanghai Eastern Fudart Transportation Services Co., Ltd, -1,853,287.13 10 years -183,586.67  -1,315,704.47
Shanghai East Aircraft Maintain Co., Ltd. -422,417.98 10 years -42,240.00 -337,936.16

Total -1,653,640.63

150



Notes to the Financial Statements
146 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared In accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

58 Long-term Equity Investment (Cont’d)
582 Parent Company

Ending Bafance Beginning Balance

Provision Provision
[tem Amount for Impairment Net Value Amount for Impairment Net Value
Stock investment - - - - - -

QOther equity investment:

Subsidiaries 2,449,403,897.18 - 244940389718 2.016,145,022.41 - 2016,145,022.41
Associated companies - - - -
Afiiiated companies 515,603,307 .24 - 51560330724 558,304,775.42 - b58,304,775.42
Other companies 31,008,325.52 31,098,326.52 4,090,000.00 4,090,000.00
Sublotal 2,996,085,529.94 - 29908552994  2578,539,797.83 - 2‘578,539,'797‘88
Total 2,896,065,529.94 ~ 2,996,085,520.94  2,578,539,797.83 ~ 2,578,539,797.83
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{Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year endled 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.8 Long-term Equity Investment (Cont’d)
5.8.2.1  Other Equity Investment

Ending Balance

Including:
Investment % of Equity Investment Provision for
Investee Company, Period  Shareholders’ Equity Amount Difference Impairment
China Eastern Airines Jiangsu Co., Ltd. No promise 55.00% 156,130,586.80 - -
Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co., Lid, 50 years 95.00% 476,751,084.28 - -
Eastern Airines Hotel Co., Ltd. 30 yaars 85.86% 47,007,928.31 - -
China Cargo Ailines Co., Lid. No promise 70.00%  1,161,789,900.73 - -
Shanghal Eastern Alrines Investment Co., Lid 20 years 98.79% 417,404,018.10 - -
Shanghai East Alrcraft Maintain Co., Lid. M years 60.00% 11,064,287 46 -337,836.16 -
Eastern (Shantou) Economic Development Co., Ltd. 15 years 55.00% 2,614,272.54 -5,724,807.47 -
Shanghal Eastem logistics Co., Ltd 20 years £9.30% 176,641,318.96 - -
China Eastern Airines Food Investment Co. Lid 20 years 45.00% 170,997,801.10 .- -
Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes
QOverhaul Enginegring Co,, Lid. 12 years 40.00% 23,852,219.52 - -
Eastern China Kalya System Integration Co., Lid. No promise 87.00% 20,999,391.86 - -
Shanghal Hongpu Civit Airpart Communication Co., Lid. 10 years 30.00% 7,538,770.14 - -
Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd., 20 years 25.00% 111,724 471.64 -3,322,913.2 -
China Eastern Airfines Wuhan Co., Lid. 30 years 40.00% 89,654,598.89 57,960,976.08 -
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. No promise 45.00% 13903,851.47 2,005,203.29 -
Eastern China Alrines Import & Expart Co., Ltd. No promise 45.00% 46,554,518.50 1,161,386.52 -
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. 10 years 45.00% 17,076,299.10 - -
Shanghal Kelins Aviation Maintenance Service Co., Lid 10 years 35.00% 13,300,785.02 - -
Shanghel Eastern Airlines Hotel Co., Ltd 20 years 19.94% 21,968.325.52 - -
Eastern Arines Real Estate Co., Lid 15 years 5.00% 5,000,000.00 - -
CAAC Information Netwark Co., Ltd, 0.30% 4,090,000.00 - -
Total 2,996,065,529.94 51,741 918.01 -

s
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main Iltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.8 Long-term Equity Investment (Cont’d)
5.8.2.2 Equity Investment Difference

Original Amortization Current Period Remaining
Investee Company Amount Period Amortization Amount Reason
Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Lid. -5,538,188.77 10 years -563,818.88 -3,322,913.25 Note 1
Eastern {Shantou) Economic Development Co., Lid. -8,178,296.39 10 years -817,829.64 -5,724,807.47 Note 1
China Eastern Airines Wuhan Co., Ltd, 76,432,056.31 10 years 7,643,205.59 57,960,976.08 Note 2
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. 2,506,504.11 10 years 250,650.41 2,006,203.29 Note 1
China Eastern Ailines Import and Export Co. Lid 1,451,744.40 10 years 145.174.44 1,161,395,52 Note 1
Shanghai Zast Alrcraft Maintain Co., Ltd. -422,417.96 10 years -42.241.00 -337,936.16 Note 1

Total 51,741,918.01

Note 1: The transaction price is determined with reference to evaluated net assets. The difference between
evaluated net assets and the carrying amount of net assets of subsidiaries is accounted for as equity

investment difference.

Note 2:  The former Wuhan Airlines took part in the incorporation of China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. with
its evaluated net assets, some of which are not recognized according to the accounting policy of the

Company and the net assets on contribution date are adjusted accordingly.

5.9 Long-term Debt Investment
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Provision Provision
ftem Amount for Impairment Net Value Amount for Impairment Net Value
Bond - - - 585736.277.08 - 585,736,277.08
Other Bond - - - - - -

Total - - - 585,736,277.08 - 585736,277.08

5.9.1 Long-term Bond Investment (Unit: USD)

Interest Interest Ending Balance

Interest Rate Accrued, Accrued, Pravisian for

Categary Par value Initial Cost per Annum Maturity Current Current Amount impairment
US Treasury Zero Caupan

Bonds 7147500000 27810.207.00  8.0435477% Feb. 2004 - 4301259645 - -

V/T,h/ef lona-tarm bond investment has been refunded by the end of 2004,

;
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 37 December 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.10 Fixed Assets
Self-purchased Aircraft  Aircraft Held under Building &

ltem Aircraft Engines Financial Lease Premises Equipment Vehicles Total
Cost:
Beginning Balance 15,151,891,392.87  1.861.656,900.31 14,215,843441.58 2,325,152563.12 1.442.792,803.43  909,847,607.76 35907.184,718.07
Increase 2,272,59962036 10581331435 362871351153 7920034754 22221915196 10237256454 6.411,011,510.28
Decrease 113,763,154.14  1,205,812217.97 - T2004147.72  21627,561.81 44,796,460.90  1,458,083,548.54
Ending Balance 17,310,727,859.09  761,656,005.69 17,844,556,953.11 2,332,381,762.94 1,643,384,393.56  967,423,705.40 40,860,132,679.61
Accumulated Depreciation;
Beginning Balance 325041588117 88632160684 585755090015 387.861,155.97 74347012737 591,082.357.37 11,716,702,028.87
Increase 82832781470 54223989.03  601558,507.23  B64b262264 14922872127  101,268,347.19 1821,060,032.06
Decrease - 542,766,449.62 - 2024332200 1968474215 40,120627.58 63181514135
Ending Balance 4,078,743,69587  397,779,146.25 6,459,109437.38  445,070,456.61 87301410649  652,230,076.98 12,905946,919.58
Net Value:
Beginning Balance ~ 11,801,475511.70  975,335,30247  8,358,202,541.43 1937,201,407.15  699,322,676.06  318,765,250.39 24,190,482,689.20
Ending Balance 13,231,984,163.22  363,878,859.44 11,385,447 515.73 1,867,311,306.33  770,370,287.09  315,193,628.42 27,954,185,760.23
Provision for Impaiment:
Beginning Balance 3,570,000.00 - - - - - 3,570,000.00
Increase (Cecreass) - - - - - - -
Ending Balance 3,570,000.00 - - - - - 3,570,000.00
Book value:
Beginning Balance  11,897,805,511.70 97533530247 8,358,292,541.43 1,937,281,407.15  £99,322676.06  318,765,250.39 24,186,912,689.20
Ending Balance 13,228,414,163.22  363,878,859.44 11,385447,515.73 1,887,311,306.33  770,370,287.09

315,193,628.42 27,950,615,760.23

e s o

The increase of fixed assets this year includes RMB 2,353 million transferred from construction-in-progress. The

amount of net fixed assets includes the net value of RMB 5,113 million aircraft collateralized. The net value of

aircrafts which are operating-leased out is RMB 310 million.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont'd)

511 Construction-In-Progress
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Source Provision for Provision for

tem Progress of Fund Book value impairment Nt value Book value impairment Net value
Advance Paymant far

ASE0 Aireraft Uncomgleted  Loans, seff-financing  1,665,484,576.60 - 1665,464,576.80 - - -
Advance Paymant for

A320 Aireratt Uncompleted  Loans, self-fnancing ~~ 621,767,458.29 - 82178745829 1,078957432.96 - 107895743296
Advence Payment for

A32% Bicreft Uncompleled  Loans, seff-financing  302.262.734.38 - 208273638 441.805,880.80 - 44180588080
8737-800 Aircraft Simulator - Uncompleted Seli-nancng  82,268,288.32 - 8226820832 36004,616.00 - 36,004.610.00
Depogit of A340-600 Spare

Engine Uncompleted Sefi-firancing  560,793,676.56 - 079367858 18566.592.28 - 1858659226
Advarice Payment for B737

Aircraft Uncompletec  Loans, sef-inancing ~ 28.612,933.77 - 2961258377 6.662,160.32 - 6.662,160.33
Xiamen Interational Travel

Buiding Uncompleted Seltinancng ~ 27,70000000  18,000,000.00 870000000 27700,0000C  19,000000.00 8,700,000.00
Overhau! Expenses of

Aireraft Engires Uncompleted Seff-fnancing ~ 18,801,973.04 - 1880197304 1447337140 - 1447357130
A340 Simulatar Uncomoleted Seffinancing  13,260,842.40 - 13205,642.40 - - -
Trensformer Substation Uncompleted Seft-financing “1,571,570.00 - 11,574 ,670.00 9.205.949.00 - 9,245,949.00
Decoration of aperating

bulding Uncompleted Seft-financing 8575,351.86 - 8,575,361.88 2,172.865.00 - 2,172895.00
Financial Menegament

Information System Uncompleted Seti-finencing 8,154,667.00 - 8,134,657.00 5,498,480,00 - 5,499,460.00
Earning Managament

Iformation System Uncompleted Self-fnancing 4,659,464.96 - 4,859,464.96 4,869,464.96 - 4,£59.464.96
Land of Dongshe Alrport Uncompleted Seff-finencing 449581542 - 449591542 49591542 - 440591542
The Second Perind of

Freight Construction Uncompleted Sefi-francing 439767474 - 4397,874.74 - - -
Flight Training Bulding Uncompleted Saff-nencing 4,181531.59 - 4,181,531.59 2,221,057.00 - 2,01 057.00
Fire Pratection Pump Station

For Area of Meintenence  Uncompleted Self-fnancng 3816,472.02 - 3816.472.02 3.716,018.02 - 371601802
Othar Affliated Construction  Uncompleted Seft-francing 3,448,907 20 - 3,448.807.20 1,927946.20 - 1,927,946.20
80 Units of Area Aiport Land - Uncompleted Sel-financing 3,280,000.00 - 3,290,000.00 3,290,000.00 - 3.290,000.00
AQC Gonsiruciion Uncompleted  Loans, sef-financing 2.842,466.04 - 2.842,468.04 2,046,280.20 - 2046,280.20
Others (78 items) 58,334,199.59 - 5830419959 110456880128 - 1,104.568,801.23
Total 2,929,755,235.80  19,000,000.00 2910,755,235.80 2,768,083,854.48  19,000,000.00 2,749,083,854.48
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 December 2004

5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.11 Construction-In-Progress (Cont’d)
Total amount of RMB 3,155 million increased in construction-in-progress and RMB 2,353 million is transferred to

fixed assets while RMB 641 million is transferred to other accounts,

The beginning balance of capitalized interest included is RMB 64 million and increases by RMB 59 million during
this year. Total amount transferred to fixed assets is RMB 85 million and to other accounts is RMB 0.77 million
and the year-ending balance is RMB 38 million. The percentage of average capitalization to determine amount of

capitalized interest is 3.07%.

512 Intangible Assets

Land Premise
Category Use Right Use Right Software Others Total
Initial Amount 1,676,256,619.68  43,732,860.00  44,719,490.69 1,153,565.00 1.765,862,535.37

Acquisition Method

Contribution/self-purchase

Selff-purchase

Self-purchase

Self-purchase

Beginning Balance:

Amount 1,199.014,46543  38,127,41920  18,568,213.52 780,398.33 1,258,390,496 48
Less: Provision for Impairment - - - - -
Net Vaiug 1,199,91446543  39,127,419.20  18,568,213.52 780,398.33 1,258,390,496.48
Increase: 74,312,615.88 - 24120,715.50 - 984333313
Decrease:

Transfer out - - 254,000.00 - 254,000.00
Amortization 29,416,426.54 869,498.16 3,891,020.09 20905337  34,385998.16
Provigion (write-off) of impalrment - - - - -
Subtotal 29,416,426.54 869,498.16 4,145,020.09 209,053.37  34,639,998.16
Ending Balance:

Amount 124481085475  38,257921.04  38543,908.83 571,344.96 1,322,183,829.68
Less: Provision for Impairment - - - ) - -
Net Value 124481065475  38257,921.04  38,543,908.93 571,344.96 1,322,183,829.68
Remaining Months 32-593 months 528 months 24-93 months 16-47 months
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5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

512 Intangible Assets (Cont’d)
The management committee considers that: The Company hasn't charged the provision for impairment, because

there is no situation of market value in excess of their book value.

In the process of translation to a public-listed corporation, Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding
62% of the Company’s share capital, invested a land occupancy right which is located in China (mainly in Shanghai
Honggiao Airport). The transfer of use right has not registered yet. By the end of Dec. 2004, the net book value of
the asset is 317 million. Before the completion of the alteration, the company’s right to transfer or mortagage will
be restricted as the registered name of the land use right certification is not consistent with the company’s name.
But the company’s right to occupy and use the land will not be affected, and the company does not consider this

condition will have significant influence on financial position.

The company’s stock-held subsidiary China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd plans to attract a new shareholder
of Nanjing Municipal Investment Company who as the land owner will invest the land use right. The land in Lukou
airport which is located in Lukon Town, Jiangling District, Nanjing City. The nature of the land is an allocated land
with no limit on use years. Now the transfer of allocated land to granted land is in process. Owing to the uncompleted

procedure, the capital injection of China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd has not accomplished.
The company’s stock-held subsidiary China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd holds the land use right of Lukou

Airport which is invested by an investor of Jiangsu Airline industrial Group. The type of the land use right is “state-

owned land use right”.

STV
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5.13 Long-term Amortization Charges
Customs Duties and
VAT on Aircraft Held
under Operating
Lease & Supervision Aircraft One-off
Charges on Aircraft Flying Crew Modification transportation Qther Deferred
ltem with Tax Reduction ~ Training Expenses Expenses Uniform Cost allowance Expenses Totat
Initial Amount 205,146907.73  100,879,100.00  100,739,083.13 29,870,800.68 29,616,338.00 3781396818 504,065,776.72
Beginning Balance 47,871,396.98 3989897700 69,403,891.91 19,768,428.99 - 2485105154 201,893,846.42
Increase 5947.01430 - 2929,700.45 21,652,883.96 29,616,338.00 1,35340000 6149933671
Anortization 16,326,784.20  38,959,977.00 1223153784 2602367445 1,966,953.61 5604,111.69  101,113038.79
Transfer out - - - 14,129.80 - 939,000.00 953,129.80
Ending Balance 37,591,627.08 938,00000  80,102,154.52 16,383,508.70 27,649,384.39 19,661,330.85  161,327,014.54
Accurmulated
Amortization 167,566,280.65  99,940,100.00 40,636,908.61 14,487,300.95 1,966,953.61 18,152,218.33
Remaining
Months 16-117 months 20months  65-115 months 69-71 months
514 Deferred Tax Debits
514.1  Consclidated
Iltem Ending Balance Beginning Balance

Provision for Bad Debts

Provision for Impairment of inventory

38,043,755.48
97,682,979.14

38,560,147.38
89,964,575.74

Provision for Impairment of Fixed Assets 535,5600.00 535,500.00
Unverified Losses under Disposal of Fixed Assets - 632,513.83
Provision for Impairment of Construction-in-progress 2,850,000.00 2,850,000.00
Provision for Impairment of Long-term Investment 580,156.70 580,156.70

Total 139,592,391.32 133,122,893.75
514.2  Parent Company
Iltem Ending Balance  Beginning Balance

Provision for Bad Debts

Provision for Impairment of inventory

20,498,538.02
90,421,025.53

23,766,108.91
83,685,044.13

Provision for Impairment of Fixed Assets 535,500.00 535,500.00
Unverified Losses under Disposal of Fixed Assets - 632,513.93
Provision for Impairment of Construction-in-progress 2,852,000.00 2,850,000.00

Total

114,305,063.55

111,469,166.97
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5.15 Short-term Loans

Category Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Credit Loans 5,055,019,456.37 4,601,917,352.58
Guarantee Loans 1,133,000,000.00 30,000,000.00

Total 6,188,919,456.37 4,631,917,352.58

RMB 110 million of the Guarantee Loans are borrowed by a stock-held subsidiary with the guarantor of another
stock-held subsidiary, and the rest RMB 33 million are borrowed by a stock-held subsidiary with the guarantor of

China Eastern Air Group Co., a shareholder holding 82% of the Company’s share capital.

5.16 Notes Payable

Item Ending Balance  Beginning Balance !
Commercial Acceptance Bills 838,337,176.10 676,486,871.84
Bank Acceptance Bills - 80,000,000.00

Total 838,337,176.10 756,486,871.84

The Company has signed integrated credit facility contracts with China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch,
China Minsheng Banking Co. Ltd. Shanghal Branch, Industrial Bank Shanghai Branch and Bank of China Shanghai
Branch this year. The company pays for the goods by issuing the commercial acceptance drafts whose interests

are born by the buyer,

Among the year-end balance, no amount is due from shareholder holding over 5% (including 5%) of the Company’s

share capital.

5.17 Accounts Payables

Ending Balance  Beginning Balance

Accounts payables 727,835,020.99 370,753,762.69

Accounts payable refer to the amounts payable to other airlines, which have been billed but unsettled yet and the

amounts payable for purchase of aviation equipment.
There is no amount due to shareholders holding more than 5% (including 5%) of the Company’s voting shares.

The ending balance is 86.31% higher than the previous year. The main reason is the increase of the current
period’s purchase.
Ity
\

s
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5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.18 Advances from Customers

Ending Balance = Beginning Balance

Advances from customers 69,661,954.06 95,527,168.39

There is no amount due to shareholders that hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the Company’s voting shares.

5.19 International Sales in Advance of Carriage

<International Sales in Advance of Carriage> refers to the amount pending settlement resulting from the sale of
passenger, cargo, mail and over-weighted luggage tickets for international routes. On receipt of evidence of
transportation provided by the Company or other airlines, the amount is then transferred to revenue or accounts
payable respectively. <international Sales in Advance of Carriage> has an ending credit balance of
RMB 7186,225,097.79.

5.20 Domestic Sales in Advance of Carriage

<Domestic Sales in Advance of Carriage> refers to the amount pending settlement resulting from the sale of

passenger, cargo, mail and over-weighted luggage tickets for domestic routes. On receipt of the evidence of
transportation from the Company or other alrlines, the amount is then transferred to revenue or accounts payable

respectively. <Domestic Sales in Advance of Carriage> has an ending credit balance of RMB 148,349,090.03.

5.21 Dividend payable

Item Ending Balance = Beginning BalanceJ
Dividends of Legal-person Shares 1,278,965.10 735,584.70
Total 1,278,965.10 735,594.70

5.22 Tax Payable

ltem

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Income Tax
Value-added Tax

Business Tax (Note)

City Construction Tax

Others

230,277,153.79
3,037,577.23
113,571,484.19
6,579,463.97
16,084,508.15

185,850,339.44
7,014,698.63
-9,662,805.69
162,775.12
3,685,952.89

Total

369,550,167.33

186,940,960.39

The ending balance is 97.68% higher than that of the previous year, resulting from the increase of the current

period’s operating revenue and net income.
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Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.23 Other outstanding payment (Statutory)

The ending balance of other outstanding payment (Statutory) is RMB 643,612,487.75, mainly because the Company
follows “Regulations on the Accounting Treatment in the Reform of Staff Housing” (Cai-kuai [2001] 5) and has
accrued housing subsidy for employees of RMB336 million, besides, it also has accrued civil aviation infrastructure

levies payable of RMB 244 million.

5.24 Other Payables

Ending balance Beginning balance J

Cther Payables 1,330,458,305.06

1,743,733,768.88

Among the ending balance, RMB 186.32 million is payable to Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding

over 5% of the Company's share capital.

The ending balance is 31.06% higher than last year, mainly due to the increase of overhaul expense.

5.25 Accrued Expenses

Item

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Accrued Interest on Aircraft under Financial Lease
Accrued Interest on Loan

Aircraft Operating Lease Obligation
Overhaul Expenses of Aircraft Engines
Taking-off & Landing Charges

Aircraft Fuel

Food and Beverage

Aircraft Insurance

Flight Crew Training

Off-Port Information Expense

Flying Hours Expenses

Rentals of Office Buildings

Airport Consumables Repairing Charge
Others

76,341,158.84
15,473,979.44
18,724,114.45
731,008,634.21
720,874,440.78
1,218,486,166.71
182,175,665.66
84,505,861.35
94,160,241.49
45,836,621 10
28,248,717.60
6,866,366.56
85,852,601.50
14,536,5623.49

137,948,486.64
27,143,453.92
137,273,131.76
1,056,316,818.26
683,835,038.21
708,322,128.36
121,553,879.31
84,368,514.74
106,484,790.41
95,508,325.20
11,828,037.73
942,873.51
44,850,000.00
19,514,611.00

Total

3,323,089,093.18

3,235,980,189.05
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5.26

The ending balance of accrued liabilities is RMB 13,831,473.00, mainly owing to the provision made for the

Accrued Liabilities

incremental cost of FFP,

5.27

The ending balance of deferred income is RMB 89,750,899.62, determined by the residual amount after amortization

Deferred income

Notes to the Financial Statements

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

Year ended 31 December 2004

of the difference between the carrying amount and sale price of leaseback operation.

5.28

Item

Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Current Portion of Long-term Loans
Current Portion of Long-term Accounts Payable

Current Portion of Amount Payable due to Assets Transfer

2,290,849,925.73
1,485,319,367.63
30,000,000.00

1,956,619,716.19
1,986,221,318.24
30,000,000.00

Total

3,806,169,293.36

3,972,841,034.43

Current Portion of Long-term Accounts Payable is the amount payable for fixed assets held under financial lease.

Details are as follows:

Item

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

The least payment for fixed assets held under financial lease

Less: Un-transferred financing expenses

1,827,026,473.80
341,707,106.17

2,427,469,083.52
441,247,765.28

Net amount of long-term accounts payable for

fixed assets held under financial lease

e e e e S

5.29

Type

Long-term Loans

1,485,319,367.63

1,986,221,318.24

. e e

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Credit

Guaranteed

Collateralized

3,396,177,570.56
230,623,220.00
3,656,413,374.78

3,434,162,628.12
412,500,000.00
3,963,321,055.33

Total

7,283,214,165.34

7,809,983,684.45

The guarantor of the debt above is Eastern Air Group Co., a shareholder holding 62% of the Company’s share

capital.

The collateral of the collateralized loans are 12 A320 aircrafts, 3 A340 aircrafts, 3 A300 aircrafts, 1 MDS0 aircraft

and 4 B-737 Aircrafts, of which the relevant procedures are still in process.

—_—— e ——
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5.30 Long-term Accounts Payable

Item

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Accounts payable for fixed assets held under financial lease

Accounts payable to China Civil Aviation Flight Institute

8,196,485,000.96
120,000,000.00

6,570,984,780.75
150,000,000.00

Total

8,316,485,000.96

6,720,984,780.75

5.30.1

Item

Accounts Payable for Fixed Assets Held under Financial Lease

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Least payment for fixed assets held under financial lease

Less: Un-transferred financing expenses

8,639,557,608.60
443,072,607.64

7,329,817,680.65
7568,832,799.90

Net amount of long-term accounts payable for fixed

6,570,984,780.75

assets held under financial lease 8,196,485,000.96

The ending baiance of accounts payable for fixed assets held under financial lease is RMB 8,1986,485,000.96,
which is payable to financial lease companies for aircraft held under financial lease. The balance includes
USD 710,702,925.27 translated at the exchange rate of @ 8.2765; DEM 198,315,848.91, translated at @5.7691;
JPY 14,682,973,781.00, translated at @0.079701.

5.30.2  Payment for China Civil Aviation Flight Institute

The Company acquired the assets of Great Wall Airlines Co., which was under the jurisdiction of China Civil
Aviation Flight Institute, at a price of RMB270 million. According to the transfer agreement, the Company will pay
in installments in S years starting from June 2001, The Company paid RMB30 million this year. Accumulated
payment is RMB120 million and the ending balance is RMB 150 million. (include: RMB 120 million charged to

long-term accounts payable and RMB 30 million charged to current portion of long-term ligbilities.)

5.31 Deferred Tax Credits

Item

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Tangible Assets Donated
Assets Revaluation Increment

Depreciation

181,714.53
314,370.00
329,270,264.66

181,714.53
392,862.50
258,223,983 .81

Total

329,766,349.19

258,798,660.84
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5.32 Share Capital

Beginning Change, Ending
Balance Current Balance
. Unlisted Shares
1. Sponsors’ Shares
Including:
State-owned Shares 3,000,000,000.00 - 3,000,000,000.00
2. Subscribed Legal Person Shares - - -
3. Internat Staff Shares - -
Total Unlisted Shares 3,000,000,000.00 - 3,000,000,000.00
fI. Listed Shares
1. Domestically Listed RMB Common shares 300,000,000.00 - 300,000,000.00

2. Domestically Listed Foreign Invested Shares
3. Overseas Listed Foreign Invested Shares

Total Listed Shares

1,566,950,000.00
1,866,950,000.00

- 1,566,950,000.00
- 1,866,950,000.00

Il. Total Capital Shares

==

4,866,950,000.00

- 4,866,950,000.00

5.33 Capital Reserve

ltem

Beginning Balance Increase

e

Decrease Ending Balance

Premium on Shares

954,456,511.50

954,456,611.50

Reserve for Equity Investment 30,064,054.55 9,786,736.49 - 39,850,791.04
Reserve for Asset Revaluation Increment 162,546,102.82 - 40,540,209.94 122,005,892.88
Other Capital Surplus Transferred In - 40,759,431.68 -~ 40,759,431.68
Transferred from Payments for Special Purpose 19,888.00  24,883,505.00 - 24,808,393.00
The difference of related transaction - 708,030.75 - 708,030.75
Total 1,147,086,556.87  76,135,703.92  40,540,209.94 1,182,682,050.85

The current increase of <Capital Surplus-Reserve for Equity Investment> mainly refers to move-in of the difference
between the carrying amount and sale price during the current investment to Shanghai Kelin Aircraft Maintain
Co., Ltd.

The current decrease of <Capital Surplus-Reserve for Asset Revaluation Increment> mainly refers to the amortization
of asset evaluation increment of RMB 400,948,524.28 formed during the restructuring of the Company. From
year 1998, the balance is to be amortized into <Capital Surpius-Other Capital Surplus Transferred In> evenly over

a period of 10 years. .
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5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.33 Capital Reserve (Cont’d)

The current increase of <Capital Surplus-Special Allocation Transferred in> mainly refers to the allocation by the

CAAC transferred from Eastern Air Group Company, in the purpose of the construction of the Aviation Security

Enforcement System. By the end of 2004, the fund has been used according to the regulation.

5.34 Surplus Reserve

Beginning Increase, Decrease, Ending
Item Balance Current Current Balance
Statutory Surplus Reserve 59,820,936.84  35,299,036.48 - 95119873.32
Public Welfare Fund 58,902,989.16  31,836,798.94 - 90,739,788.10
Discretionary Surplus Reserve 81,165.66 - - 81,165.66
Total 118,805,091.66 - 185,940,927.08

67,135,835.42

5.35 Undistributed Profit

Undistributed Profit at the Beginning of the Year

Add: Current Profit

Profits Available for Distribution

Less: Provision for Statutory Surplus Reserve
Provision for Statutory Welfare Fund
Provision for Staff & Worker’s Welfare Fund

Dividends for Common Shares

-005,928,136.89
536,342,070.83
-369,586,066.06
35,299,036.48
31,836,798.94
676,711.92
97,339,000.00

Ending Balance

-534,737,613.40

—— =]

The all current-period profit will be used to cover the loss of previous-period. The increased Surplus Reserve is

reserved according to the net profit of 1 consolidated subsidiaries - China Cargo Aitlines Co., Utd. According to

the decision of the second regular meeting of the year 2004 of Board of Directors, the company will distribute

bonus of RMB 0.20(include tax) per 10 shares to all shareholders, and RMB 87,339,000.00 of distributable profit

in total will be allotted.
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5.36 Revenue from Main Operations
5.36.1  Consolidated
5.36.1.1 Business Type

Year 2004 Year 2003 r

Item Revenue Cost Profit Revenue Cost Profit |
Ajr Transportation & ‘

Commission 19,863,525,430.63 16,099,571413.31  3,763,854,023.22 13,983.687,842.77 11,891,704,802.10  2,091,983,040.67
Training 29,618,192.06 24,005,319.09 5,612.372.97 15,370,510.38 12,928,553.68 2,441956.70
Total L 19,893,143,628.59 16,123577,232.40  3,769,566,396.19 13,999,058,353.15 11,904,633,355.78  2,094,424,997.37 -

5.36.1.2 Region

Year 2004 Year 2003 i
ltem Revenue Cost Profit Revenue Cost Profit
Oomestic 8528,136,879.30  6,799,102681.02 172303419837 624238722079  5552,363470.18 6911—0235;50—:33 i
Internationel 8,562.225,426.72  7113,303,692.25 1438921,734.47 5747,487,545.80 4623,001,954.59  1,124,395,591.30

Regional 2812,761322.48  2211,170.859.13  601,610,463.35 2,009,183,586.47 1,720,187,931.03 279,995,855 44
Total 19,893,143,628.59 16,123,577,232.40  3,769,566,396.19 13,999,058,353.15 11,904 -

b e

633,355.78

2,094,424,997.37

The revenue from top 5 customers is RMB1,643 million, representing 8.26% of the total revenue.

The revenue from main operations is 42.10% higher than that of last year, mainly because of the exemption from

SARS this year and the increase of the transportation capacity.

The cost from main operations is 35.44% higher than that of last year. In addition to the above-mentioned reason,

the boost of fuel prices in domestic and international markets also contributes to the increase.

5.36.2  Parent Company
5.36.2.1 Business Type

Year 2004 Year 2003
item Revenue Cost Profit Revenue Cost Profit :
Alr Transportation &
Commission 15,875,882,226.74 1294742839125 2928453,836.48 11,061,812,480.67 9,761993,025.07  1,209,819,455.60
Training - - - - - -
Total 16,875,882,226.74 12,947.428,391.25 2,928,453,835.49 11,061,812,480.67 9,761,993,025.07

YT I I AT T T ST T

1,299,819,455.60
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5.36 Revenue from Main Operations (Cont’d)
5.36.2.2 Region

Year 2004 Year 2003
Jtem Revenue Cost Profit Revenue Cost Profit
Domestic 7,188,623,606.60 5,906,788,677.60 128182402000 520028452438 4608,155,55287  601,128,971.51
Internaticnal $,003101955.18  5008,734037.91 1194367 917.27 398381173020 348667361881  497138,120.39
Regional 2,464,156,664.96  2,011,805,675.74  452.260,980.22 1,868.716,217.00 1,667,163,853.39  201,552,363.70

Total 15,875,882,226.74 12,947,428,391.25  2,928,453,835.49 11,061,812,480.67 9,761,993,025.07  1,299,819,455.60

The revenue from top 5 customers is 1,643 million, representing 10.35% of the total revenue.

The revenue from main operations is 43.52% higher than that of last year, mainly because of the exemption from

SARS this year and the increase of the transportation capacity.

The cost from main operations is 32.63% higher than that of last year, boost of domestic and international fuel

price also contribute to the increase besides the above-mentioned reason.

5.37 Business Tax and Additional

Item Year 2004 Year 2003
Business Tax 486,974,160.11 152,855,144.10
City Construction Tax 23,429,837.54 9,877,254.52
Education Tax 11,169,839.38 4,626,064.60

Total 521,573,837.03 167,358,463.22

The business tax and additional is 211.65% higher than that of last year. The main reason is: in the previous year,
the business tax and additional levied on passenger transportation from May to September is returned to the
Company at the full amount as financial subsidy according to Implementation of “Guidance on the Measures to
Lower the Influence of SARS on Some Industries” issued by Shanghai Municipal Government (Hu-cai-fa 2003
No. 55). Pursuant to relevant rules, the civil aviation business of the Company is exempt from business tax, city
construction tax and additional education tax from Oct. 1, 2003 to Dec. 31, 2003. This year, the preferential

policy is not applicable any more.
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5.38 Other Operating Revenue
Year 2004 Year 2003

ltem Revenue Cost Profit Revenue Cost Profit
Materials Transfer 18,350,837.50 16,431,887.05 1.918,950.45 10,979,268.19 11,281,151.88 -301,883.69
Commission 83,660.68 2,331.00 91,329.68 193,861.48 16,696.40 177,165.08
Ground Service 92011594006 340,171,99403 58894394603 062780468824 28657331920  341,231,369.04
Overhaul Expenses of

Aircraft Engines 11,724,687 62 9,077,682.64 2,647,004.98 28,203,593.55 21,625,727.66 6,577,865.89
Aircraft Sub-lease 108,934,377.26 37,849,252.92 71,085,124.34 95,527,708.25 43,866,576.98 51,661,131.27
Others 39,084,865.85 38,907,616.14 177,249.51 268,137,814.00 17,648,692.47 10.489,121.53
Total 1,107,304 368.77  442,440,763.78 790,846,933.71  361,012,164.59  409,834,769.12

£64,863,604.99

The other operating revenue is 62.23% higher than that of last year, mainly because of the exemption from SARS
this year.

5.39 Financial Expenses

Item Year 2004 Year 2003

Interest Expenses

Less: Interest Income

Exchange Losses

Less: Exchange Gains

Others

815,401,872.30
128,735,693.19
437,472,243.32
440,661,447.30

14,999,055.65

822,474,889.49
108,408,300.66
369,031,974.00
306,183,837.29

8,125,980.10

Total

698,476,930.78

785,040,705.64
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5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.40 Investment Income

5.40.1 Consolidated

Item Year 2004 Year 2003
Stock Investment Gains - 22,203,405.49
Bond Investment Gains 5,847,961.54 43,604,968.41

Profit Distributed by Investee Company Accounted with

Cost Method

Net increase (Decrease) of Shareholders’ Equity of Investee

Companies Adjusted at the End of the Year
Amortization of Equity Investment Difference
Others

-33,673,5622.23
-6,589,995.22
5,013,662.50

993,288.00

-17,000,829.32
-5,996,539.49

Total

-29,401,993.41

43,804,293.09

The sharp drop of investment income is mainly because that the company has refunded its bond investment and

has withdrawn an investment to a consolidated subsidiary which acquired sound gains on entrusted financing

last year.

5.40.2 Parent Company

[tem

Year 2004

Year 2003

Stock Investment Gains

Bond Investment Gains

Net Increase (Decrease) of Shareholders’ Equity of
Investee Companies Adjusted at the End of the Year

Amortization of Equity Investment Difference

5,847,961.54

314,672,848.51
-6,625,141.92

43,604,968.41
903,288.00

290,186,821.66
-6,625,140.16

Total

313,895,668.13

328,159,937.91

5.41 Subsidy Income

ltem Year 2004 Year 2003
Airline subsidy 12,436,200.00 5,860,000.00
Return of Tax 584,024.65 43,568,528.18

Financial Subsidy

58,199,524.81

38,466,000.00

Total

71,219,749.56

87,894,528.18
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5. Notes to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.41 Subsidy Income (Cont'd)
5.41.1  The Company received special subsidy fund for flight course of RMB 12.44 million.

5.41.2.1 According to the relevant regulation (Hu-cai-yu 2002 No. 113) of Shanghai Ministry of Finance, the

Company received a Financial subsidy of RMB £2.63 million.

5.41.2.2 The Company’s Ningbo branch is granted a financial subsidy of RMB 5.57 million by Ningbo Bureau of

Finance.
5.42 Non-operating income
Item Year 2004 Year 2003 J
Net Gains on Disposal of Fixed Assets 54,378,5630.16 1,330,807.51
Stock Profit of Fixed Assets 178,100.00 -
Penalty Income 2,300,164.01 3,852,829.46
Others 281,133,638.15 117,688,085.21

Total 337,990,332.32 122,082,722.18

The non-operating income is 174.83% higher than that of last year, mainly because of the high balance of sales
in advance of carriage in excess of settlement period which is recognized by the company follow the Accounting

Treatment for Civil Aviation Industry.

5.43 Non-operating Expenses

ltem Year 2004 Year 2003

Net Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 36,700,174.08 9,674,564.75

Penalties 1,303,678.05 865,566.54

Donation 478,061.80 328,941.06

Provision for Impairment of Construction-in-progress - 9,000,000.00

Others 14,889,686.24 8,656,113.78
53,371,600.17

Total

28,525,186.13

The non-operating expenses is 87.10% higher than that of last year, mainly because of high expenditure on

disposal of aircraft engine.

RRYE
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5. Notes to Main Iltems of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.44

Income Tax

The income tax this year is RMB 224,587,769.55, which is deferred income taxes.

5.45
5.45.1

5.45.2

5.45.3

Other Significant Items in the Cash Flows Statement
Included in cash paid relating to other investing activities is RMB 30 miilion, paid for the purchase of
Great Wall Airlines Co., an affiliate of former China Civil Aviation Flight Institute, according to assets

transfer agreement.

Included in cash paid relating to other financing activities is RMB 2,400 million, paid for the capitalized
loan interest borrowed for the purchase and construction of fixed assets or other long-term assets, and

the financing expense of fixed assets held under financial lease.

The amount RMB 24.88 million is the special allocated fund by CAAC transferred from Eastern Air
Group Company in the purpose of construction of aviation security enforcement system. By the end of
this pericd, the fund has been used at full amount according to the regulations, and has been reserved

in the capital reserve.
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5. Notes to Main Items of Financial Statements (Cont’d)

5.46 Subsidiaries Included in the Consolidation Scope Starting from this Period

The Company invested to Shanghai Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd. in the form of cash. The financial statements of

the company as of the end of this year are included in the consolidation scope. The main financial data of the

company is as follows:

Ending Balance

Total assets
Current assets
Long-term investment
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Other assets
Total liability

* Current liability
Long-term liability

1,400,533,136.06
215,642,416.48
737,049,567.73
447,841,151.85

1,145,638,736.40

Year 2004

Main operation revenue
Main operation income
Total income

Income tax expenses

182,277,666.28
103,879,687.91
64,454,606.16
9,668,190.92

Net income 54,786,415.24
5.47 Non-frequented gains and losses
Iltems Year 2004 Year 2003

Gain on short-term investment

Subsidy income

Gains on disposal of fixed assets

Revenue of Sales in Advance of Carriage excesses
settlement period

Other Operating Revenue

Less: Losses on disposal of fixed assets

Other Non-operating Expense

60,536,787.13
46,083,303.51

215,141,670.66
25,871,932.08
31,140,310.64
14,155,066.94

18,872,894.67
75,135,348.95
1,113,033.44

98,966,740.57
4,424,966.51
8,832,544.21
8.495,601.45

Total

302,348,315.75

181,184,838.48
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

6.1 Related Parties with Control Relationship

6.1.1 Brief Introduction of Related Parties with Control Relationship

Registered Relation with Legal
Company Address Main Operations the Company Type Representative ‘
Eastern Air Group Gompany Hongaiao West Rd., Management of subsidiary Parent company  State-owned Ye Yigan
Shanghai companies

Shanghai Eastern Flight Waigaogiao, Training of flying crew and other Subsidiary Limited Liability Yan Banghong

Training Co, Ltd. Shanghai staff in connection with

aviation

Eastern Airlines Hotel Bsijing Sales of packaged food, Subsidiary Limited Liability Cao Jianxong

Co., Ld. beverage, knitwear, grocery
China Cargo Alrines Co. Ltd. Pudong New Area Alr transportation of cargo and Subsidiary Limited Liability Li Zhongming

mails over domestic and

international air routes

Jiangnan Tourism Hong Kong Tourist service Subsidiary Limited Liabiitties Su Guoxin
{Hong Kong} Co.

Eastern Airlines (Shantou) Shantou Manufacture and sales of Subsidiary Limited Lizbilities Wu Jiuheng
Economic dsvelopment products on airfines, sales of
Co., Ltd. grocery and chemistries materials

China Eastern Airfines Jiangsu ~ Nanjing Alr transportation of passengers, Subsidiary Limited Liabiitty Su Guoxin
Co., Lid. cargo and malls over domestic and

aporoved international air routes

Eastern Airfines Jiangsu Nanjing Design of newspaper, Subsidiary Collective owned Yang Jianmin
Advertisement Co. advertisement, and presswork enterprise
Chongming Island Land Freight Transportation, Subsidiary Limited Liabilities Chen Daglan
of Sangha Storage Service efc
Shanghai Eastern Fudart Pudang New Area, Agent services for transportation of  Subsidiary Sino-foraign Zhou Liguo
Transportation Services Shanghal imp. & exp. cargo by air or sea; joint venture
Co,ld international air exprass
Shanghai Easiern Alrlines Pudong New industry investment and the refated ~ Subsidiary Limited Liabiity Liu Shagyong
Investment Co., Ltd. Area, Shanghai consulting services
Shanghai East Aircreft Maintain - Pudong New Airline maintaining services Subsidiary Sino-foreign Yang Xu
Co., Ltd. Area, Shanghal joint vanture
Shangha Eastern Logistics Pudong New Freight Consignment, Land fraight  Subsidiary Limtted Liabiity { Fenghua
Co., Ltd Area, Shanghai Load and Unload, Transportation

Service, Storage, Property

Management
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

6.1 Related Parties with Control Relationship (Cont’d)
6.1.2 Registered Capital and its Movement of Related Parties with Control Relationship
Beginning Ending
Company Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Eastern Air Group Company 748,970,000.00 - - 748,970,000.00
Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co., Ltd. 473,000,000.00 - 473,000,000.00
_Eastern Alrlines Hotel Co., Ltd. 70,000,000.00 - - 70,000,000.00
China Cargo Airlines Co. Ltd. 500,000,000.00 - - 500,000,000.00
Jiangnan Tourism (Hong Kong) Co. £41,100.00 - - 641,100.00
Eastern Airlines (Shantou) Economic development Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 - - 10,000,000.00
China Eastem Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd. 257,503,600.00 - - 257,508,600.00
Eastern Airines Jiangsu Advertisement Co. 300,000.00 - - 300,000.00
Shanghal Dongwef Aviation Transportation Co., Ltd 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
Shanghai Eastern Fudart Transportation Services Co., Lid. USD1,000,000 - - USD1,000,000
Shanghal Eastern Airlines Investment Co., Ltd, 412,500,000.00 - - 412,500,000.00
Shanghai East Aircraft Maintain Co., Lid. USD3,100,000 - - USD3,100,000
Shanghal Easten Logistics Co. Ltd 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
6.1.3 Stock Held and its Movement of Related Parties with Control Relationship
Beginning Increase, Decrease, Ending !
Balance Current Curreni Balance
Company Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Eastern Ar Group Company 300000000000 6200 - - - - 3000000,00000  62.00
Shenghai Eastern Fiight Training Co., Ltd. ~ 449,350,000.00 85.00 - - - - 449,350,000.00 95.00
Eastern Arines Industriel Co., Utd. 60,100,000.00 85.88 - - - - 60,100,000.00 85.86
China Cargo Alrines Co. Lid. 35000000000 7000 - - - - 330,00000000 7000
Jiangnan Tourism {Hong Kang) Co. 330,000.00 55.00 - - - - 330,000.00 56.00
Eastern Alrlines (Shantou) Economic
development Co., Lid. 550000000 5500 - - - - 550000000 5500
China Eastern Airings Jiangsu Co., Ltd. ~ 141,626,980.00 55.00 - - - - 141,626,580.00 5500
Eastern Airines Jiangsu Adverfisement Co.  166,000.00 55.00 - - - - 165,000.00 55.00
Shanghai Dangwei Aviation
Transportation Co. Ltd - - 1,365,000.0 4550 - - 1,365,000.00 4550
Shanghai Eastern Fudart Transportation
Sarvices Co, Lid. 204003162 370 - - - - 204003152 3870
Shanghai Eastern Airfines lnvestment
Co, Lid, 407,520,000.00 %79 - - - - 407 520,000.00 88.79
Shanghal East Aircratt Maintaln Co,, Ltd. 1538466200 60.00 - - - - 16,30466200  50.00
Shanghal Eastern Logistics Co., Lid - - 140,000,000.00 70.00 - - 140,000,000.00 70.00
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

6.7 Related Parties with Controf Relationship (Cont’d)

6.1.4 Transactions with Related Parties with Control Relationship (Unit: RMB’000)
6.1.4.1 Transaction Amount with Related Parties

6.1.4.1.1 Supply of Food and Beverage

Year 2003 l

Company Year 2004

Eastern Airlines (Shantou) Economic development Co., Ltd. 57,623 36,413
6.1.4.2  Amount Due From or To the Related Parties

Item Ending Balance Beginning Balance

Other account receivable: China East Airlines Group Co. 34,305 961

Other account payable: China East Airlines Group Co. 16,319 13,797

Prepayments: China East Airlines Group Co. 7,474 -
6.2 Related Parties without Control Relationship but have Transactions with the Company

(Unit: RMB’000)

6.2.1 Nature of Relation with Related Parties without Control Relationship

Company

Relation with the Company

China Eastern Airlines Import and &xport Co. Ltd

Qingdao Air Service Co., Ltd.

Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Lid.

Shanghai Eastern Real Estate Operaticn Co.

Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation
Eastern Aviat‘bn Advertising Service Co.

Eastern Airlines Int'l Tourism Transportation Co., Ltd
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Eastern Development Co.

Eastern (Zhoushan) Tourism Industrial development Company
Shanghai Travel Service (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Tourism {(Hong Kang) Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes Overhaul Engineering Co.

China Eastern Airtines Wuhan Co., Ltd.

China Eastern Airlines North West Co., Ltd.

China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Eastern Airlines International Travel Agency Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Aviation Co.

China Eastern Airlines Food Investment Co. Ltd
Qi Lu Eastern Airlines Catering Co., Ltd.

Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Same parent company
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Same parent company
Same parent company
Subsidiary
Same parent company
Subsidiary
Same parent company
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

6.2 Related Parties without Control Relationship but have Transactions with the Company
(Unit: RMB’000) (Cont’d)
6.2.2 Amount of Related Party Transactions
£8.2.2.1 Purchase
The breakdown of purchase of fixed assets, flight equipment or food and beverage by the Company from related

parties is as follows.

Company Year 2004 Year 2003
Qingdao Air Service Co., Ltd. 14,291 2,518
Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. 165,643 96,984
Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation 14,850 3,149
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. - 1,360
China Eastern Airlines Import and Export Co. Ltd 5,328,000 3,079,271
Qi Lu Eastern Airlines Catering Co., Ltd. 8,472 5,285

B.2.2.2 Service

The services provided by related parties are as follows.

Company Year 2004 Year 2003
China Eastern Alrlines Import and Export Co. Ltd 34,270 21,393
Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation 1,241 5,945

Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes

Overhaul Engineering Co. 25,445 25,361
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. 5,629 1,317
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Lid. 8,228 24,940
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. 32,396 8,547
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. 14,181 17,776
China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. 22,494 10,743

6.2.2.3 Labor

The labor provided to related parties are as follows.

Company Year 2004 Year 2003 i
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. 32,396 ' 28,965
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. 87,883 47,457
China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. 81,517 50,442
Nanjing Aviation Co. 5,156 4,210
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Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

6.2 Related Parties without Control Relationship but have Transactions with the Company
(Unit: RMB’000) (Cont’d]}
6.2.2.4 Supply of fund
The placement of deposit by the Company in Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd. generated an interest income

of 4,897 thousand in 2004,

6.2.2.5 Finance

Then Company paid an interest of 1,150 thousand for borrowings from Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd..

6.2.2.6 Lease
6.2.2.6.1 The Company paid a rent of RMB 199,188 thousand to China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. for
the lease of 2 A300 aircrafts during Jan.-Sep. 2004

6.2.2.6.2 The Company received a rent of RMB 41,715 thousand to China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. for
the lease of two B737-300 aircrafts during 2004

6.2.2.6.3 The Company paid a rent of RMB 88,341 thousand to China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. for the
lease of two CRJ aircrafts during Jan.-Sep. 2004

6.2.2.6.4 The Company'’s aircraft maintenance base paid a rent of RMB 4,341 thousand to Shanghai Eastern

Aviation Equipment Manufacture Co.,Ltd. for the lease of building and equipment.

£.2.2.7 Sale of Equity
The Company sold all of its held equity of subsidiary Qi Lu Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. And Yan Tai Eastern Air
Catering Co., Ltd to its subsidiary Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co.,Ltd. The transaction price is determined by

the net assets value appraised on the agreement date.

AN
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)
6.2 Related Parties without Control Relationship but have Transactions with the Company
(Unit: RMB’000) (Cont’d) -
6.2.3 Amounts Due to or From the Related Parties

6.2.3.1  Accounts Receivable:

Company Ending Balance  Beginning Balance
Shanghai Eastern Development Co. - 10,440
Shanghai Tourism {Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 111,132 58,190
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. 40,228 24,940
Eastern International Tourism Transportation Co., Lid. 11,012 11,012
Eastern (Zhoushan) Tourism Industrial Development Co. 5,162 5,762
Shanghai Travel Service (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 90,153 69,641
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Cc., Ltd. 274 423
China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. 52,128 ' -
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. 7,176 5,930

8.2.3.2 Accounts Payable

Company Ending Balance  Beginning Balance
China Eastern Airlines Import and Export Co. 81,859 156,827
Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. - 800
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. 25,257 36,100
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. 150,003 57,502
China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. - 30,871
Nanjing Aviation Co. 1,547 -

6.2.3,.3 Other receivables

Company Ending Balance Beginning Balance
China Eastern Airlines Import and Export Co. 14,120 11,972
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. 1,392 1,392
Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. ’ 1,268 -
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. 38,466 14,550
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. 5,822 12,132
China Eastern Airline Yunnan Co., Ltd. 18,416 1,379
Nanjing Aviation Co. 54,230 -
Jiangsu Eastern Airlines International Travel Agency Co., Ltd. 6,320 -
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

6.2 Related Parties without Control Relationship but have Transactions with the Company

(Unit: RMB’000) (Cont’d)
6.2.3.4 Prepayments

Company Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation -

China Eastern Airlines Import and Export Co. 511

454
17,209

6.2.3.5 Other Payables

Company Ending Balance Beginning Balance
China Eastern Airlines import and Export Co. 18,129 329,635
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co. - 1,597
China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd. - 49,205
Shanghai Eastern Real Estate Operation Co. - 64
Nanjing Aviation Co. - 15,535

Jiangsu Eastern Airlines Traveling Agency Co., Ltd 8,319

6.2.3.6  Advance from Customers

Company Ending Balance

Beginning Balance

Jiangsu Eastern Airlines Traveling Agency Co., Ltd 2,011

6.2.3.7 Other Related Party Transactions

Emoluments for key management personnel

Year 2004 Year 2003
Number of key executives 13 9
Emoluments 2,285 1,602
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7. Commitment

7.1 Financial Lease Commitment

According to the irrevocable financial lease contract, the least financial lease commitment as of Dec. 31, 2004 is
equivalent to RMB 8,640 million. The lease payable in 2005, 2006 and 2007 is about RMB 1,827 million,
RMB 2,232 million and RMB 2,517 million respectively.

7.2 Operating Lease Commitment

According to the irrevocable operating lease contract, the least lease commitment as of Dec. 31, 2004 is
RMB 5,186 million. The lease payable in 2005, 2006 and 2007 is RMB 1,107 million, RMB 949 million and
RMB 759 million respectively.

7.3 Capital Expenditure Commitment
The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party for the purchase of 20 Airbus A320 aircraft,
10 and 5 have been delivered in 2003 and 2004, and 5 are to be delivered in 2005.

The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 5 CFM56 engines. Of the 5
engines, 1 and 1 have been delivered in 2003 and 2004, 1 are to be delivered in 2007 and 2 are to be delivered
in 2008.

The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 4 A321 aircrafts. Of the 4

aircrafts, 2 have been delivered in 2004, 2 are to be delivered in 2005,

The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 6 B737-700 aircrafts. All are to
be delivered in 2008.

The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 20 A330 aircrafts. Of the 20
aircrafts, 10 are to be delivered in 2008, 6 are to be delivered in 2007 and 4 are to be delivered in 2008.

The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 5 A319 aircrafts. Of the 5

aircrafts, 3 are to be delivered in 2006 and 2 are to be delivered in 2007.
The Company signed an agreement with an independent third party to purchase 5 ERJ145 aircrafts manufactured

by Harbin Bowei Aircraft Industrial Co.,Ltd. Of the 5 aircrafts, 3 are to be delivered in 2005 and 2 are to be
delivered in 2008.
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8. Contingent Event

8.1 The Company estimates that there will be lots of foreign exchange reserve including foreign exchange
in currencies of Southeast Asia from the sale of air tickets even after repayment of foreign currency
debts such as financial lease commitment and aircraft payment. Considering the continuing devaluation
and instability of politics and economy of this area, it is probable that the Company will face great
foreign exchange risk. To lower this risk, the Company signed some forward and swap contracts with

domestic banks. By Dec. 31, 2004, the Company still has the following contracts which signed but not

implemented:
Type Tenor Nominal Principatl
interest Rate Swap 2002-2014 437,495,442.05
Foreign Exchang Swap 2002-2010 22,525,241.00
Foreign Exchang Forward 2004-2007 2565,659,771.10
8.2 There is high risk of fuel price fluctuation in the aircraft fuel market in the near future and the fuel price

is on the continuing rise. The Company estimates that the great fluctuation will not relax very soon.
Considering the cost is subject to the fuel price fluctuation, the Company signed some option contracts

on aircraft fuel with overseas banks to control the price risk of aircraft fuel.

9. Unadjusted Events after Balance Sheet Date

The Company signed an agreement with United Technologies Far East Ltd on March 3, 2005 to set up Shanghali
Hansheng Space Navigation Technologies Co.,Ltd. The main operation of the investee is to provide the maintenance
and overhaul service of aircraft assistant power device. Its registered capital is USD 8,900,000, 51% and 49% of

the capital will be input by the Company and United Technologies Far East Ltd respectively.

10. Other Significant Event

The Company and its consolidated subsidiary China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd leased 3 A310 aircrafts and
3 BAe148 aircrafts from China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd and its held subsidiary Nanjing Aviation Co.,
Ltd, which are wholly-owned by Eastern Air Group Company, a shareholder holding over 62% of the Company’s
share capital. The board of directors of the Company cancelled the transaction as soon as knew about it in
August, 2004. The decision also get the approval of China Eastern Airline North West Co., Ltd and Nanjing
Aviation Co., Ltd. And the third parties agreed to make a retrospective adjustment to the transaction date, the
Company have made it accordingly. So, the committee of the Company considers that: there is‘no effective

contractual relationship on the aircrafts lease between these related parties.
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Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by Board of Directors on April 12th, 2005.

Comparison

To conform to the principle of consistency, some beginning balances and figures of last year have been reclassified

or restated.

Supplementary Information

Significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") and PRC Accounting

Regulations (Unit: RMB’000)

Net Assets:

Ending Balance  Beginning Balance

As stated in accordance with IFRS 6,882,244 6,382,151
Difference in depreciation charges of other flight equipment

due to different useful lives -1,361,373 -1,215,435
Difference in depreciation charges of aircraft and deferred income

of sales of aircraft and engine due to different useful life -1,517,691 -1,738,037
Provision for overhaul expenses 801,034 782,300
Reversal of additional charges of flight equipment spare parts

arising from the revaluation surplus of such assets 34,810 42,743
Provision for post-retirement benefits 588,394 563,783
Staff housing allowance -25,986 -20,727
Time value on installments payable for acquisition of a passenger

carriage business -19,796 -28,140
Goodwill -79.172 -84,828
Negative goodwill 42,869 46,323
Reversal of revalued amount for land use right 357,771 366,269
Revaluation deficit of aircraft | 68,367 £8,367
Loss on sale of staff quarters -24,373 -24,373
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 91,861 91,881
Tax adjustments 75,828 119,682
Other -116,613 -111,043
As stated in accordance with PRC audited statutory accounts 5,789,174

5,226,914
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13. Supplementary Information (Cont’d)

Net Profit:
Current Year Previous Year

As stated in accordance with IFRS 514,075 -949,816
Difference in depreciation charges of other flight equipment

due to different useful lives -145,038 -329,492
Difference in depreciation charges of aircraft and deferred income

of sales of aircraft and engine due to different useful life 220,346 235,520
Provision for overhaul expenses 18,734 -51,181
Reversal of additional charges of flight equipment spare parts

arising from the revaluation surplus of such assets -7,933 -9,221
Provision for post-retirement benefits 24,611 20,844
Staff housing allowance -5,259 227,613
Interest accrued on instaliments payable for acquisition of

a passenger carriage business 8,344 9,610
Amortization of goodwill 5,656 5,656
Amortization of negative goodwiill -3,454 -3,454
Reversal of revalued amount for land use rights -8,498 -8,420
Tax adjustments -43,854 -48,717
Other -4Q,488 75,086
As stated in accordance with PRC audited statutory accounts 536,342 -825,972
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(A) Significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and PRC
Accounting Regulations

Differences between IFRS and PRC Accounting Regulations which have significant effects on the consolidated

profit /{loss) attributable to shareholders and consolidated net assets of the Group are summarised as follows:—

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Consolidated profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders
As stated in accordance with PRC audited
statutory accounts 536,342 (825,972)
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments:
Difference in depreciation charges for other flight
equipment due to different depreciation lives @ 145,938 329,492
Difference in depreciation charges for aircraft due to
different depreciation lives and revaluation (o) (200,630) (237,931)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of aircraft and engines () (19,716) 2,411
Provision for overhaul expenses (s)) (18,734) 51,181
Reversal of additional charges for flight eguipment spare
parts arising from the revaluation surplus of such assets (e} 7,933 9,221
Provision for post-retirement benefits 4} (24,611) (20,844)
Staff housing bensfits 9 5,259 (227.613)
Interest accrued on instalments payable for acquisition
of an airlines business (h) (8,344) (9,610)
Amortisation of goodwill 0] (5,6586) (5,656)
Amortisation of negative goodwill )] 3,454 3,454
Reversal of revalued amount for land use rights {k) 8,498 8,420
Other {0) 40,488 (75,086)
Tax adjustments () 43,854 48,717
As stated in accordance with IFRS 514,075 {949,816)
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(A) Significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“iFRS”) and PRC
Accounting Regulations {Cont’d)

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Consolidated net assets
As stated in accordance with PRC audited
statutory accounts 5,798,174 5,226,914
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments:
Difference in depreciation charges for other
flight equipment due to different depreciation lives (a) 1,361,373 1,215,435
Difference in depreciation charges for aircraft
due to different depreciation lives (b} 2,023,390 2,224,020
Loss on disposal of aircraft and engines {c} (505,699) (485,983}
Provision for overhaul expenses (d) {801,034) (782,300)
Reversal of additional charges for flight equipment
spare parts arising from the revaluation surplus
of such assets (e) (34,810) (42,743}
Provision for post-retirement benefits ) (588,394) (663,783)
Provision for staff housing benefits (o)} 25,986 20,727
Time value on instaiments payable for acquisition
of an airlines business {h) 19,796 28,140
Goodwill {i 79,172 84,828
Negative goodwill ) (42,869) (46,323)
Reversal of revalued amount for land use right (k) (357,771) (366,269}
Revaluation deficit of fixed assets ) (68,367) (68,367)
Loss on sale of staff quarters {(m) 24,373 24,373
Unrealised losses on cash flow hedges (n) (91,861) (77,879)
Others (o) 116,613 111,043
Tax adjustments {o); (75,828) (119,682)
As stated in accordance with IFRS 6,882,244 6,382,151

—_—
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{A) Significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“iFRS”) and PRC

Accounting Regulations (Cont’d)

@

Under IFRS, other flight equipment are accounted for as fixed assets and depreciation charges are calculated over the depreciation lives
of 20 years to residual value. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, such flight equipment are classified as current assets and the costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years.

Under IFRS, depreciation of aircraft is calculated to write off their costs or revalued amounts on a straight-line basis over their depreciation
lives of 20 years to their residual values. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, on or before 30 June 2001, depreciation of aircraft was
calculated to write off their costs on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of 10 to 15 years to their residual values. With
effect from 1 July 2001, depreciation of alrcraft under PRC Accounting Regulations is calculated to write off their costs on a straight-line
basis over their expected useful fives of 20 years to their residual values. Prospective adjustment was made to the aircraft acquired before
1 Jduly 2001 over their revised remaining useful lives.

This represents the difference on loss on disposals arising from different depreciation lives adopted for aircraft and engines resutted in
different carrying net book value under IFRS and PRC Accounting Regulations {see note (b) above).

Under [FRS, the costs of major overhauls for aircraft and engines under operating leases are estimated and charged to operating profit
over the period between overhauls, using the ratio of actual flying hours and estimated flying hours between overhauls, while the costs of
major overhauls of owned aircraft and aircraft held under finance leases are charged to the income statement as incurred, Routine repairs
and maintenance costs (including repair costs on other flight equipment) are charged fo the income statement as incurred. Under PRC
Accounting Regulations, prior to 2003, major overhauls costs for all aircraft were provided at specific rates applicable to the related models
of aircraft. Effective from January 2003, the major overhaul costs of aircraft under operating leases are provided at specific rates applicable
1o the related models of aircraft, no additional provision is made for overhaul costs of owned aircraft and aircraft under finance leases,
major overhaul costs for these aircraft are first offset against the provision brought forward and then charged to the income statement as
incurred after the provision is fully utilised.

Under IFRS, the fiight equipment spare parts are carried at weighted average cost and are expensed when consumed in operations. Under
PRC Accounting Regulations, the flight equipment spare parts at the time of listing are carried at revalued amounts and are expensed
when consumed in operations.

The post-retirement benefits for employees are required to be recognised over the employees' service period under IFRS whereas such
benefits are recognised on a pay-as-you-go basis under the PRC Accounting Regulations.

Under IFRS, the present value of additionat provision of staff housing allowance as a result of the new staff housing policies announced and
implemented by the Company in 2003 was charged to the income statement for the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2004. Under
PRC Accounting Regulations, such staff housing allowance provision relating to services rendered prior to 2003 is charged directly to
regerves. Current year's provision is .made without taking into account of the time value on future instalment payments.

Under IFRS, the consideration payable for the acquisition of an airlines business is recorded based on the present value of the instalment
payments. The difference in ime value between the acquisition cost payable and its present value is periodically recognised as interest
expenses in the income statement over the period of payments. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, such difference is not recognised.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the acquirer's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is
recognised as goodwill under IFRS. The obligation of post-retirement benefits for employees inherited by the Group through the acquisition
of an airlines business has been recognised and accounted for in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. As a result, goodwill
has been recognised and is amortised over 20 years, Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the post-retirement benefits are recognised on
a pay-as-you-go basis and the correspanding abligation is nat accounted for in the fair value of the net assets acquired. Accordingly, no
goodwill or amortisation is recognised.

Under IFRS, the consideration payable for the acquisition of an airlines business is recorded based on the present value of the instaiment
payments, giving rise to a negative goodwill which is amortised over the weighted average remaining useful lives of the depreciable non-
raenetary assets acquired. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the time value of the consideration payable has not been accounted for

and accordingly, no negative goodwill or amortisation is recognised.
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31 December 2004

(A) Significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“iIFRS”) and PRC

Accounting Regulations (Cont'd)

K

(m)

As part of the Company's restructuring in 1998, land use rights were recorded at valuation as a non-monetary assets which formed part of
share capital of the Company. Under IFRS, the Company has reclassified land use rights as operating leases and the land use rights at the
time of the listing are stated at historical cost which is nil. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, fand use rights are stated at valuation less
accumutated amortisation.

Under IFRS, fixed assets of the Group are initially recorded at cost and are subsequently restated at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation. Fixed assets of the Group were revalued as at 30 June 1996 as part of the restructuring of the Group for the purpose of
listing. As at 31 Becember 2002, a revaluation of the Group's fixed assets was carried out and difference between the valuation and
carrving amount was recognised. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment.

This represents the difference in the recognition of loss on sale of the Group’s staff quarters to eligible staff. Under IFRS, provision for
anticipated loss is made for any construction cost in excess of the expected selling price during construction, and any over or under
provision is recognised at the time of sale. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the loss on disposals of staff quarters is charged directly

to the reserves.

Under IFRS, the Group’s derivative financial instruments qualified for hedging accounting and the unrealised gains and losses on these
instruments are recognised as the Group's hedging reserve in the shargholders’ equity. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the gains and

losses on the financial instruments are recognised in the income statement upon their maturity.
In addition to the above, the application of IFRS differs in certain other respects from PRC Accounting Regulations.

These represent the corresponding deferred tax effects of the items above and tax losses.
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(B) Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP

Differences between IFRS and US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”) which have significant
effects on the consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders and consolidated net assets of the Group are

summarised as follows:—

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Consolidated profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders
As stated under IFRS 514,075 (949,816}
U.S. GAAP adjustments:
Reversal of difference in depreciation charges arising
from revaluation of fixed assets (&) 57,568 63,895
Profit/(loss) on disposals of aircraft and related assets (b) 7,099 (10,083)
Rescission of related party lease arrangements (©) (133,029) -
Others (d) (1,518) 6,860
Deferred tax effect on U.S. GAAP adjustments (e) 10,482 (9,101)
As stated under U.S. GAAP 454,677 (898,245)
Basic and fully di!Qted earnings/{loss) per share
under U.S. GAAP RMB 0.093 (RMB 0.185)
Basic and fully diluted earnings/(loss) per
American Depository Share ("ADS”) under U.S. GAAP RMB 9.34 (RMB 18.48)
2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Consolidated net assets
As stated under IFRS 6,882,244 6,382,151
U.S. GAAP adjustments:
Reversal of net revaluation surplus of fixed assets (@ (908,873) (908,873)
Reversal of difference in depreciation charges
and accumulated depreciation and loss on
disposals arising from the revaluation of fixed assets (a),(b}) 755,902 691,235
Others (d) 34,453 35,971
Deferred tax effect on U.S. GAAP adjustments (€ (247) 9,225
As stated under U.S. GAAP 6,763,479 6,208,709
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31 December 2004

(B) Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP (Cont’d)

(a) Revaluation of fixed assets

Under IFRS, fixed assets of the Group are initially recorded at cost and are subsequently restated at revalued
amounts less accumulated depreciation. Under U.S. GAAP, the revaluation surplus or deficit and the related
difference in depreciation are reversed since fixed assets are required to be stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation.

(b) Disposals of aircraft and related assets

This represents the loss on disposal of aircraft and related assets during the year. Under U.S. GAAP, fixed assets
are required to be stated at revalued amounts. Under IFRS, fixed assets are stated at cost or revalued amounts.
Accordingly, the accumulated depreciation and the gain or loss on disposals of aircraft is different under IFRS and

U.S. GAAP and is attributable to the surplus or deficit arising on the valuation of the assets that are disposed.

(c) Rescission of related party lease arrangements

The Company entered into certain lease arrangements with CEA Northwest and Nanjing Airlines to lease three
A310 alrcraft and three Bae1486 aircraft in 2004 that were subsequently terminated and retroactively rescinded
{note 38(c)(il)). The impact of the retroactive rescission of the lease arrangements with CEA Northwest was an
aggregate settlement by CEA Noerthwest and Nanjing Airlines in the amount of RMB133 million (the “Settlement
Amount”), which represents the operating losses incurred on the operation of the CEA Northwest Leased Aircraft
during 2004, to the Group through the reduction of the Group’s inter-company payable accounts with CEA

Northwest or Nanjing Airlines, as applicable.

Under IFRS, the Settlement Amount was recognised as non-operating income for the year ended 31 December
2004 and was in effect an extinguishment of a financial liability through a reduction of the Group’s inter-company

payable accounts with CEA Northwest or Nanjing Airlines, as applicable.

Under U.S. GAAP, the Settlement Amount, through reduction of the Group’s intercompany payable account of
CEA Holding's wholly owned subsidiary, was deemed as the principal shareholder incurring costs on behalf of the
Company and was recognised as a capital contribution in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5-T
("SAB Topic 5-T”). Any ccst incurred by the principal shareholder on behalf of its subsidiary are required to be
reflected in the subsidiary’s financial statements as an expense and a corresponding capital unless the principal

shareholders actions are completely unrelated to its position as a shareholder under SAB Topic 5-T.
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{B) Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP (Cont’d)

(d) Other U.S. GAAP adjustments

The application of U.S. GAAP differs in certain other respects from IFRS, mainly relating to sale and leaseback
transactions, post retirement benefits and goodwill. Under US GAAP: i) recognition of gain on sale and leaseback
transactions is deferred and amortised, i) transitional obligations for post retirement benefits are amortised over
the average remaining service period of active plan participants, and ili) goodwill is reviewed for impairment and is

not amortised.

(e) Deferred tax effect

These represent the corresponding deferred tax effect as a result of the adjustments stated in (a), (b), (c) and (d)

above,

(f) Segmental disclosures

The Group adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”. The
Group has a route network designed to transport passengers and cargo between destinations in China, Hong
Kong, and selected international destinations in Japan, U.S., Australia, South Korea, Thailand, Singapore and a
number of European countries. China, Hong Kong, and International constitute the Group’s three reportable
geographical segments. SFAS N0.131 requires that segment financial information be disclosed under the
management approach that is consistent with how the Group’s management internally desegregates financial
information for the purpose of making internal operating decisions. The Group evaluates revenue information of
its Voperating segments based on unaudited management operational information prepared under PRC Accounting

Regulations.
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(B) Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP (Cont'd)

(f) Segmental disclosures (Cont’d)
Unaudited management
operational information
under PRC Accounting
Regulations for the
year ended 31 December
2004 2003
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
Traffic revenues OR()
Domestic
Passenger 8,122,783 5,854,542
Cargo 273,431 256,661
Subtotal 8,396,214 8,111,203
Hong Kong
Passenger 2,208,271 1,622,538
Cargo 611,471 394,246
Subtotal 2,819,742 2,016,784
International (i)
Passenger 4,929,866 3,036,214
Cargo 3,749,739 2,561,529
Subtotal 8,679,605 5,697,743
Total (iv) 19,895,561 13,725,730

(i) The Group operates in one business segment which is the common carriage of passenger, cargo and
mail over various routes. In the PRC management accounts, revenue is split between passenger and
cargo for management review purpose. The directors consider it is appropriate to report such information

in the supplementary financial information.

(i) Traffic revenues by routes are attributed to each geographical segment based on the final destination /
origin of each flight route. For international and Hong Kong routes with a domestic segment, revenues
for the entire route are attributed to each geographical segment based on the final destination / origin of

the route.

191




Supplementary Financial Information e

China Eastern Airfines Corporation Limited 187

371 December 2004

(B) Significant differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP {Cont’d)

(f) Segmental disclosures (Cont’d)

(iif) The Group’s international revenues are generated from its international routes to and from countries
including Japan, U.S., Australia, South Korea, Thailand, Singapore and selected European countries.
Among these countries, the Group generates from Japan routes its largest share of international revenue
(note: the Group generated revenues, under IFRS, of RMB2,113,251,000 and RMB1,565,971,000 from
its Japan routes in 2004 and 2003 respectively).

(iv) The traffic revenue figures as stated above are different from the Group's audited PRC statutory accounts

and the Group's audited IFRS accounts due to the following reasons:~

. The management made use of this operational information before closing of accounts for each
accounting period. Accordingly, estimates (which are generally within a discrepancy of 5% on
total actual revenues) have been incorporated into this operational information for timely decision

making purposes.

. Certain discounts granted to sales agents and customers have not been set-off against revenues

under management operational information.

v) The major revenue-generating assets of the Group are its aircraft fleet, all of which are registered in the
PRC. Since the Group’s aircraft fleet is deployed flexibly across its route network, there is no suitable

basis of allocating such assets and the related liabilities to geographical segments.
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